
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR LEARNING AND SCHOOL EFFECTIVENESS 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Learning and School 
Effectiveness, Councillor Nick Bennett. 
 
THURSDAY 12 NOVEMBER 2015, 2.00 PM 
 
CC2, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
 
A G E N D A  
 
1   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 13 July 2015  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Disclosures of interests   

 
Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the Agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct 
 

3   Urgent items   
 
Notification of items which the Lead Member considers to be urgent and propose to 
take at the end of the appropriate part of the Agenda 
 

4   Discretionary Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) transport provision  
(Pages 5 - 72) 
 
Report by the Director of Children’s Services 
 

5   Discretionary post-16 support for low income families (LIF) and rural link provision  
(Pages 73 - 154) 
 
Report by the Director of Children’s Services 
 

6   East Sussex County Council School Funding Formula 2016/17 proposal  (Pages 155 - 
162) 
 
Report by the Director of Children’s Services 
 

7   Admission arrangements for the 2017/18 school year  (Pages 163 - 190) 
 
Report by the Director of Children’s Services 
 

8   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 4 November 2015 
 
Contact: Hannah Matthews, 01273 335138  
Email: hannah.matthews@eastsussex.gov.uk  



 

 

 
 
 



 
 

LEAD MEMBER FOR LEARNING AND SCHOOL EFFECTIVENESS and LEAD MEMBER FOR 
CHILDREN AND FAMILIES 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Lead Member for Learning and School Effectiveness, Councillor 
Nick Bennett, and Lead Member for Children and Families, Councillor Sylvia Tidy held atCC2, 
County Hall, Lewes on Monday 13 July 2015. 
 

 
Councillors Kathryn Field and Kim Forward spoke on items 4 and 5 (see minutes 9 and 10) 
Councillors Michael Pursglove and Sylvia Tidy spoke on item 5 (see minute 10) 
 
7 DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON MONDAY 8 JUNE 2015  
 
7.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on 8 June 
2015. 
 
 
8 REPORTS  
 
8.1 A copy of the reports referred to below are contained in the minute book. 
 
 
9 PROPOSED DE-DESIGNATION OF LANGNEY CHILDREN'S CENTRE  
 
 
9.1 This item was originally scheduled to be determined by Councillor Nick Bennett, Lead 
Member for Learning and School Effectiveness. However during the course of the meeting it 
became clear that the item under consideration primarily related to children’s social care 
matters. Because of these special circumstances Councillor Bennett therefore decided it was 
inappropriate for him to make a decision on this item.   As a result the item was determined by 
Councillor Sylvia Tidy, Lead Member for Children and Families.  
 
9.2 The Lead Member for Children and Families considered a report by the Director of 
Children’s Services which sought approval to de-designate Langney Children’s Centre in 
Eastbourne to enable Langney School to use the building to accommodate additional nursery 
provision.  
 
9.3 RESOLVED to approve the de-designation of Langney Children’s Centre to enable 
Langney School to use the building to accommodate additional nursery provision for two year 
olds. 
 
Reasons 
 
9.4 Additional early years education places are needed in the Langney area of Eastbourne 
and releasing the current Children’s Centre building to provide these places is in the interests of 
children in that area.  
 
 
10 HASTINGS ACADEMY TRUST - PROCESS FOR ENDING SPONSORSHIP  
 
10.1 The Lead Member for Learning and School Effectiveness considered a report by the 
Director of Children’s Services which sought approval for East Sussex County Council to end its 
role as co-sponsor for the Hastings Academy Trust. A statement from the University of Brighton, 
the principle sponsor, was tabled at the meeting.  
 
DECISION  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 

10.2 RESOLVED to agree that the Local Authority (LA) ends its role as co-sponsor for the 
Hastings Academy Trust. 
 
Reasons 
 
10.3 The policy context has changed significantly since East Sussex County Council took the 
decision to act as a co-sponsor for the Hastings Academy Trust. Acting as co-sponsor creates 
confusion in terms of accountability and may place the LA in the position of raising concerns 
with the Regional School Commissioner about an academy school where it acts as co-sponsor. 
Furthermore acting as co-sponsor for some academies and not others creates an unequitable 
relationship between the LA and its academy schools.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
Report to:  Lead Member for Learning and School Effectiveness 
 
Date:   12 November 2015 
 
By:   Director of Children’s Services  
 
Title of report: Proposed changes to discretionary SEND transport provision 

from the 2016/17 academic year   
 
Purpose of report: To ask the Lead Member to make a decision on whether to 

approve the proposed reductions in support for students with 
Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Lead Member is asked to approve the implementation of the proposals set out in 1.2 
of this report in order to reduce spend on the discretionary home to school transport 
(HTST) budget from the start of the 2016/17 academic year 

___________________________________________________________________ 

1 Background 

1.1 It is anticipated that East Sussex County Council (ESCC) will need to reduce 
expenditure by £70-90 million between 2016/17 and 2018/19 and all areas will need to be 
considered. The cost of providing discretionary transport in the 2014/15 academic year was 
£1.46m for 206 students with SEND, and approximately £40k for 10 nursery-aged children. It 
is clear that the level of support currently being provided for both nursery and post-16 
learners cannot be sustained given the savings required across East Sussex County Council 
(ESCC).  It is recommended therefore that the HTST policy is amended in order to make 
significant reductions in our discretionary HTST spend. 

1.2 The proposed changes, which will apply from September 2016, are to: 
 

i. offer support to those demonstrating the ‘highest level of need’ only by introducing 
tighter ‘exceptions’ criteria for post-16 SEND students and offering the most cost-
effective support, as set out in a post-16 SEND transport policy.   This would apply 
only to new applicants from September 2016; 

ii. increase the current post-16 transport contribution from £370 to £608 (the 2015 cost 
of a bus Freedom ticket). 

iii. introduce a 50% rate of contribution for low income families, at £304. 
iv. introduce an annual contribution for pre-school SEND travel assistance at the same 

rates as post-16 travel (£608 / £304). 
All SEND students would be subject to the increase in the contribution if implemented from 
September 2016 (points ii to iv). 

1.3 Potential savings and numbers of students impacted are summarised in Appendix 1. 
It is estimated that additional year on year savings against the 2014/15 forecast, if all 
elements were to be approved and maximised are potentially: £118k in 2016/17, £291k in 
2017/18, and £351k in 2018/19. These totals accumulate to reach £759k of total savings 
over 2016/17 - 2018/19. 

2 Supporting information 

2.1 The public consultation on the changes was open from 10 June until 18 September 
2015 following the Lead Member decision to consult on 8 June 2015. 

2.2 Parents / carers of 510 Year 9 to Year 14 children with SEND transport in 2014/15 
received letters inviting them to take part in the online consultation. Paper forms were 
available. Early Years providers also received the information. A press release on 11 June 
2015 resulted in wide coverage of the story (Appendix 11). 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2.3 There were 35 responses to the SEND survey. A summary is shown in Appendix 2. 
Key concerns included the ability of many families of children with SEND to cope with 
additional costs for transport, and that a young person may not be able to attend their post-
16 or pre-school placement. 

2.4 A parent consultation event with ESCC took place on 10 September, organised and 
promoted by the East Sussex Parent and Carers’ Council (ESPACC), which is outlined in 
Appendix 3. The key issue identified by the Forum was that parents and carers of a child or 
young person with SEND often have numerous additional costs but are not necessarily low 
income. 

2.5 Meetings with school sixth forms and colleges occurred on 19 May and 8 July 
following communications about the proposed changes, to raise awareness and discuss 
potential impact and mitigation. Post-16 providers gave little comment on proposals relating 
to SEND students. 

2.6 A draft post-16 SEND travel assistance policy was circulated as part of the 
consultation. All changes to the original draft policy are shown in red in Appendix 4, and 
include revised wording regarding Motability vehicles. 

2.7 Appendix 5 sets out the comments of the Scrutiny Review Board which met on 15 
October 2015, with a response from the Children’s Services Department. 

2.8 The Review Board asked that we recalculate the savings to increase the contribution 
of families not on low incomes to £750 per annum, and to model what impact this would have 
on reducing the contribution being asked of LIF families. This additional information is now 
included in Section 6 of Appendix 1. 

2.9 The Review Board also requested we list available sources of funding and give a 
breakdown of post-16 providers attended by 16-19 year old students which demonstrates the 
proportion of providers with access to additional support via the EFA bursary scheme. This is 
summarised in Appendix 6. 

2.9 The Campaign for Better Transport (CBT) responded specifically to the SEND 
consultation, full copy in Appendix 7, with a response from the County Council. 

2.10 Appendix 8 summarises what other county councils are charging families as a 
contribution towards SEND travel support in 2015/16. In line with other local authorities, the 
ESCC position will be reviewed annually as with other ‘fees and charges’. 

3 Key risks and mitigation 

3.1 Reducing discretionary transport support carries a number of risks, which are outlined 
in Appendix 9 with details of the potential impact and mitigation. 

3.2 A full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken which summarises 
potential impact and mitigation; this is included as Appendix 10. 

3.3 The key mitigations should the proposed changes be implemented are summarised 
on page 18 and 19 of the EIA. They include the continuation of the Independent Travel 
Training service and this carries huge additional benefits to young people in their transition to 
adulthood. 

4 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

4.1 As part of the Children’s Services Department’s response to the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Plan the recommendation is that the Lead Member agrees to all the changes 
listed in item 1.2. Potential impact will be mitigated as detailed in the EIA (Appendix 10). 

 

STUART GALLIMORE 
Director of Children’s Services 

Contact Officer: Lou Carter 
Tel. No. 01273 482809 
Email: louise.carter@eastsussex.gov.uk Page 6



 

LOCAL MEMBERS 

All 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Appendix 1 Summary of cohort numbers and savings 
Appendix 2  Response to the online survey 
Appendix 3 Consultation with ESPACC 
Appendix 4 Draft Post-16 SEND travel assistance policy 
Appendix 5 Scrutiny Board minutes and response 
Appendix 6 EFA bursaries and other support 
Appendix 7 Response from CBT 
Appendix 8 Comparison with other local authorities 
Appendix 9 Risks 
Appendix 10 Equality Impact Assessment 
Appendix 11 Press releases 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Finance tables and summary cohort information     

 

 

1. Breakdown of total savings estimates – summary including cohort numbers 

Potential savings per year based on 2014/15 annual cost estimates are summarised 
below: 

 

Financial Year 
2016/17* 2017/18 2018/19 Total        

(3 year 
period) 

Estimated total savings resulting from 
reduction in support for post-16 students 
with SEND student (20% reduction in 
new starters, contribution of £608/£304** 
for post-16 and pre-school students) 

£118,441 £290,502 £350,524 £759,467 

Estimated number of pre-school 
children and post-16s with SEND 
impacted (new starters) 

94 85 more 42 more  

 

 

2. Breakdown of total savings estimates for each proposal – higher detail 

Financial Year 2016/17* 2017/18 2018/19 
Total        

(3 year 
period) 

Post-16 SEND 
(i) SEND students (20% reduction for 
Y12-16 new starters) 

£81,630 £240,088 £300,110 £300,110 

(ii) Plus charge at £608 (if 20% fewer 
new starters)** 

£11,281 £15,042 £15,042 £41,364 

(iii) And £304 charge for LIF (if 20% 
fewer new starters) 

£23,530 £31,373 £31,373 £86,275 

Total for (i) - (iii) - post-16  £116,441 £286,502 £346,524 £749,467 

(iv) introduce charge for pre-school cases 
(£608/£304)  

£2,000 £4,000 £4,000 £10,000 

Total for (i) - (iv) - post-16 + pre-school £118,441 £290,502 £350,525 £759,464 

* adjusted for part-financial year with changes for new starters from September 2016 (68% of full year) 

**additional saving on top of expected saving from current £370 charge 

 

2.1 The estimated totals for each financial year relate to the potential savings against an estimate for 
total 2015/16 costs if no changes were made. 

2.2 Outturn for 2014/15 was £1.5m for 216 students with SEND (2014/15 estimate), including 10 pre-
school children at £40k per year. 

Page 9

Appendix 1



2 

 

2.3 Changing the SEND travel assistance policy so that transport is offered only at the start and end 
of a college day is estimated to produce additional savings of between £13k and £25k of savings 
in 2017/18 assuming a 20% reduction across the budget (with approximately one-third of that in 
the 2016/17 financial year). 

2.4 We have been mindful of the fact that the MTFP already includes savings that relate to SEND 
travel in 2016/17 (£46k saved through an increase in the post-16 SEND charge and a total of 
£378k via the iMPOWER recommendations against the entire SEND Travel budget (statutory and 
discretional) of which post-16 used approximately 23% in 2013/14. We will be asking finance to 
ensure that there is not a duplication of savings; and if this does occur we will make a deduction 
from total savings. 

 

3. Notes and assumptions for savings estimates 

3.1 It should be noted that these figures are estimated from a December 2014 snapshot which was 
used to generate total annual costs for the 2014/15 academic year, and then adjusted for the 
2015/16 financial year (during which the changes will be implemented with approximately 70% of 
the school travel days remaining). 

3.2 It should also be noted that the costs provided per SEND student using hired transport (taxi or 
minibus) were apportioned, i.e. an appropriate share of the total cost of that particular vehicle run. 
This has been used to create a total for savings made if that particular person no longer receives 
a seat and if some runs are ceased completely – however there is a risk that some of these seats 
may run empty and savings will be less than the estimates shown – these are therefore maximum 
savings. 

3.3 If policy changes were introduced from September 2016, it is proposed that only those pupils 
starting a post-16 course in September 2016 should be affected, based on fairness and the 
legitimate expectations of young people and parents who would have chosen a school or college 
based on the Council’s admission criteria and transport policy at the time of entry to the school or 
college. The supported cohort currently ranges from Y12 to Y16, with SEND students supported 
for courses of up to 3 years.  

3.4 In addition, changes would be introduced at the start of September (and savings would result from 
around 130 school travel days from a total of 190 within the 2015/16 financial year). Therefore 
changes to discretional provision would not result in full expected savings until the 2018/19 
financial year. 

3.5 There are also potential associated savings in staffing cost in both CSD and CET teams, although 
this needs further consideration as more time may need to be invested per successful application, 
particularly at the start of the changes. CET have indicated that they think staff savings are 
unlikely as they are losing one FTE who deals with LIF in any case, and a 20% reduction in SEND 
clients would be a negligible reduction in resources as post-16 SEND pupils are the easiest group 
to manage; they generally stay on existing transport where there is FE provision at the school or 
transport is arranged for colleges at the end of the summer when normally the bulk of 
authorisations have been processed. 

3.6 CSD have identified that possibly a 0.5FTE post may no longer be needed, however some of this 
may need to be redirected as support for assessments and authorisation of travel applications. 

 

4. Post-16 SEND travel assistance contribution 

4.1 Families of new students receiving SEND travel support from September 2014 have been asked 
to contribute £370 towards the full costs, unless assessed as low income. 

4.2 The current annual cost for a Freedom Pass for bus travel is £608, and linking the contribution to 
this cost appears a logical step to put us in line with other authorities. Table 1 shows the 
estimated savings made if ESCC increased the full rate from £370 to £608, based on an 
anticipated 20% reduction in new cases.  

4.3 Based on current figures, the expected income from the current £370 charge in the 2016/17 
financial year for non-LIF only would be £29,230. Table 1 shows both the total income and the 
additional income above that expected from the £370 charge.  

 

Page 10



3 

 

Table 1: Estimated additional income from increase in charge / new charge for LIF 

  

£608 charge  
(non-LIF) 

£304 charge  
(LIF) 

Total Income  
£608 / £304 

2016/17 
financial 

year 

 
Total income £37,588 £23,530 £61,118 

Additional 
savings above 
£370 charge £11,281 £23,530 £34,811 

2017/18 
financial 

year* 

 
Total income £38,426 £31,373 £69,798 

Additional 
savings above 
£370 charge £15,042 £31,373 £46,414 

*and beyond 

 
4.4 The estimated additional savings made by ESCC increasing the charge to £608, and introducing 

a £304 charge for low income families is £35k in 2016/17 and then £46k in 2017/18 and for 
subsequent years. 

4.5  It has been assumed that the new level of contribution would be expected from the families of all 
students, including those on low incomes (not just new starters). It would be highly complex to 
administer parallel payment systems for different years of entry as the new students come 
through over 3 entry years. 

4.6 It has been noted that if families of students who are already travelling prior to September 2016 
are to be required to make an increased or new contribution then the Authority must pay due 
regard to alerting them to this with as much notice as possible; by writing to them with this 
information. 

 

5. Third Year savings and numbers impacted (based on 2014/15 cohorts) 

Table 2: Percentage savings per year due to reduction in support / increased charge for 

discretionary SEND travel assistance  

 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Percentage of the total HTST budget plus Travel budgets 
(£10.9m) 1.1% 2.7% 3.2% 

Percentage of the discretionary element of the budgets 
(1.74m) 6.8% 16.7% 20.1% 

 

So we anticipate 3.2% saving against total budget by third year if proposed changes to support for 

post-16 students and pre-school children with SEND were to be implemented from September 2016. 

Table 3: Approximate numbers impacted by reduction in support by third year (2018/19) 

Number of CYP 
impacted by third 
year of the 
changes* 

Number of pre-
school / post-16 
currently 
transported  

Number impacted 
as % of 
discretionary 
SEND cohort 

Number of ALL 
SEND students 
currently 
transported 

Number impacted 
as % of total 
SEND cohort 
 

41 216 19% 1084 3.8% 
* estimated using 2014/15 figures 

Of the 216 anticipated SEND students (206 post-16 and 10 pre-school), there will be a reduction in 

number of post-16 approved cases by approximately 20% - therefore impacting 41 students. The final 

percentage of the discretional cohort impacted is only 19% as the policy for pre-school children will 

Page 11



4 

 

remain the same (exceptional cases only) and their numbers will therefore not be affected by the 

changes. 

It should be noted that 80% of post-16 SEND students continue to be supported, but that all 

discretionary SEND travel will be subject to an increase in the contribution towards travel. 

 

6. Additional calculations requested by the Scrutiny Review Board (15 October 2015) 

Members asked that a further calculation showing the adjustment needed for increasing the higher 

contribution towards transport from the proposed £608 to a higher level, to allow the Council to reduce 

the amount charged to low income families down from the proposed £304 – whilst still generating the 

same level of saving. 

Under current estimates of the proportions of LIF / non-LIF, an increase to £750 would mean that low 

income families would need to be charged a reduced rate of £271 per year (to the nearest pound). 

This is shown below in Table 4, which can be compared with Table 1. 

Table 4: Estimated additional income from charges of £750 / new charge for LIF 

  

£750 charge  
(non-LIF) 

£217 charge  
(LIF) 

Total Income  
£608 / £304 

2016/17 
financial 

year 

 
Total income £44,319 £16,796 £61,115 

Additional 
savings above 
£370 charge £18,012 £16,796 £34,808 

2017/18 
financial 

year 

 
Total income £47,400 £22,394 £69,794 

Additional 
savings above 
£370 charge £24,016 £22,394 £46,410 

 

The tables below summarise the different income levels, also and shows that if we continued to allow 

low income families to be exempt from the contribution whilst other families are charged £608, a 

saving of £86k over the three years 2016/17 – 2018/19 would need to be found from elsewhere. 

Tables 5 and 6: comparison of contributions and income over 2016/17-2018/19 

Income Source (via contribution) 2016/17* 2017/18 2018/19 
Total (3 year 

period) 

£608 for non-LIF £11,281 £15,042 £15,042 £41,364 

£304 charge for LIF  £23,530 £31,373 £31,373 £86,275 

Total £608 / £304 £34,811 £46,415 £46,415 £127,639 
 

Income Source (via contribution) 2016/17* 2017/18 2018/19 
Total (3 year 

period) 

£750 for non-LIF £18,012 £24,016 £24,016 £66,044 

£217 charge for LIF  £16,796 £22,394 £22,394 £61,584 

Total £750 / £217 £34,808 £46,410 £46,410 £127,628 

 

Page 12



1 

 

Survey on changes to discretionary SEND transport       

 

The Proposals 

The proposed options to make savings on current discretionary SEND travel assistance are: 

1. Offering support to those demonstrating the ‘highest level of need’ only by introducing 

tighter ‘exceptions’ criteria for post-16 SEND students and offering the most cost-effective 

support, as set out in Appendix 4, draft post-16 SEND transport policy. 

2. Increasing the current post-16 transport contribution from £370 to £608 (the 2015 cost of a 

bus Freedom ticket).  

3. Introducing a 50% rate of contribution for low income families, at £304.  

4. Introducing an annual contribution for pre-school SEND travel assistance at the same 

rates as post-16 travel (£608 / £304). 

These changes (proposal 2,3 & 4) would be for all travelling children from September 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Response to the survey in detail 

The survey was introduced with a summary of the proposed changes, with the full Lead Member 

report available to respondents as one of the supporting documents. 

Respondents were provided with a list of anticipated Frequently Asked Questions to help them to 

further understand the proposals (included at the end of this appendix). 

Respondents were asked whether they understood the proposal, and a question about potential 

impact was then asked, with an opportunity to respond with any further comments. A number of key 

themes emerged, and the themes and corresponding numbers for each have been summarised. 
Some respondents made more than one point in their response; others made no response to some 

questions. 

 

HEADLINES 

35 people completed the SEND survey online.  

71% of respondents were parents or carers of a SEND child, and 80% were women.   

Concerns included how ESCC will determine whether a parent is available to help with transport, 

and which young people will be given travel support. Comments regarding the increase or 

introduction of a contribution were that many families of children with SEND may be unable to 

cope with the additional cost, and that these families have less expendable income as a result of 

the additional expenses for the child. The implication is that increasing transport costs may mean 

that other sacrifices have to be made, or the young person may not be able to attend their post-

16 placement. There were fewer negative responses to the introduction of a contribution for pre-

school children, although there were concerns about children not attending placements. 

Page 13

Appendix 2



2 

 

Proposal 1: Offering support to those demonstrating the ‘highest level of need’ only by 

introducing tighter ‘exceptions’ criteria for post-16 SEND students and offering the most cost-

effective support 

A. Do you understand this proposal? - The changes that are proposed have been clearly 

explained 

 

 

79% of respondents 

agreed or strongly 

agreed that the changes 

had been clearly 

explained. 

 

B. In your opinion, how might the introduction of these revised criteria for post-16 SEND 

travel support impact on your own family / other families 

Comment or concern Number % 

Concern regarding use of Motability information 6 17  

Agree that priority should be given to YP with highest needs (reasonable) 6 17  

Concern regarding how we judge if parent available / impact on work 6 17  

Concern that some YP will no longer be able to access post-16 education 4 11  

Concern that transport will be removed from most needy 4 11  

Concern regarding ITT 3 9  

Need to consider public transport availability 3 9  

Concern regarding consideration of other children in family 2 6  

Would prefer fewer criteria, with option to pay for service if wanted 2 6  

Believe that family would qualify anyway 1 3  

Concern that will influence placement decisions 1 3  
 

Examples of statements 

1) Concern regarding use of Motability information 

‘Some families, have more than one child or young person, and could not take one to one 

school and one to another. I have two young people with disabilities. The mobility car is for 

the benefit of the young person but the cost of fuel to take them everywhere, as they can't 

travel independently is hugely expensive’. 

Page 14



3 

 

‘Just because a family has a Motability vehicle does not mean there are not other reasons, 

such as my daughter's obsessive compulsive behaviour, which make this proposal 

unworkable’. 

2) Agree that priority should be given to young people with highest needs (policy is reasonable) 

‘I do believe that some parents are incredibly lazy. There are several children on my 

daughter’s (special) bus who would be very capable of being taken to school by their parents.  

Priority must be given to those like my daughter who are completely unable to travel on public 

transport’.  

‘I think this sounds like a reasonable proposal.  I would only mention that often students with a 

SEND find it stressful travelling by bus for various reasons.  Often it is the bus driver that is 

unable to respond to their needs/communication’. 

3) Concern regarding how we judge if parent available / impact on work 

‘Please define "there is not a parent/carer who could make themselves available to take 

them". If the parent/carer works, does this fall into the category of 'unable to take them'? ’ 

4) Concern that some YP will no longer be able to access post-16 education 

‘Post 16 education cannot be accessible to some students if the criteria are limiting’. 

‘It will mean that my stepson will not be able to continue at his current school post-16 as we 

don't drive and public transport does not arrive in the village where his school is before 9am’. 

5) Concern that transport will be removed from most needy 

‘All of the families I work with have severely physically disabled children with medical needs. 

None of them can walk 3 miles or use public transport safely with/without an adult. None 

would be suitable for Travel Training. Parents would therefore have to transport them 

themselves, many travel up to an hour each way to get to the school’. 

6) Concern regarding ITT 

‘I would worry about ITT pushing for my child to 'graduate' though as she would be incredibly 

vulnerable.  Bus route is not suitable’. 

‘Whilst I agree with making more explicit the criterion setting out exceptional circumstances, I 

am concerned that ITT assessment might be used to reduce numbers entitled rather than 

reflect accurately a person's ability to use public transport safely’. 

7) Need to consider public transport availability 

‘As we are a rural county often public transport is unavailable in isolated areas ’. 

‘Consideration should be given to families such as my own who live in rural areas without 

good transport links to anywhere let alone to their placement schools’. 

8) Concern regarding consideration of other children in family 

‘This would impact on our other child as she needs to be taken to school and collected’. 

9) Would prefer fewer criteria, with option to pay for service if wanted 

Page 15



4 

 

‘I would rather see a system open to all SEN students, with the option of payment if you wish 

to access it’. 

 

Proposal 2: Increasing the current post-16 transport contribution from £370 to £608 (the 2015 

cost of a bus Freedom ticket). 

A. Do you understand this proposal? - The changes that are proposed have been clearly 

explained 

 

 

79% of respondents 

agreed or strongly 

agreed that the changes 

had been clearly 

explained. 

 

B. In your opinion, how might the increased contribution towards travel support for 16-19 

year old students with SEND impact on your own family / other families 

Comment or concern Number % 

Concern about coping (as a family with a YP with SEND) 10 29  

The increase is very large / unreasonable 10 29  

Concern about families experiencing financial pressures 8 23  

SEND children have additional expenses 6 17  

The proposal is fair 5 14  

YP may not access appropriate post-16 provision 3 9  

Unfair as often no local SEN provision so parents have no choice  2 6  

Would like monthly DD payments / concern about one payment 1 3  
 

Examples of statements 

1) Concern about coping (as a family with a YP with SEND) 

‘Will negatively affect families of young people with SEN who already have massive financial and 

practical constraints/ challenges on their lives’. 

‘This increase is unjust and doesn't consider the additional emotional stress that you will be 

placing on families. This could impact whether our child now attends Further Education due to this 

additional cost.  If that would be the case, how are we going to cope with no respite?  How is our 

child going to cope with no independence away from us?’ 

Page 16



5 

 

2) The increase is very large / unreasonable 

‘I have no idea how I would afford this enormous increase.  I was expecting to pay £370 and the 

increase is huge’. 

This is a 62.3% increase in contribution per student. This is ridiculously above the rate of inflation 

and wage inflation.   

3) Concern about families experiencing financial pressures 

‘It will increase the stress within in our family to find the extra income when family budget is 

stretched to the limit’. 

‘This would impact on our tight budget. It would also impact on quality of life for our children’. 

4) SEND children have additional expenses 

‘It will be another large expense to meet as caring for a SEND individual is already costly, taking 

into account equipment, extra laundry and special food requirements etc and budgeting for the 

large expense required to have a vehicle made wheelchair accessible, even with Motability’. 

5) The proposal is fair 

‘It will make the system fairer for all families involved with education as most families have to 

make a contribution or pay in full for transport costs. This should be the case for all families’. 

‘I think it is fair, as low income families will still get help, but average-income families will be 

expected to pay the same as average-income families without SEND children’. 

6) ‘YP may not access appropriate post-16 provision 

My daughter could not access appropriate further education’. 

7) Unfair as often no local SEN provision so parents have no choice 

‘It is unfair that my child cannot attend school locally because there is NO school that meets his 

needs any nearer yet you penalise me for that by making us pay. Parents with children in 

mainstream schools and colleges have the choice to attend school locally, many chose not to so 

they have Freedom pass for them to travel’. 

Suggestion 

‘…although the parents themselves may not qualify according to your criteria for 'low income', the 

outlay of £608 may present another financial commitment that is hard to maintain.  On the other 

hand, there may well be parents who can afford over and above the £608 suggested contribution 

and would be willing to pay considerably more.  However these options are not explored as a flat 

fee is being proposed’. 

ESCC Response: the actual cost of transport to post-16 provision for young people with SEND 

varies enormously depending on the nature of their SEND and the distance they need to travel to 

get to their suitable placement. Parents and carers do not have any control over either of these 

factors. It is therefore considered unfair to penalise families as a result of the circumstances they 

face. The upper level of payment is considered a fair contribution for all families which are not low 

income, and in every case this will still not meet the full costs. In addition, this suggestion is not 

feasible due to the costly administrative process which would be required to implement it. 

Page 17



6 

 

Proposal 3: Introducing a 50% rate of contribution for low income families, at £304 

A. Do you understand this proposal? - The changes that are proposed have been clearly 

explained 

 

 

75% of respondents 

agreed or strongly 

agreed that the changes 

had been clearly 

explained. 

 

B. In your opinion, how might the introduction of a contribution towards travel support for 16-

19 year old students with SEND from low income families impact on your own family / 

other families 

Comment or concern Number % 

Concern about coping (as a family with a YP with SEND) 8 23  

Concern about families experiencing financial pressures 8 23  

YP may not access appropriate post-16 provision 6 17  

The increase is very large / unreasonable 6 17  

SEND children have additional expenses 4 11  

Proposal is fair 3 9  

Would like monthly DD payments / concern about one payment 1 3  
 

Examples of statements 

1) Concern about coping (as a family with a YP with SEND) 

‘It is WRONG that SEND 16-18 year-olds who are in GOVERNMENT-MANDATED education will 

have to pay this charge - ESPECIALLY those from low-income families’. 

‘These proposed changes are hitting the most vulnerable people in our society, and will contribute 

to making our already difficult lives steadily worse rather than better’. 

2) Concern about families experiencing financial pressures 

‘I’m on the carer’s allowance of £2500. We would have to go without food and electric’.  

3) YP may not access appropriate post-16 provision 

‘It will mean families will probably have to withdraw their children from education - will have to 

make decisions about feeding everyone or paying for transport’. 

Page 18



7 

 

4) The increase is very large / unreasonable 

‘we live miles away from the school and I couldn’t find as a single parent this additional cost. I 

already maintain all her equipment at home, an electric ceiling hoist, car, electric chair, electric 

bath, electric toilet. How the hell would I find more money’. 

‘If families are on low income, then £304 will still be a significant outlay for them’. 

5) SEND children have additional expenses 

‘As a parent unable to work as other parents do it is hard to make ends meet. Young people with 

disabilities cost so much more than their peers’. 

6) Proposal is fair 

‘It should level the responsibilities that all families should have in transporting their children to 

school’. 

 

Proposal 4: Introducing an annual contribution for pre-school SEND travel assistance at the 

same rates as post-16 travel (£608 / £304) 

A. Do you understand this proposal? - The changes that are proposed have been clearly 

explained 

 

 

74% of respondents 

agreed or strongly 

agreed that the changes 

had been clearly 

explained. 

 

B. In your opinion, how might the introduction of a contribution towards travel support for 

pre-school children with SEND impact on your own family / other families 

Comment or concern Number % 

Concern about families experiencing financial pressures 7 20  

Increase is very large / unreasonable 5 14  

Does not affect our family (no other comments) 5 14  

Child may not access appropriate pre-school provision 4 11  

Proposal is fair 4 11  

Will affect families without a car 1 3  
 

Page 19



8 

 

Examples of statements 

1) Concern about families experiencing financial pressures 

‘I would imagine the impact will be significant, requiring them to budget in other areas of life’. 

‘This proposal is deeply offensive to me as the parent and main carer of a child with a disability 

and special educational needs, and will directly impact the budgets and the ability of families with 

disabled children, to provide for and care for their children’. 

2) Increase is very large / unreasonable 

‘This is a huge increase. I do not understand why in order to make savings you need to target the 

most vulnerable in our society’. 

‘I think it’s unacceptable to make parents of pre-school children to pay anything. I think it will 

impact greatly on families financially’. 

3) Does not affect our family (no other comments) 

‘All our children are above pre-school age’. 

4) Child may not access appropriate pre-school provision 

‘It will not be affordable and may put parents off sending their child with SEN for preschool 

education, causing lack of progress, further disadvantage and missed educational opportunities ’. 

‘It will affect families of children with SEND who do not have a car. It will affect the ability of the 

family to access support and pre-school socialisation and learning for their child’. 

5) Proposal is fair 

‘Families of children with pre-school children should be made to pay.  If I was a family with a 

mainstream child I would have to take them to nursery or other myself.  I would not expect travel 

to be paid for by the Government or other for my child.  I took my child to nursery (even with no 

sleep at night) and then school until he was 12 years old’. 

 

Respondent equalities information 

 71% (25) stated that they were the parent, carer or family member of a child or young person 

who may be impacted by these changes 

 17% (6) stated that their family would qualify as low income, i.e. would meet the free school 

meals criteria 

 3% (1) identified themselves as a child or young person who may be impacted by these 

changes – which does not match the given age responses 

 3% (1) was a practitioner who works with families which may be impacted by the changes 

 80% female (most likely to be mothers of children with SEND), only 14% male, 6% preferred 

not to say 

 Ages ranged from 22 to 60, with 14% not providing their age 

 83% white British, with the remainder not answering or preferring not to say 

 11% (4 people) identified as disabled as set out in the Equality Act 2010 

 Responses matched the areas of high population in the south and middle of the county, with 

fewer than expected responses from the north of East Sussex.  

Page 20



9 

 

 

 

Page 21



10 

 

The following FAQs were provided to respondents as part of the information with the consultation: 

Consultation on Discretionary Transport Consultation 

Frequently Asked Questions 
 

 

Q. Why is the Council proposing these cuts, which may cause some young people to struggle to get 

to sixth form or college? 

 

A. The Council is facing continuing reductions in budgets from central government, and all services 

which are not statutory are now being reluctantly considered for reductions in provision. 

 

 

Q. Is school attendance now compulsory until a child / young person reaches 18 years (with Raising 

of the Participation Age or RPA)? If that’s the case shouldn’t help with transport between 16 and 18 

years a statutory requirement for the Council? 

 

A. There has been no change to the statutory school age, so although there is an expectation that 

young people will remain in education or training after the age of 16, there is no legislation requiring 

them to do so.  

 

 

Q. How is ‘Low Income Family’ defined? 

 

A. We use the same criteria as for free school meals for younger students – currently this receipt by 

the parent/ carer or young person of any of the following benefits: 

 Income Support  

 Income-based Jobseekers Allowance  

 Income-related Employment and Support Allowance  

 Support under Part VI of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999  

 The Guaranteed element of State Pension Credit  

 Child Tax Credit only, provided your annual household income (as assessed by HM Revenue 

& Customs) does not exceed £16,190. 

 During the initial roll out of the benefit, Universal Credit 

 

 

Q. What other support is available to families on low income or vulnerable post-16 students? 

 

A. The Council will continue to fund subsidies for transport (details) and the most vulnerable can also 

access the Education Funding Agency (EFA) 16-19 bursaries. These national bursaries are managed 

by sixth forms and colleges, and are intended to provide the necessary financial support to those 

students from the lowest income households. Where transport costs have been identified as a 

specific barrier to participation, the bursary can be used to help meet these costs. The 16 to 19 

Bursary fund, has two parts, a discretionary bursary and a vulnerable bursary. 

Page 22

https://www.gov.uk/16-to-19-education-financial-support-for-students#to-19-bursary-fund


11 

 

In order to be eligible for the vulnerable element of the 16 to 19 Bursary Fund, the student would 

have to fall into one of the defined categories, which are:  

 in or recently left local authority care 

 getting Income Support or Universal Credit in their own name  

 disabled and getting both Employment and Support Allowance (ESA), and either Disability 

Living Allowance (DLA) or Personal Independence Payment (PIP) in their own name 

If they do not fall into one of the above categories they could apply for a discretionary bursary.  

Institutions set their own criteria for discretionary bursaries. Student services can tell potential 

students about their criteria and any evidence needed. 

 

 

Q. My child currently receives a taxi, minibus (or Personal Travel Budget) to get to college / nursery 

due to their SEN or disability. Will this continue next year? 

 

A. The changes to eligibility for post-16 students with SEND will be for new starters only from 

September 2016, although the Council will continue to review all cases regularly and support may be 

ceased or altered if your circumstances change. 

 

 

Q. Will the proposed increases to the post-16 contribution to SEND travel support affect everyone or 

just new starters in September 2016? 

 

A. If approved, the proposed increase of the annual contribution from £370 to £608, and the 

introduction of a £304 contribution for students from low income families (who are currently 

exempt) will be for all students (post-16 or pre-school) receiving SEND travel assistance from 

September 2016. 

 

 

Q. What happens if our family can’t, or won’t pay the contribution? 

 

A. The Council will allow the payment of the £608 or £304 in six equal instalments of £101.33 or 

£50.67 (one at the start of each half term). Payments can be made electronically over the phone or 

by BACS, and paper forms can be used if necessary. If this is not paid, we will try and negotiate with 

the family; however if no adequate explanation is given then we will reluctantly need to stop the 

provision of transport as a last resort until the situation is resolved.  Post-16 students may be able to 

access the following sources of financial help to make the contribution: 

 Disability Living Allowance for the young person 

 Other benefits claimed by the young person themselves 

 Education Funding Agency (EFA) 16-19 bursaries  

 Grants for Individuals available via the ESCC Funding Team  – many of which are targeted at 

young people with disabilities 

 Other funding via the Directory of Social Change, available in libraries 

 

 

Page 23

https://www.gov.uk/16-to-19-education-financial-support-for-students#to-19-bursary-fund
https://new.eastsussex.gov.uk/community/funding/
https://e-library.eastsussex.gov.uk/cgi-bin/spydus.exe/ENQ/OPAC/BIBENQ/5859357?QRY=CTIBIB%3c%20IRN(1641900)&QRYTEXT=The%20guide%20to%20grants%20for%20individuals%20in%20need


12 

 

 

 

 

Q. How were these figures decided? 

 

A. £608 is the current cost of an annual Freedom Pass (a bus ticket for children and young people at 

school or college) and this is therefore considered to be a fair contribution to the total cost of SEND 

travel support provided by the Council – which is on average over £7,000 per child per year. 

 

 

Q. How much will families with pre-school children receiving travel support be expected to pay? 

 

A. The same - £608, or £304 per year if low income. Families with a child with significant disabilities 

should be able to claim Disability Living Allowance (DLA) for children which should help to fund this 

contribution. The Council may consider a pro-rata reduction according to the family’s circumstances, 

if a child at nursery is receiving transport for only one or two days a week.  

 

 

Q. How is the distance to school or college measured (regarding the 3 mile criteria)?  

 

A. The measurement of the “statutory walking distance” is not necessarily the shortest distance by 

road. It is measured by the shortest route along which a child, accompanied as necessary, may walk 

with reasonable safety. As such, the route measured may include footpaths, and other pathways, as 

well as recognised roads. This is how all local authorities measure distance to school. 

  

 

Q. What is the definition of ‘reasonable’ distance that I may be expected to take my child to their 

pick up point? 

 

A.  This will depend to some extent on your family’s circumstances and availability of a vehicle; but 

we would expect this to be 2 miles or less if your child’s needs have met the SEND travel criteria. 

 

 

Q. What will the level of parent/carer involvement be in putting forward cases to the panel? 

 

A. All information should be submitted in the application, which will include new questions for 

September 2016 applications.  If there is not sufficient information in the application, parent/carers 

will be asked for more, for example, their availability to drop off/pick up their child at a pick-up point 

am or pm etc.  The Council will also gather other evidence from relevant professionals who know the 

child/young person and their family and from the most recent SEN Statement or EHC Plan.  

 

 

 

 

Page 24

https://www.gov.uk/disability-living-allowance-children/overview


13 

 

Q. Who will actually be making the ‘exceptional circumstances’ decisions? 

 

A. Decisions will be made by the ISEND Travel Governance Panel, which chaired by a senior manager 

from Children’s Services and is composed of officers from the SEND casework team, SEND transport 

(Children’s Services), and the Transport Team (which manage the transport contracts). A Transport 

co-ordinator will present each individual case to the panel based on the documentation, which 

includes information from the family and additional information from professionals who understand 

the needs to the child and family circumstances. The panel will make a two part decision - firstly 

whether the case meets the eligibility criteria, and then if so, the type of travel assistance provided.  

The Council wants to ensure that within the context of reducing resources that we provide support 

to the most vulnerable young people who would not otherwise be able to travel to their educational 

placements. As a result if agreed, this proposal will mean that fewer families will receive support. 

 

 

Q. Who will ‘sign off’ the assessment regarding Independent Travel Training (ITT) readiness?  

 

A. ESCC has commissioned a specialist ITT Team employed locally via National Star College in 

Cheltenham, which uses the established ‘LIFT Training’ programme.  LIFT is a multi-award winning 

programme, nationally recognised as an outstanding provider of travel training, based on intensive 

tailored 1:1 support.  The first step is assessment of the safety of both the route and the potential 

ability of the young person to undertake the journey by one of the ITT team.  If either of these is a 

concern, travel training is not recommended and this decision is passed to the panel.  If assessment 

is positive, an 8-12 week programme follows with a high proportion of contact time on the young 

person’s specific journey until they are assessed as being competent lone travellers.  LIFT also 

involves the parents or carers with weekly home visits, as well as school or college contacts, in order 

to improve the level of support for the student and improve outcomes.   

If circumstances changed, i.e. the young person changes school or moves house, transport will be 

reinstated if needed, with further ITT support for the new route as appropriate.  Only once the YP is 

signed off as a successful independent traveller on the home to school/college route will approved 

travel support be ceased, and an 8 week free bus/train pass will be issued. In cases where the ITT 

team do not sign the young person off, travel support will continue. 

 

 

Q. How does the offer of a Personal Travel Budget (PTB) work as part of this proposal?  

 

A. Transport eligibility is assessed for new applications and then reviewed annually. If travel support 

is approved, a PTB may represent the most cost-effective option to allow a young person to get to 

their post-16 placement (a PTB is a travel allowance paid direct to the family).  Having considered 

each case on an individual basis, and if a suitable vehicle is available, the Council may offer a family a 

PTB rather than transport if this is the most cost-effective travel solution.  Post-16 transport support 

is discretionary, and this approach would ensure that the young person is able to get to post-16 

provision whilst allowing the Council to support a greater number of families within the limited 

budget. 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Consultation with ESPaCC            

 

East Sussex Parent and Carers' Council (ESPaCC) is a group which represents carers and 

families of children or young people aged 0-25 with any additional need, in order to influence 

services affecting and relevant to the children and young people. 

 

Children’s Services contacted ESPACC as soon as the decision was taken to run the 

consultation. There has been a two way conversation which resulted in additional issues 

being added to the Frequently Asked Questions document which was published with the 

consultation paperwork, and the wording for the post-16 SEND transport policy being altered 

regarding the use of Motability vehicles. 

 

ESPaCC promoted involvement in the consultation via their website from June to 

September.  

 

Feedback from Parents’ Event 

ESPaCC organised a parents’ event at which an Assistant Director and the Project Manager 

gave a presentation, answered questions and noted concerns. The event was attended by 9 

parents, and 5 ESPaCC representatives (3 of whom were also parents of children or young 

people with SEND). 

 

The group asked that Lead Member specifically consider the following issue common to 

many families with a child with SEND: 

 

 

Parents and carers of a child or young person with SEND often have numerous 

additional costs for equipment, necessary trips and therapy, etc, which are not 

covered by the provision of Disability Living or Carer’s Allowance. Usually one parent 

is unable to work due to the additional commitments. Often families are not ‘low 

income’ but have very little disposable income after essentials. 

 

 

Other concerns or suggestions which were noted at the meeting with ESCC responses are 

detailed below. 

 

 

 

Concern or suggestion 

 

Response 

1. The Council may impose similar 

reductions in support for statutory 

(school-aged) children as a result 

of continuing and further cuts to 

budgets. 

 

The group were reassured that this was not the 

case; ESCC are obliged to provide free transport as 

appropriate for eligible statutory aged children. 

Page 27

Appendix 3



2 

 

Concern or suggestion 

 

Response 

2. The expectation that a family will 

use a Motability vehicle if they 

have one for their child is unfair. 

The group were informed that the wording in the 

draft policy has been altered to remove this specific 

expectation. 

3. It will be very difficult for the 

Council to assess whether a 

parent is available to help with 

transporting a young person to 

post-16 provision, as there are so 

many reasons why this may be 

the case (not just employment), 

and the parent or carer may give 

a false answer. 

This was acknowledged to be true, and the reasons 

understood. All the Council can do is explain why 

the most deserving families are being prioritised for 

support and rely on given answers (although 

professionals working with the family may also be 

asked for a summary of the family circumstances if 

closely involved). 

4. One parent wanted the Council to 

provide an annual statement for 

each family giving the costs of 

their placement and transport.   

 

This would require admin time is unlikely to be of 

value to every family. However, It was agreed that it 

was worth exploring as a new IT management 

system is launched later this year, and it may be 

that cost information could in future be included in 

EHCPs and available as part of annual reviews. 

5. Improved provision of suitable 

SEN placements closer to home 

would improve the transport 

situation 

 

ESCC has conducted a Capacity Review with all 

special schools in East Sussex, and are now 

analysing the findings to establish where it would be 

possible to increase placement numbers to meet 

demand. Longer term initiatives in this area include 

the new College Liaison Officer’s work with colleges 

in association with Adult Social Care to explore the 

extent of the college offer to YP with SEND. In 

addition the LA is considering the potential of Free 

Schools, particularly focussing on provision for YP 

with autism, to respond to need in specific areas. 

6. Suggestion that the Council own 

their own taxi company to save on 

costs, as the prices seemed very 

high.  

The CET Transport Team has investigated this as 

part of the transport hub implementation and 

contracted transport is by far the most cost 

effective. It is not the price we pay for transport 

which is the issue but instead the demand for 

specialist arrangements, managing parental 

expectations, the mileage travelled, etc. If the 

Council managed our own transport, it would need 

to increase the team to manage drivers, assistants 

and the fleet and procure vehicles at a time when 

budgets are reducing. In the case of school 

transport, the vehicles would only be used for 2 – 3 

hrs a day (and unused for the remaining time) and 

few staff would be willing to accept these hours. 

 

Page 28



1 

 

 

Travel assistance for post-16 young 
people with special educational needs 
and disabilities (SEND) 

 

 

Last updated:  Xxx 2015         

 
This document details the ESCC policy regarding assistance with travel for 
post-16 students with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) who 
are continuing in education.  This policy takes effect from September 2016.  
 
Changes made since this was included in the consultation are made in RED 
 
1. Background information 
 
Local authorities do not have a statutory duty to provide free transport to school or 
college for students who are above compulsory school age; however ESCC remains 
committed to providing support for young people with SEND who demonstrate 
exceptional circumstances regarding the journey to a suitable placement. It is very 
important that students and their parents or carers consider the journey when 
making decisions about post-16 options, as the majority of cases will have to arrange 
and pay for transport themselves. Student support services at schools and colleges 
will be able to provide information on other sources of funding for young people. 
 
This policy applies to all students with SEND aged 16 or over (Year 12 upwards) 
who are making a new application for travel assistance from September 2016. All 
Year 11 students moving into a post-16 placement are required to apply to be 
considered for continuing support in Year 12, even if they are staying in the same 
school. Those continuing on a post-16 course starting pre-September 2016 who are 
already in receipt of travel assistance will be supported under existing arrangements 
for the duration of their course if their circumstances remain unchanged.  
 
All students who are assessed as eligible for travel assistance are required to pay an 
annual contribution (adjusted annually) to the County Council towards the cost of 
their provision, unless they are assessed as being from a low income family, in which 
case the proposal is currently that half the full contribution will be required, though 
this too will be reviewed annually. By receiving a contribution, the Council is able to 
support a greater number of young people to access post-16 education. The 
contribution is the same amount regardless of the type or frequency of travel 
assistance provided. 
 
Changes to this policy which are assessed by the Council as likely to have an impact 
on current and prospective students (in the preceding academic year) will be notified 
at the earliest opportunity to those students affected.  Such changes may include, 
but are not limited to, changes required by the impact of further cost saving 

Page 29

Appendix 4

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/


2 

 

requirements placed upon the Council which may result in increased contributions 
from students (where relevant) and further limitations on this discretionary provision. 
 
2. Eligibility for SEND travel assistance 
 
The Council recognises that some students with learning difficulties or disabilities 
may not be able to travel to school or college independently or may not yet be ready 
to do so.   The council expects that where possible in these circumstances parents 
or carers should be responsible for making travel arrangements. This could include 
support from their broader family networks. 
 
In exceptional cases, students with learning difficulties or disabilities, or their parents 
or carers may apply for travel assistance. Each case will be considered by the 
council’s Post 16 Travel Panel, and travel support will usually only be considered 
further if all the following criteria are satisfied:  
 
1. The student must be attending an appropriate funded, full time course at the 

nearest or most accessible school or college to their home. If an alternative 
suitable course is offered by an FE provider nearer to their home, the student will 
not be eligible for support. 

2. The Council will fund transport to a college placement up to the academic year in 
which a young person reaches a maximum of 21 years of age. 

3. The student must be travelling over three miles to their nearest appropriate 

provider, unless their learning difficulties or disability means they are unable to 

travel this distance either walking or on public transport (specific and up to date 

evidence from relevant health and/or educational appropriate professionals 

supporting the student will be required to assist the decision) and there is not a 

parent/carer who could make themselves available to take them. 

If a student is able to be considered for travel assistance, factors the Council will 
take into account when determining whether a student is eligible for assistance may 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. The student is unable to travel to their placement by public transport, either 

unaccompanied or accompanied by a responsible adult (specific and up to date 
evidence from relevant health and/or educational appropriate professionals 
supporting the student will be required). 

2. The family does not have a suitable vehicle, which may include a Motability 
vehicle, for their transportation to school or college. If a Motability vehicle is 
provided for the benefit of the young person, there is an expectation that this 
would be used to get them to their placement. 

3. The length or complexity of the journey and whether parents or carers could 
reasonably be expected to provide transport or act as a chaperone themselves. If 
parents/carers or other family members are not available this should be fully 
explained in the application. 

4. The student has been assessed by the Authority as requiring an escort, or as a 
’high needs’ case. 

5. Other circumstances relevant to each case. 

Page 30



3 

 

3. Annual contribution 
 
In all cases where assistance is agreed, a contribution towards to the cost of travel is 
required. The charge in 2016/2017 is £608 and payment can be made in 
instalments. Transport will not be arranged until payment in advance is made. If 
subsequent payments are late, transport will be suspended or even cancelled.  
 
Low income families will be asked to contribute £304 per academic year.  Low 
income is defined as parents/carers or students in receipt of one of the following: 
 

 Income Support* 

 Income-based Job Seekers Allowance* 

 Income related Employment and Support Allowance* 

 Support received under part six of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999. 

 Guarantee element of State Pension Credit* 

 Child Tax Credit (but not also Working Tax Credit unless in receipt of the 
maximum level) based on an income of £16,190 or less* 

*Correct at the time of consultation 
 
The annual contribution level will be reviewed on an annual basis. 
 
4. Provision 
 
Each applicant who is determined as requiring assistance will be risk-assessed for 
their immediate needs and the most cost-effective suitable mode of travel support 
will be arranged. At the same time, each will be assessed for suitability for our 
intensive Independent Travel Training (ITT) programme, which can provide a young 
person with the skills and confidence for greater independence in their adult life. A 
young person who is ready for travel training may be offered temporary travel 
assistance until they have ‘graduated’ as independent travellers on their journey to 
school or college, at which point they will be given free bus or train travel for a limited 
fixed period. For students who can access public transport, a journey time of up to 75 
minutes each way is considered reasonable according to national guidance for best 
practice. 
 
Where an applicant is determined as eligible for SEND travel assistance, the type of 
travel assistance provided will be the most cost-effective available to the Council at 
the time, appropriate to the student’s needs. This may be one of the following: 

a) A free place on a contract or school bus 
b) A Personal Travel Budget (PTB) 
c) A taxi 
d) Another type of transport / assistance to be determined on individual 

circumstance; for example, a parent may be expected to transport their child 
part of the journey in order to get to a suitable pick up point (this might be a 
bus stop or a taxi pick up point)  

 
Please note that taxis will usually only be provided in the most exceptional cases, 
and for students with severe disabilities and/or the most complex health needs. 
 

Page 31



4 

 

Limitations for travel assistance 

 Students will usually only be transported to and from a school or college at 
their published school start and school finish times. This may therefore require 
the student to arrive earlier than the start of their first session or wait at the 
end of their timetabled day until other young people are ready for shared 
transport. 

 The Council does not provide travel assistance to work experience 
placements, medical appointments or other off-site visits; responsibility for this 
remains with the parents or carers, or school or college as appropriate. 

 Reimbursements for travel costs incurred before application cannot be made. 
 
5. Review of eligibility 

 
1. Any applicant for whom travel assistance has been agreed by the travel panel 

must apply again each academic year. It should not be assumed that the same 
form of travel assistance will be agreed for a further period.  

2. In every case, travel assistance will be reviewed following a house move, change 
in placement or course, or a change in the student’s needs (condition, medication 
or equipment) or any other change in circumstances which may be relevant.  

3. Following an incident on school or college transport, it may be necessary to stop 
provision until a further risk assessment has been carried out to make sure that 
the student can be transported safely. If this occurs, parents or carers remain 
responsible for transport and costs until the situation has been resolved. 

4. Appeals against a decision to refuse transport can be made to the Transport and 
Student Support Panel. This is a small panel of elected members who will decide 
whether, in the circumstances of the individual case, to exercise their discretion 
and allow support either in whole or in part. For a transport appeal form and 
further information, please contact the Principal Admissions and Transport Officer  
on 0300 330 9472 

Page 32



1 

 

Scrutiny Board comments and response     

Discretionary Transport Scrutiny Review Board – 15 October 2015 

1. SCRUTINY REVIEW BOARD MEETING  

1.1 At its meeting on 21 September 2015, the Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee appointed 
a Review Board to consider proposed savings on the following two areas of discretionary 
spend on Home To School Transport: 

 Travel support for post-16 students from Low Income Families (LIF) and FE link 
transport; and 

 Travel support for students with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) 

1.2 A summary of the key points made by the Board at its meeting on 15 October 2015 are set 
out below.    

 

2. REVIEW BOARD COMMENTS WITH RESPONSE 

No. Comment Response 

1 The Board were presented with a table setting 

out a number of potential risks, impacts and 

mitigations.   One potential risk which the 

Board discussed in detail was the outcome 

that the proposed savings may deter students 

with SEND from continuing in Post-16 

education.   The Board felt that the mitigation 

to this risk did not produce a significant 

reduction and therefore asked whether further 

consideration could be given to how this risk 

might be reduced further and if not, whether 

the risk was worth taking. 

The Board were considering the original risk 

table presented as an Appendix for the report 

to Led Member on 8 June. Since that time and 

over the consultation period, the level of 

perceived risk following mitigation has been 

reduced from 4 x 4 (impact x likelihood) to 4 x 

3 in Appendix 9 to reflect the fact that the 

mitigations are now considered to be more 

effective, particularly as: 

 Post-16 providers will have access to EFA 

bursary funding which can be used to 

support SEND students who no longer 

meet the SEND transport criteria 

 ESCC is developing a post-16 policy to 

inform work with families of post-16 

children with SEND, which will help to 

manage expectations around a young 

person’s educational pathway. This is 

likely to reduce the number of SEND 

transport applications which are submitted 

and/or rejected. 

It should also be noted that the risk measure 

methodology is not a scientific measure and is 

not for example take into account the numbers 

of young people likely to be impacted. There is 

still a risk that some CYP may be affected, 

however we hope that these numbers will be 

low. 

2 The Board asked whether consideration could 

be given to increasing the Post 16 SEND 

The amount suggested for the higher rate was 

£750. A calculation shown in Appendix 1 

Page 33

Appendix 5



2 

 

No. Comment Response 

transport contribution to an amount higher 

than the one set out in the proposals.   This 

increased contribution could be used to lower 

the proposed introduction of a 50% rate of 

contribution to low income families who have 

post 16 children with SEND. 

section 6 demonstrated that an increase to 

£750 would mean that low income families 

would need to be charged a reduced rate of 

£271 per year (to the nearest pound). 

It is recommended that this increase / 

decrease is not taken forward as it would 

negatively impact on the ‘squeezed middle’ 

who may only have a household income 

slightly higher than £17k/year. Also, £608 has 

been suggested as it is the same cost as a 

Freedom bus pass and is therefore easier to 

explain to families. 

3 One risk identified in the papers before the 

Board related to ‘Charges impact on families 

with pre-school children with SEND’.   The 

associated impact states, ’Some families do 

not take up placements due to cost (£608 or 

£304 per year).’  The Board asked the 

Department to give further consideration to the 

potential impact of this risk and in particular 

the impact this might have on the key goal of 

school readiness.      

It is very difficult to assess the impact on the 

very small number (8-10 per year) of pre-

school children offered special transport of the 

introduction of the charge as we do not 

currently assess for low income. A key 

mitigation is to improve signposting towards 

additional benefits, such as DLA for the child, 

and this key mitigation is now listed in the 

Equality Impact Assessment. Most of these 

children are extremely high needs and the 

practitioners who work with them advise them 

to apply for transport only when there is no 

other option for getting the child to nursery. 

 

Page 34



1 

 

EFA bursaries and other sources of financial support            

 

1. Education Funding Agency (EFA) Student Bursaries 

Students between the ages of 16 and 19 years may be eligible to receive a 16-19 bursary from the 

EFA Student Bursary Support Service. The bursaries offer support to young people in one of the 

defined vulnerable groups (those who do not have access to parental support and those receiving 

certain benefits in their own right). It also enables institutions to make discretionary awards to those 

young people they assess as facing the greatest financial barriers to participation. Education 

institutions are responsible for managing both types of bursary. 

There are 2 types of 16 to 19 bursaries:  

 a vulnerable bursary of up to £1,200 a year for young people in one of the defined vulnerable 

groups; young people in care, care leavers, those on Income Support or receiving Universal 

Credit in place of Income Support, disabled young people (in receipt of both Employment 

Support Allowance and Disability Living Allowance or Personal Independence Payment) 

 discretionary bursaries that institutions award to meet individual needs. For example, 

transport, meals, books and equipment 

Young people in the defined vulnerable groups are usually living apart from their parents/carers, 

so they can get social security benefits in their own right. Total household income must not exceed 

£25,000 per annum, and they must have been resident in the UK for at least 3 years. 

 

Institutions are responsible for verifying that young people meet the criteria for vulnerable student 

bursaries and they are applied for after enrolment (whereas ESCC transport is applied for up to 5 

months in advance). Discretionary bursaries may be awarded if a student needs financial help but 

does not qualify for a vulnerable student bursary. The education or training provider decides how 

much is awarded and what it is used for. 

Bursary payments are made directly into student bank accounts only. 

 

2. Allocation of EFA bursary fund to ESCC colleges and sixth forms 

To be eligible for an allocation of the 16 to 19 discretionary Bursary Fund, an institution must be 

publicly funded and subject to inspection by a public body that assures quality, such as Ofsted. 

The institution must also be either: 

 funded by Education Funding Agency directly or via a local authority  

 funded or co-financed by the European Social Fund, or  

 publicly funded and lead to a qualification (up to level 3) that is accredited by Ofqual or is 

pursuant to Section 96 of the Learning and Skills Act 2000 

 

As a result, 100% of East Sussex pupils attending an academy, maintained school sixth form or FE 

college would if eligible be able to apply to both the vulnerable student and discretionary part of the 

EFA bursary funding. 

 

 

 

Page 35

Appendix 6



2 

 

For most institutions, the bursary allocation for the 2015/2016 academic year was calculated on:  

 the number of students that received £30 a week EMA in the 2009/2010 academic year, as a 

percentage of the 2010/2011 funded student numbers  

 this percentage has been applied to institutions’  2015 to 2016 allocated student numbers and 

multiplied by the 2015 to 2016 standard funding rate of £298 

For example: if the percentage is 40%, and there are 500 allocated student numbers in an institution, 

that would mean an allocation of 200 x £298. 

Children’s Services do not have access to the figures for EFA bursary allocation to FE colleges, 

academies with sixth forms and other vocational providers, but distribute the fund to East Sussex 

school sixth forms and special schools, whose 2015/16 allocations are shown below. The following 

schools receive the indicated amounts into their budgets and are then responsible for making 

decisions on which students will be supported, and by how much: 

Name of establishment 16 - 19 Bursary Fund 

Uckfield CTC £25,083 

Heathfield CC £27,327 

Uplands CC £11,669 

Grove Park £4,638 

The Lindfield £500 

Hazel Court £3,623 

Total £72,840 
 

3. SEND Students receiving travel support and EFA funding 

As explained in Section 2, all 16-19 year old students attending maintained schools, academies and 

FE colleges will be able to apply, if eligible, to both the vulnerable student and discretionary part of the 

EFA bursary funding. 

Also, students placed at independent and charitable schools by their local authorities, who meet the 

vulnerable student criteria are able to apply for an EFA vulnerable student bursary through the young 

person’s home authority. 

Of the 2014/15 cohort using ESCC SEND transport, 30 16-19 year olds were at independent or 

charitable institutions, mostly out of county, and would not be able to access the discretionary element 

of the EFA bursary fund. However, the vast majority of these young people are those with the most 

complex needs. Equivalent cases would therefore be likely to continue to be given ESCC transport 

under the revised policy, and would therefore have no need to apply for a bursary for travel costs.  

The institutions (for the 2014/15 cohort) were: 

 

 *St Mary's Wrestwood, East Sussex 

 *Chailey Heritage, East Sussex 

 *Headstart School, East Sussex 

  Broomhill Bank School, Kent 

 *RNIB New College, Worcestershire 

  Northease Manor, East Sussex 

 *St John's College, Brighton 

 *Woodlands Meed, West Sussex   

  Downs View Link College, Brighton 

 *Ingfield Manor School, Kent 

 *Valence School, Kent 

*all asterisked schools are registered with the EFA to receive vulnerable student bursaries 

Page 36



3 

 

4. Other sources of financial support for disadvantaged students include: 

 The national charity Turn2Us which has extensive information on benefits and grants for full-

time students 

 Grants for Individuals – many of which are targeted at young people with disabilities 

Grants for 

Individuals.doc
 

 the Directory of Social Change (available in libraries) 

 Other benefits claimed by the young person themselves, eg Employment Support Allowance 

(ESA) and Disability Living Allowance (DLA) 

It should be noted that Disability Living Allowance claimed for a child or young person is not included 

in a low income assessment, i.e. a family can receive DLA funding above the standard low income 

threshold and still qualify as low income, as DLA is intended for the benefit of the child or young 

person. 

Page 37

http://www.turn2us.org.uk/Your-Situation/Studying-(age-16-)
https://e-library.eastsussex.gov.uk/cgi-bin/spydus.exe/ENQ/OPAC/BIBENQ/5859357?QRY=CTIBIB%3c%20IRN(1641900)&QRYTEXT=The%20guide%20to%20grants%20for%20individuals%20in%20need


This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Response from Campaign for Better Transport          

 

 

 

 

 

Derrick Coffee, County Officer 

Campaign for Better Transport – East Sussex 

9 Mayfield Place Eastbourne, East Sussex BN22 8XJ  

01323 646866 derrick.coffee@talk21.com. 0795 1084436 

11th September, 2015. 

 
Dear Cllr Glazier 
Travel Support for post-16 and pre-school children with SEND  
I am sending you our comments on the current consultation on your proposals, outlined below: 

ESCC proposals are that: 

 We increase the level of contribution already made by families towards the total cost of travel 

support for their non-statutory-age child with SEND for everyone who is supported from 

September 2016. This includes both post-16 and pre-school age groups. 

 We reduce the Council’s spend on post-16 travel for young people with SEND by offering 

support to families in exceptional circumstances only, whilst striving to ensure that the most 

vulnerable continue to be able to attend their nearest suitable provision. A draft post-16 

SEND travel policy which incorporates revised criteria is included for consideration. This 

change would be introduced for new starters from September 2016. 

 
Our Comments: 
These relate to those students who may be able to benefit from Independent Travel Training (ITT) 
and also to the question of public transport availability, accessibility and affordability. 
 
With recurring pressures on budgets for all areas of transport infrastructure – with the exception of 
major capital road schemes – it is relevant to consider the benefits to communities that flow from good 
quality, comprehensive and affordable public transport supported by judicious use of public funds, 
including: 
 

 pump-priming measures which are judged to have a good chance of ‘taking off’ and becoming 
self supporting, and which: 

 support those without access to a car; 

 support the vulnerable; 

 underpin healthy lifestyles; 

 support local economies; 

 help children to develop independence through a good experience of public transport which 
could spawn a healthy habit throughout their lifetimes; 

 Are available to all.  
 
None of the above objectives are contentious and are even discernible in current policy, and 
significant numbers of journeys made by SEND students may in practice or theory be made by public 
transport services fulfilling those multiple objectives.  
 
The following obituary to a former transport planner in London (Redmond O’Neill) is a useful reminder 
that support for childrens’ transport can deliver economic and social equity benefits: 

 

'Of all the transport policies O’Neill implemented, the one he was possibly most proud of was the 
extension of free rail travel to the under 11s and free bus travel to the under 16s – a measure which at 

Page 39

Appendix 7

mailto:derrick.coffee@talk21.com
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/childrens-services/travelsupportpost16-pre-schoolsend


 2 

a stroke removed a major source of money worries and social exclusion for many thousands of 
London households in poverty'.  
 
This would also be true of continuing support for SEND related transport, alongside affordable fares 
and attractive ticket deals for all children and young adults, as are available in other areas of the UK. 
 
Approaching the problems from this angle, a more affordable public transport network – both bus and 
rail – could make a big difference to quality of life for many, delivering all the objectives listed above, 
plus: 

 Relief on hard pressed family budgets; 

 Reduced ‘education related’ (and other) car trips; 

 A more attractive market for transport operators, leading to more modern, accessible 
vehicles; 

 Better air quality and lower CO2 emissions; 

 More civilised, safer and attractive residential areas. 
 
The burden on revenue budgets is likely to be worsened by the wrong sort of capital investment which 
currently is skewed towards unhealthy and unsustainable modes of transport – predominantly the 
private car. This will increasingly be the first choice for those living close to major road schemes 
planned or currently under construction. Bus services will become unviable and communities difficult 
to serve with (likely) lower density car based developments, making life even more difficult for those 
with no access to a car, or who cannot afford or choose not to own one. 
 
Our suggestions: 

1. No change to the current levels of support; 
2. A dialogue with bus operators on the subject of reduced fares for the young (see attached 

summaries of current Stagecoach proposals in Carlisle and Liverpool: Why not in East 
Sussex?) ; 

3. Collaborative working between ESCC and Stagecoach to bring about increased uptake of bus 
use and enhancement of supported and commercial services for all, including those who are 
the focus of this consultation. 

4. Parking revenues to be allocated to supported public transport services and further 
enhancements to be funded through adoption of ‘workplace car parking levies’ as successful 
adopted in Nottingham with almost total acceptance and support from the population at large, 
including the business community. 

 
Yours Sincerely, 
 
Derrick Coffee. 
 
County Officer, Campaign for Better Transport, East Sussex. 
 
cc Rupert Clubb 
Cllr Pat Rodohan 
 
 
 
ESCC Response:  
 
Whilst the Council agrees that it would be beneficial to offer cheaper transport for 16-19 year 
old students and implement better public transport provision in the county, in the current 
financial environment, subsidising transport for young people is not feasible given the 
significant additional cost pressures this would place on the County Council. 
 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 40



 3 

 

Page 41



 4 

 

Page 42



Post-16 travel assistance: Survey of other local authority practice     

Web-based and networking research on post-16 transport offers resulted in comprehensive 

information for all 26 other county councils for SEND students. The information predominantly came 

from their webpages, but was also frequently hidden away in policy documents and is often relatively 

difficult to find for families or professionals (in fact some Councils appear to avoid promotion of their 

post-16 transport offer altogether). Since the original report this information has now been refreshed 

to present 2015/16 figures.  

Most county councils have increased their charges since 2014/15. 17 of the 26 councils now make a 

charge for those not assessed as low income, with 13 also requiring low income families to contribute. 

Somerset is currently free but is consulting on the introduction of a £675 charge from 2016 (equivalent 

to their bus pass). 

 

(a) Post-16 charge for SEND travel assistance for non-LIF / LIF students (2014/15) by county 

council 

 

Local Authority Students from             

Non-LIF 

Students from Low 

Income Families 

Buckinghamshire zero zero 

Cambridgeshire £160* zero 

Cumbria zero zero 

Derbyshire £360 £240 

Devon  £520 £260 

Dorset £485 £243 

Essex £900 £450 

Gloucestershire £456 £456 

Hampshire £525 zero 

Hertfordshire zero zero 

Kent zero zero 

Lancashire zero zero 

Leicestershire £546 zero 

Lincolnshire £418 £418 

Norfolk £480 £360 

N Yorks zero zero 

Northamptonshire £600 £300* 

Nottinghamshire zero zero 

Oxfordshire zero zero 

Somerset zero zero 

Staffordshire £550 £456 

Suffolk £570 £570 

Surrey £705 £705 

Warwickshire  £660 £330 

West Sussex £400 zero 

Worcestershire £547 £547 

*new for 2015/15 

 

 

 

Page 43

Appendix 8



(b) Comparison chart by county council 

 

Page 44



Risks for post-16 SEND students                           

Risk Impact 

Initial risk score (5 is 

high, 1 is low) 
Proposed mitigation 

Score following action    

to mitigate 

Impact 
Likeli- 

hood 
Result Impact 

Likeli- 

hood 
Result 

1. Increasing restrictions 

and travel charges for 

students with SEND may 

deter or prevent them 

from continuing in post-

16 education 

Increasing the numbers of 

NEETs, young people with 

SEND do not attend suitable 

post-16 provision due to lack or 

cost of transport.  

5 4 20 

Rolling communications plan to 

reach young people approaching 

the transition in good time to allow 

sensible post-16 choices without 

the assumption that transport will 

be provided. Work between 

SEND practitioners, schools and 

families in order to ensure that 

expectations of families are 

managed as appropriate. 

Provision of Independent Travel 

Training for students with SEND. 

Development of an ESCC policy 

on post-16 Education Health and 

Care Plans, which will support the 

management of expectations 

regarding suitable educational 

placements, and will therefore 

reduce the likelihood of transport 

requests being required/ declined. 

4 3 12 

2. Charges impact on 

families with pre-school 

children with SEND 

(£608 or £304 per year) 

Some families do not take up 

placements due to cost, with 

subsequent impact on child’s 

readiness for school 

3 2 6 

Alert families to potential benefits 

they may be entitled to, eg DLA  
3 1 3 

P
age 45

A
ppendix 9



Risk Impact 
Initial risk score (5 is 

high, 1 is low) 
Proposed mitigation 

Score following action    

to mitigate 

3. Changes have a 

negative impact on the 

wider family and welfare 

of the child or young 

person 

Some families could fall into 

crisis and in the most extreme 

cases this could result in a child 

needing to become looked after 

5 1 5 

Oversight by Governance Panel, 

close liaison with SEND 

practitioners and colleges 3 1 3 

4. Policy changes in SEND 

travel, e.g. pick up at 

start or end of day only, 

cause issues with safety 

The safety of vulnerable pupils 

could be impacted 
4 2 4 

Thorough risk assessments are 

undertaken, discussion and 

negotiation with colleges to clarify 

the terms of their provision 

2 1 2 

5. Parents of SEND 

students may produce a 

strong case for 

Independent provision if 

they feel that travel 

support to the named 

provider is limited 

Increase in placement provision 

costs 

2 3 6 

Good communication with 

practitioners and parents 

regarding the revised offer, and 

potential for independent travel 

training if appropriate.  

2 2 4 

6. A number of those 

affected by proposed 

changes are ESCC 

looked after children or 

care leavers 

ESCC do not meet our duty as 

corporate parents / transport 

costs are met via another 

budget (cost shunting) 

4 2 8 

The budget for LAC and care 

leaver transport (SEND students) 

to be managed via a LAC budget 

in order to ensure efficiency 

2 1 2 

7. Some parents may use 

legal processes to 

challenge decisions as 

well as the robustness of 

the consultation process 

Negative impact on staff time 

and ESCC costs 

4 3 12 

Robust legal advice, 

communications and consultation 

plan. Introduction of a specific and 

well-signposted post-16 SEND 

travel assistance policy 

3 2 6 

 

P
age 46



Page 1 of 24 

 

Equality Impact Assessment     

Strategy or Policy Template 

 

Name of the strategy or policy 

Reduction in the level of HTST support for pre-school and post-16 students with 
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 

 

 

File ref:       Issue No:       

Date of Issue: May 2015 Review date: October 2015 

 

Contents 

 

Part 1  The Public Sector Equality Duty and Equality Impact Assessments  (EIA) ..... 2 

Part 2 – Aims and implementation of the proposal, strategy or policy ........................... 5 

Part 3 – Methodology, consultation, data and research used to determine impact on 
protected characteristics. .............................................................................................. 9 

Part 4 – Assessment of impact .................................................................................... 10 

Part 5 – Conclusions and recommendations for decision makers ............................... 18 

Part 6 – Equality impact assessment action plan ........................................................ 21 

(a) 6.1 Accepted Risk ......................................................................................... 23 

 

 

 

Summer 2009 

 

Page 47

Appendix 10



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 2 of 24 

Part 1  The Public Sector Equality Duty and Equality Impact   
  Assessments  (EIA) 

 
1.1 The Council must have due regard to its Public Sector Equality Duty when making all 
decisions at member and officer level. An EIA is the best method by which the Council can 
determine the impact of  a proposal on equalities, particularly for major decisions. However, 
the level of analysis should be proportionate to the relevance of the duty to the service or 
decision. 
 
1.2 This is one of two forms that the County Council uses for Equality Impact 
Assessments, both of which are available on the intranet. This form is designed for 
any proposal, strategy or policy. The other form looks at services or projects. 
 
1.3 The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) 
The public sector duty is set out at Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. It  requires the 

Council, when exercising its functions, to have “due regard‟ to the need to 

 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited under the Act.  

 

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

 

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it. (see below for “protected characteristics” 

 
These are sometimes called equality aims. 
 

1.4 A “protected characteristic‟ is defined in the Act as:  

 age;  

 disability;  

 gender reassignment;  

 pregnancy and maternity;  

 race (including ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality)  

 religion or belief;  

 sex;  

 sexual orientation.  
 
Marriage and civil partnership are also a protected characteristic for the purposes of the duty 
to eliminate discrimination.  
 
The previous public sector equalities duties only covered race, disability and gender. 
 
1.5 East Sussex County Council also considers the following additional 
 groups/factors when carry out analysis: 

 Carers – A carer spends a significant proportion of their life providing unpaid support 
to family or potentially friends. This could be caring for a relative, partner or friend who 
is ill, frail, disabled or has mental health or substance misuse problems. [Carers at the 
Heart of 21stCentury Families and Communities, 2008] 

 Literacy/Numeracy Skills 

 Part time workers 
Page 48



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 3 of 24 

 Rurality  
 
1.6 Advancing equality (the second of the equality aims) involves: 
 

 Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected 
characteristic 

 

 Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are 
different from the needs of other people including steps to take account of disabled 
people’s disabilities 

 

 Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other 
activities where their participation in disproportionately low  

 
NB Please note that, for disabled persons, the Council must have regard to the possible 
need for steps that amount to positive discrimination, to “level the playing field” with non-
disabled persons, e.g. in accessing services through dedicated car parking spaces.   

 
1.6 Guidance on Compliance with The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) for 
officers and decision makers: 
 
1.6.1 To comply with the duty, the Council must have “due regard” to the three equality aims 
set out above.  This means the PSED must be considered as a factor to consider alongside 
other relevant factors such as budgetary, economic and practical factors.   
 
1.6.2 What regard is “due” in any given case will depend on the circumstances.  A proposal 
which, if implemented, would have particularly negative or widespread effects on (say) 
women, or the elderly, or people of a particular ethnic group would require officers and 
members to give considerable regard to the equalities aims.  A proposal which had limited 
differential or discriminatory effect will probably require less  regard. 
 
1.6.3 Some key points to note : 
 

 The duty is regarded by the Courts as being very important. 

 Officers and members must be aware of the duty and give it conscious consideration: 
e.g. by considering open-mindedly the EIA and its findings when making a decision. 
When members are taking a decision,this duty can’t be delegated by the members, 
e.g. to an officer. 

 EIAs must be evidence based. 

 There must be an assessment of the practical impact of decisions on equalities, 
measures to avoid or mitigate negative impact and their effectiveness.  

 There must be compliance with the duty when proposals are being formulated by 
officers and by members in taking decisions: the Council can’t rely on an EIA 
produced after the decision is made. 

 The duty is ongoing: EIA’s should be developed over time and there should be 
evidence of monitoring impact after the decision. 

 The duty is not, however, to achieve the three equality aims but to consider them – the 
duty does not stop tough decisions sometimes being made. 

 The decision maker may take into account other countervailing (i.e. opposing) factors 
that may objectively justify taking a decision which has negative impact on equalities 
(for instance, cost factors) 

 

Page 49



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 4 of 24 

1.6.4 In addition to the Act, the Council is required to comply with any statutory Code of 
Practice issued by the Equality and Human Rights Commission. New Codes of Practice 
under the new Act have yet to be published. However, Codes of Practice issued under the 
previous legislation remain relevant and the Equality and Human Rights Commission has 
also published guidance on the new public sector equality duty.  
 

Page 50



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 5 of 24 

 

Part 2 – Aims and implementation of the proposal, strategy or policy 

2.1 What is being assessed?  

a) Proposal or name of the strategy or policy.   

Reduction in the level of HTST support for pre-school and post-16 students with 
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 

b) What is the main purpose or aims of proposal, strategy or policy?  

To reduce spend on the discretionary home to school/college budget from the start of 
the 2016/17 academic year for students with Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities, via: 

a. Changes to the post-16 policy and criteria for travel assistance to ensure that 
only young people with exceptional circumstances (the most needy) continue to 
receive travel support,  reduce the number of those supported overall, and 
ensure that the most economical appropriate travel solutions are found for 
those who are supported with transport 

b. Increasing the post-16 contribution towards travel support from £370 to £608 to 
match the current cost of a bus ‘Freedom Pass’ which many East Sussex 
students have to buy to get to their post-16 provision 

c. Introducing a post-16 contribution for students from low income families 
towards the total costs of their SEND travel support (this group is currently 
exempt from the charge) 

d. Introducing a contribution towards travel of £608 / £304 for families of children 
with SEND travelling to pre-school educational placements 

a. Proposed changes to the policy and criteria 
 

Eligibility for SEND travel assistance 
 
Transport for post-16 students will usually only be considered further by the Council if all 
three key criteria are satisfied:  
 
1. The student must be attending an appropriate funded, full time course at the nearest 

school or college to their home. If an alternative suitable course is offered by an FE 
provider nearer to their home, the student will not be eligible for support. 

2. The Council will fund transport to a college placement up to the academic year in which a 
young person reaches a maximum of 21 years of age. 

3. The student must be travelling over three miles to their nearest appropriate provider, 

unless their learning difficulties or disability means they are unable to travel this distance 

either walking or on public transport (specific and up to date evidence from relevant health 

and/or educational appropriate professionals supporting the student will be required to 

assist the decision) and a parent is not available to take them. 

Factors the Council will take into account when determining whether a student is eligible for 
assistance will include: 

Page 51



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 6 of 24 

 
1. The student is unable to travel to their placement by public transport, either 

unaccompanied or accompanied by a responsible adult (specific and up to date evidence 
from relevant health and/or educational appropriate professionals supporting the student 
will be required). 

2. The family does not have a suitable vehicle, which may include a Motability vehicle, for 
their transportation to school or college.  

3. The length or complexity of the journey and whether parents or carers could reasonably 
be expected to provide transport or act as a chaperone themselves. If parents/carers or 
other family members are not available this should be fully explained in the application. 

4. The student has been assessed by the Authority as requiring an escort, or as a ’high 
needs’ case. 

5. Other circumstances relevant to each case. 
 
Provision 
 
Each applicant who is determined as requiring assistance will be risk-assessed for their 
immediate needs and the most cost-effective suitable mode of travel support will be 
arranged. At the same time, each will be assessed for suitability for our intensive 
Independent Travel Training (ITT) programme, which can provide a young person the skills 
and confidence for greater independence in their adult life. A young person who is ready for 
travel training may be offered temporary travel assistance until they have ‘graduated’ as 
independent travellers on their journey to school or college, at which point they will be given 
free bus or train travel for a limited fixed period. For students who can access public 
transport, a journey time of up to 75 minutes each way is considered reasonable according to 
national guidance for best practice. 
 
Where an applicant is determined as eligible for SEND travel assistance, the type of travel 
assistance provided will be the most cost-effective available to the Council at the time, 
appropriate to the student’s needs. This may be one of the following: 

a) A free place on a contract or school bus 
b) A Personal Travel Budget (PTB) 
c) A taxi 
d) Another type of transport / assistance to be determined on individual circumstance; for 

example, a parent may be expected to transport their child part of the journey in order 
to get to a suitable pick up point (this might be a bus stop or a taxi pick up point)  

 
Please note that taxis will usually only be provided in the most exceptional cases, and for 
students with severe disabilities and/or the most complex health needs. 
 
Limitations for travel assistance 

 Students will usually only be transported to and from a school or college at their 
published school start and school finish times. This may therefore require the student 
to arrive earlier than the start of their first session or wait at the end of their timetabled 
day until other young people are ready for shared transport. 

 
b. Annual Contribution for students who do not meet low income criteria 

 
All students who are assessed as eligible for travel assistance are required to pay an annual 
contribution to the County Council towards the cost of their provision, unless they are 
assessed as being from a low income family, in which case half the full contribution will be 
required. By receiving a contribution, the Council is able to support a greater number of 

Page 52



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 7 of 24 

young people to access post-16 education. The contribution is the same amount regardless 
of the type or frequency of travel assistance provided. 
 
In all cases where assistance is agreed, a contribution towards to the cost of travel is 
required. The proposed charge for those not meeting low income criteria in 2016/2017 is 
£608. This is an increase from a £370 contribution in 2014/15 and 2015/16. 
 
Payment can be made in instalments. Transport will not be arranged until payment in 
advance is made. If subsequent payments are late, transport will be suspended or even 
cancelled.  
 
c. Annual contribution for students from low income families   
Those meeting LIF criteria will be asked to contribute £304 per academic year.  This group 
were previously exempt from the contribution. Low income is defined as families in receipt of 
one of the following: 
 

 Income Support* 

 Income-based Job Seekers Allowance* 

 Income related Employment and Support Allowance* 

 Support received under part six of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999. 

 Guarantee element of State Pension Credit* 

 Child Tax Credit (but not also Working Tax Credit unless in receipt of the maximum 
level) based on an income of £16,190 or less* 

*Correct at the time of consultation 
 
The annual contribution level will be reviewed on an annual basis. 
 
 c) Manager(s) and section or service responsible for completing the assessment 

 Sara Candler, Project Manager (SEND travel) 

2.2 Who is affected by the proposal, strategy or policy? Who is it intended to benefit 
and how?  

SEND children and their families who will start attending nursery and SEND young 
people and their families who will be starting college or sixth form in 2016/17. 

This change in policy will result in a reduction in the overall level of travel support for 
these SEND children and young people, with the aim that the most needy will still 
receive suitable travel support. 

2.3 How is, or will, the proposal, strategy or policy be put into practice and who is, 
or will be, responsible for it?  

Following a consultation and work with affected settings the new proposal will be put in 
place for those looking to attend nursery or college in 2016/17. The policy will be used 
to assess eligibility for support on a case by case basis. 

Lou Carter, Assistant Director, Communication, Planning and Performance (Children’s 
Services) 

2.4 Are there any partners involved? E.g. NHS Trust, voluntary/community 
 organisations, the private sector? If yes, how are partners involved? 

Page 53



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 8 of 24 

 Yes, schools and colleges. Student support services at schools and colleges will be 
able to provide information on other sources of funding for young people; for example, 
EFA 16-19 bursaries.   

2.5 Is this project or procedure affected by legislation, legislative change, service 
review or strategic planning activity? 

Local authorities do not have a statutory duty to provide free transport to school or 
college for students who are above compulsory school age; however ESCC remains 
committed to providing support for young people with SEND who demonstrate 
exceptional circumstances regarding the journey to a suitable placement.  

It is anticipated that East Sussex County Council will need to reduce expenditure by 
£70-90 million between 2016/17 and 2018/19. This level of financial pressure means 
that all areas of expenditure need to be considered for potential savings. During the 
2012/13 to 2014/15 Medium Term Financial Plan there has been a systematic review 
of the HTST budget to reduce costs, which is why discretionary areas are now being 
targeted for the required reductions in spending. 

Page 54



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 9 of 24 

Part 3 – Methodology, consultation, data and research used to 
determine impact on protected characteristics.  

3.1 List all examples of quantitative and qualitative data or any consultation 
information available that will enable the impact assessment to be undertaken. 

 Types of evidence identified as relevant have X marked against them 

 Employee Monitoring Data  Staff Surveys 

 Service User Data  Contract/Supplier Monitoring Data 

X Recent Local Consultations  Data from other agencies, e.g. Police, 
Health, Fire and Rescue Services, third 
sector 

 Complaints X Risk Assessments 

 Service User Surveys X Research Findings 

X Census Data X East Sussex Demographics 

 Previous Equality Impact 
Assessments 

X National Reports 

 Other organisations Equality 
Impact Assessments 

 Any other evidence? 

 

3.2 Evidence of complaints against the strategy or policy on grounds of 
 discrimination.  

None prior to the consultation survey. 

 

3.3     If you carried out any consultation or research on the strategy or policy 
 explain what consultation has been carried out.  

Detailed research has been carried out to establish a realistic projection of the number 
of SEND children and young people who may be affected by this policy change. A 
study looking at savings per year and numbers impacted by 2018/19 has been carried 
out in order to forecast the potential savings of each proposed change. Additional 
analysis of the current SEND cohort was done to map pupil placements, costs and 
home towns showing the severity of their needs and distance travelled. Using current 
data it has been possible to build up a picture of methods of transport, costs, distance 
travelled and the nature of pupils’ needs and required provision. 

SEND pupil population trends have been analysed to look at the changes in the 
number of children and young people by Primary Need between 2006 and 2015 
school census. This study shows an increasing proportion of children and young 
people with Autistic Spectrum Disorder, a group which may benefit from Independent 
Travel Training and other initiatives. 

Web-based and networking research on post-16 transport offered by other County 
Councils gathered information from 26 other authorities. Information on the amount 
charged and the age up to which support was offered was compiled. The majority of 
other County Councils charge non-LIF SEND students for travel assistance, and a 

Page 55



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 10 of 24 

growing number also charge students from low income families, either the same or a 
reduced amount. 

An online survey (also available in printed format) was open to the public from 10 June 
until 18 September 2015 to gather feedback on each of the proposed changes. Over 
500 parents of children in Year 9 to 14 receiving SEND travel support were written to 
and asked to contribute their views. Special schools and Early Years providers, 
schools and colleges were informed about the consultation and invited to respond. 

The Council worked closely with the parents’ group East Sussex Parents and Carers 
Council (ESPACC). 

 

3.4 What does the consultation, research and/or data indicate about the positive or 
negative impact of the strategy or policy?  

Reducing Post 16 transport assistance carries with it a number of risks. The research 
provides a snapshot of who will be affected and how other local authorities have 
implemented similar policy positions regarding the level of expected contributions for 
SEND student travel.  

There were 35 responses to the survey. 71% of respondents were parents or carers of 
a SEND child, and 80% were women. Their main concerns on the increase / 
introduction of a post-16 charge were that many families of children with SEND may 
be unable to cope with the additional cost, and that these families have less 
expendable income as a result of the additional expenses for the child. The implication 
is that increasing transport costs may mean that other sacrifices have to be made, or 
the young person may not be able to attend their post-16 placement.  

There were fewer negative responses to the introduction of a contribution for pre-
school children, although there were still concerns about children not being able to 
attend their placement. 

ESPACC reiterated the concern that children with SEND have a significant and 
additional financial impact on their families which needs to be considered when 
demanding contributions towards transport costs. 

Given the pressures on HTST budgets and the savings required research suggests 
the authorities are looking at the most cost effective way to support the most 
vulnerable SEND children and young people to attend nursery, sixth form or college.  

This research has provided teams and stakeholders with the information to better 
understand the impacts and risks. This will enable the local authority to consider what 
mitigations can be put in place. 

Part 4 – Assessment of impact 

4.1 Age: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive impact.  

a) How is this protected characteristic reflected in the County 
/District/Borough? 

NC Year Jan-11 Jan-12 Jan-13 Jan-14 Jan-15 

Page 56



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 11 of 24 

-2 0 0 0 1 1 

-1 3 2 1 0 2 

R 79 93 111 110 94 

1 116 98 127 139 121 

2 126 142 129 152 151 

3 134 156 186 152 163 

4 149 161 195 201 158 

5 160 181 211 221 221 

6 210 191 216 247 235 

7 237 247 231 241 258 

8 216 248 255 242 246 

9 250 243 264 271 258 

10 253 257 252 273 269 

11 272 258 268 250 268 

12 78 86 73 81 82 

13 55 61 66 63 70 

14 48 40 43 46 47 

Total 2386 2464 2628 2690 2644 

 

Source: Local Authority Tribal/Synergy Core Pupil Database (SEN Module) 

 January 2014 

 

Source: Local Authority Tribal/Synergy Core Pupil Database (SEN Module) 

 January 2014 

 

b) How is this protected characteristic reflected in the population of those 
impacted by the proposal, strategy or policy? 

An anticipated 206 post 16 SEND students and 10 pre-school children. 

 

c) Will people with the protected characteristic be more affected by the 
proposal, policy or strategy than those in the general population who do 
not share that protected characteristic?   

Page 57



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 12 of 24 

Yes.  

d) What is the proposal, strategy or policy’s impact on different ages/age 
groups?  

This policy may have a negative impact on some pre-school children with SEND and 
post 16 students with SEND. These are set out below: 

1. Increasing restrictions and travel charges students with SEND, may deter or 
prevent them from continuing in post-16 education or accessing pre-school 
nursery places. This may increase the numbers of NEETs, and lower 
educational aspirations for young people. 

2. Changes could have a negative impact on the wider family and welfare of the 
SEND pre-school children and young people. 

e) What actions are to/ or will be taken to avoid any negative impact or to 
better advance equality?  

The mitigations are: 

1 Rolling communications plan to reach young people and their families 
approaching the transition in good time to allow sensible post-16 choices 
without the assumption that transport will be provided. The timing of the Lead 
Member decision on the changes on 12th November will be followed by clear 
communication with schools, young people, parents, sixth forms and colleges in 
good time for transition in order to allow post-16 choices to be made with the 
changes in mind. Schools and colleges were informed at the start of the 
consultation in June that they should ensure that young people making post-16 
choices should not make the assumption that transport costs would be provided 
from September 2016. The Council will also ensure that professionals and 
stakeholders are aware of the changes in support. 

2 Introduction of a specific and well-signposted post-16 SEND travel assistance 
policy. Work will also be done with pre-school nursery settings to ensure 
families understand how to access a place. 

3 Oversight of decision making by the Home to School Transport (HTST) Panel, 
with close liaison with SEND practitioners and colleges. Clear communication 
with all stakeholders as early as possible. Cases that are rejected are entitled to 
appeal via the member led Transport and Student Support Panel. 

4 An improved post-16 application form will prompt parent/carers to provide 
relevant contextual information and evidence which can then be considered by 
the Panel. 

5 ESCC provides an effective externally commissioned Independent Travel 
Training Service for young people who are ready to use public transport and 
cease reliance on taxis, which brings longer term benefits relating to 
independence in their adult lives. 

6 Thorough risk assessments are undertaken on individual cases to ensure pupils 
are appropriately safeguarded. Discussion and negotiation with colleges to 
clarify the terms of the travel provision. Increased provision of Personal Travel 

Page 58



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 13 of 24 

budgets, Independent Travel Training and part-funded arrangements, e.g. 
transport from a pick-up point, supported travel in the mornings only, etc. 

7 The Panel will consider the complexity of the journey to college in relation to the 
young person’s SEND, as an individual may be ready for independent travel but 
prevented from taking this next step due to the lack of a suitable journey by 
public transport. 

8 Work within the ISEND and Transitions Teams to ensure that travel to 
placements, and the opportunity for young people to move towards 
independence through being able to travel to provision themselves, is 
considered more carefully as part of the decision making process.  

9 Exploration of other transport opportunities which may assist young people with 
SEND, e.g. encouraging post-16 providers to start foundation level courses 
later in the morning to allow use of disabled bus passes. 

10 Work with colleges to ensure that they are further encouraged to offer 
appropriate, timely financial advice and support to their new and existing 
students, making full use of available sources of funding such as the EFA 
bursaries. Also equip SEND professionals with knowledge of other available 
support for young people with SEND to enable sign-posting. This is particularly 

important due to the likelihood of additional financial pressures associated 
with meeting the needs of children and young people with SEND. 

11 Also encouraging specific colleges to improve provision and efficiency of 
transport for their own students through working in partnership when it may be 
possible to share transport provision or routes, e.g. Plumpton and Sussex 
Downs Lewes, Bexhill and Sussex Coast College. 

12 Regarding pre-school children with SEND requiring transport, Early Years 
practitioners will be encouraged to alert families to potential benefits they may 
be entitled to, eg DLA, which may help them with the cost of the contribution. 

13 The continuation of a £15k subsidy with Brighton and Hove and West Sussex 
made to Southern Rail so that they can offer a discount to post-16 learners. 

14 To continue to investigate improved SEND provision in East Sussex, so that 
more children and young people can attend placements in their local 
communities, avoiding the need for costly transport and long journeys. 

15 Close monitoring over time. 

 

f) How will any mitigation measures be monitored?  

Communication, Planning and Performance teams will regularly review the mitigation 
measures put in place as part of this policy change. Action plan measures will show 
clear lines of responsibility for implementation. 

 

Page 59



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 14 of 24 

4.2 Disability: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive 
impact.  

a)  How is this protected characteristic reflected in the 
County/District/Borough? 

 

NC Year Jan-11 Jan-12 Jan-13 Jan-14 Jan-15 

-2 0 0 0 1 1 

-1 3 2 1 0 2 

R 79 93 111 110 94 

1 116 98 127 139 121 

2 126 142 129 152 151 

3 134 156 186 152 163 

4 149 161 195 201 158 

5 160 181 211 221 221 

6 210 191 216 247 235 

7 237 247 231 241 258 

8 216 248 255 242 246 

9 250 243 264 271 258 

10 253 257 252 273 269 

11 272 258 268 250 268 

12 78 86 73 81 82 

13 55 61 66 63 70 

14 48 40 43 46 47 

Total 2386 2464 2628 2690 2644 

 

Source: Local Authority Tribal/Synergy Core Pupil Database (SEN Module) 

 January 2014 

 

 

Source: Local Authority Tribal/Synergy Core Pupil Database (SEN Module) 

 January 2014 

 

Page 60



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 15 of 24 

b) How is this protected characteristic reflected in the reflected in the 
population of those impacted by the proposal, strategy or policy? 

An anticipated 206 post 16 SEND students and 10 pre-school children. 

 

c) Will people with the protected characteristic be more affected by the 
proposal, policy or strategy than those in the general population who do 
not share that protected characteristic?   

 Yes 

d) What is the proposal, strategy or policy’s impact on people who have a 
disability?  

1. As set out in Section 4.d 

e) What actions are to/ or will be taken to avoid any negative impact or to 
better advance equality?  

As set out in Section 4.e 

f) How will any mitigation measures be monitored? 

As set out in Section 4.f 

 
 
4.3  Ethnicity: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive     
 impact.  
 
  Not applicable 
 
4.4 Gender/Transgender: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or 
 positive impact  

  Not applicable 
 
4.5 Marital Status/Civil Partnership: Testing of disproportionate, negative, 
neutral or positive impact.  

  Not applicable 
 
4.6 Pregnancy and maternity: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or 
positive impact.  

  Not applicable 
 

4.7 Religion, Belief: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive 
impact.  

  Not applicable 
 

Page 61



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 16 of 24 

4.8 Sexual Orientation - Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual and Heterosexual: Testing of 
disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive impact.  
 

  Not applicable 
 

4.9 Other: Additional groups/factors that may experience impacts - testing of 
disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive impact.  

SEND young people who live in rural areas. 
 

a) How are these groups/factors reflected in the County/District/ Borough? 

It is impossible to forecast the precise characteristics of the cohort that would 
be affected in September 2016 however some of the students affected might 
live in rural areas.  

Some SEND young people living in rural areas might be more negatively 
impacted by the policy change as there will be fewer transport options due to 
their location.  

 

b) How is this group/factor reflected in the population of those impacted by 
the proposal, strategy or policy? 

Data not available. 

c) Will people within these groups or affected by these factors be more 
affected by the proposal, policy or strategy than those in the general 
population who are not in those groups or affected by these factors?  

It is possible that SEND young people will be more negatively affected if they 
live in rural areas. 

d) What is the proposal, strategy or policy’s impact on the factor or 
identified group?  

It might be harder for them to find or afford appropriate transport to their chosen 
place of study. 

e) What actions are to/ or will be taken to avoid any negative impact or to 
better advance equality?  

As set out in Section 4.e: particularly note item 6 regarding the consideration of 
the complexity of the journey for the young person. 

f) How will any mitigation measures be monitored? 

As set out in Section 4.f 

Page 62



Equality Impact Assessment      Revised Version 4 Nov 
2011 

Page 17 of 24 

4.10 Human rights- Human rights place all public authorities – under an 
obligation to treat you with fairness, equality, dignity, respect and autonomy. 
Please look at the table below to consider if your proposal, policy or strategy 
may potentially interfere with a human right.  

 

Articles  

A2 Right to life (e.g. pain relief, suicide prevention) 

A3 Prohibition of torture, inhuman or degrading treatment (service users 
unable to consent, dignity of living circumstances) 

A4 Prohibition of slavery and forced labour (e.g. safeguarding vulnerable 
adults) 

A5 Right to liberty and security (financial abuse) 

A6 &7 Rights to a fair trial; and no punishment without law (e.g. staff 
tribunals) 

A8 Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence 
(e.g. confidentiality, access to family) 

A9 Freedom of thought, conscience and religion (e.g. sacred space, 
culturally appropriate approaches) 

A10 Freedom of expression (whistle-blowing policies) 

A11 Freedom of assembly and association (e.g. recognition of trade 
unions) 

A12 Right to marry and found a family (e.g. fertility, pregnancy) 

Protocols  

P1.A1 Protection of property (service users property/belongings) 

P1.A2 Right to education (e.g. access to learning, accessible information) 

P1.A3 Right to free elections (Elected Members) 

 

 

Page 63



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 18 of 24 

Part 5 – Conclusions and recommendations for decision makers 

5.1 Summarise how this proposal/policy/strategy will show due regard for 
the three aims of the general duty across all the protected 

characteristics and ESCC additional groups.    

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010; 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people from different groups 

 Foster good relations between people from different groups 

      

5.2 Impact assessment outcome Based on the analysis of the impact in part 
four please mark below ('X') with a summary of your recommendation.  

  X Outcome of impact 
assessment 

Please explain your answer fully. 

 A No major change – Your 
analysis demonstrates that the 
policy/strategy is robust and the 
evidence shows no potential for 
discrimination and that you have 
taken all appropriate 
opportunities to advance 
equality and foster good 
relations between groups. 

During the discussions about the negative impacts 
these proposed policy changes may have, 
mitigations have been considered and will be put in 
place to ensure that appropriate transport is 
provided to the most needy young people and pre-
school children with SEND. It is also acknowledge 
that some families of children with SEND will be 
expected to take greater responsibility for the cost 
and provision of transport for their child, and this 
may have a negative impact in some cases. 

The key mitigations, as set in 4.e  are: 

 Communications plan for families, young people 
and stakeholders to inform them of the 12th 
November decision to allow for appropriate 
placement decisions. The Youth Cabinet will help 
devise the communications strategy. The Youth 
Cabinet will help devise the communications 
strategy. 

 Introduction of a new policy which allows the 
Council to target the most vulnerable. 

 Provision of an effective externally 
commissioned Independent Travel Training 
Service for young people who are ready to use 
public transport and cease reliance on taxis, 
which brings longer term benefits relating to 
independence in their adult lives. 

 A new travel assistance application form which 
helps parents set out why they need assistance 
but also understand better what factors we will 
take into consideration in making our decisions. 

 A governance panel that ensures robust 
decision-making, with thorough risk-assessments 
to ensure pupils are appropriately safeguarded. 

X B Adjust the policy/strategy – 
This involves taking steps to 
remove barriers or to better 
advance equality. It can mean 
introducing measures to mitigate 
the potential effect. 

 C Continue the 
policy/strategy - This means 
adopting your proposals, despite 
any adverse effect or missed 
opportunities to advance 
equality, provided you have 
satisfied yourself that it does not 
unlawfully discriminate 

 D Stop and remove the 
policy/strategy – If there are 
adverse effects that are not 
justified and cannot be 
mitigated, you will want to 
consider stopping the 
policy/strategy altogether. If a 
policy/strategy shows unlawful 

Page 64



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 19 of 24 

discrimination it must be 
removed or changed. 

 An independent panel (Councillor-led) for 
appeals. 

 Provision of the most cost-effective suitable 
transport solutions on a case by case basis for 
the most needy. 

 Improvement of the planning process via EHCP 
reviews to help prepare the young person for the 
transition to adulthood and to gain maximum 
independence. 

 Work to improve SEND provision across East 
Sussex to allow more young people to attend 
placements within their community which are 
closer to their homes 

 Continued close liaison with post-16 providers to 
encourage them to offer or signpost sources of 
support when young people move to becoming 
independent travellers; as they will know the 
circumstances of their students and be well 
placed to target available funding at the most 
vulnerable. Also encouraging specific colleges to 
improve provision and efficiency of transport for 
their own students through working in 
partnership when it may be possible to share 
transport provision or routes, e.g. Plumpton and 
Sussex Downs Lewes, Bexhill and Sussex Coast 
College. 

 Regarding pre-school children with SEND 
requiring transport, Early Years practitioners will 
be encouraged to alert families to potential 
benefits they may be entitled to, eg DLA, which 
may help them with the cost of the contribution. 

 The continuation of a £15k subsidy with Brighton 
and Hove and West Sussex made to Southern 
Rail so that they can offer a discount to post-16 
learners. 
 

The Communication, Planning and Performance 
teams will provide additional monitoring of mitigation 
measures to track impact on the affected groups. 

 

5.3 What equality monitoring, evaluation, review systems have been set up 
to carry out regular checks on the effects of the proposal, strategy or 
policy?  

 (Give details) 

An action plan will be developed with the Planning and Performance team so 
monitoring is carried out.  

 

 

Page 65



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 20 of 24 

5.4 When will the amended proposal, strategy or policy be reviewed?       

Date completed: 24/09/15 Signed by 
(person completing) 

Sara Candler 

 Role of person 
completing 

Project Manager, 
SEND Travel 

Date: 24/09/15 Signed by 
(Manager) 

Lou Carter 

 

Page 66



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 21 of 24 

Part 6 – Equality impact assessment action plan   

If this will be filled in at a later date when proposals have been decided please tick here and fill in the summary report.  

The table below should be completed using the information from the equality impact assessment to produce an action plan for the 
implementation of the proposals to: 

1. Lower the negative impact, and/or 
2. Ensure that the negative impact is legal under anti-discriminatory law, and/or 
3. Provide an opportunity to promote equality, equal opportunity and improve relations within equality target groups, i.e. increase the 

positive impact 
4. If no actions fill in separate summary sheet.  

Please ensure that you update your service/business plan within the equality objectives/targets and actions identified below: 

Area for improvement Changes proposed Lead Manager Timescale 
Resource 

implications 

Where 
incorporated/flagged? 

(e.g. business 
plan/strategic 

plan/steering group/DMT) 

Communications A rolling 
communications plan to 
reach young people 
and their families 
approaching the 
transition in good time 
to allow sensible post-
16 choices without the 
assumption that 
transport will be 
provided.  Introduction 
of a specific and well-
signposted post-16 

Lou Carter November 2015 Communications 
Resources 

Equality and Participation 
along with Planning and 
Performance team will 
monitor these action plan 
deliverables 

 

P
age 67



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 22 of 24 

SEND travel assistance 
policy. Work will also be 
done with pre-school 
nursery settings to 
ensure families 
understand how to 
access a place. 

Case by case 
assessments 

Oversight of decision 
making by the HTST 
Governance Panel, 
close liaison with SEND 
practitioners and 
colleges. Clear 
communication with all 
stakeholders as early 
as possible. Cases that 
are rejected are entitled 
to appeal via the 
member led Transport 
and Student Support 
Panel. 

Lou Carter ongoing  Equality and Participation 
along with Planning and 
Performance team will 
monitor these action plan 
deliverables 

Risk Assessments Thorough risk 
assessments will be 
undertaken on 
individual cases who 
are deemed eligible, 
discussion and 
negotiation with 
colleges to clarify the 
terms of the travel 

Lou Carter  ongoing SEN Transport staff Equality and Participation 
along with Planning and 
Performance team will 
monitor these action plan 
deliverables 

P
age 68



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 23 of 24 

provision. Increased 
provision of Personal 
Travel budgets and 
Independent Travel 
Training for students 
with SEND. 

Improved EHCP 
planning 

Consideration of each 
young person’s ability to 
travel independently as 
part of the annual 
review process 

Fiona Wright September 2016 ISEND ?? 

Improvement of 
SEND provision 

Exploration of how 
ESCC can move 
towards improved 
placement coverage 
according to need in 
East Sussex 

Fiona Wright ?? ISEND ?? 

P
age 69



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 24 of 24 

(a) 6.1 Accepted Risk 

From your analysis please identify any risks not addressed giving reasons and how this has been highlighted within your Directorate: 

 

Area of Risk 
Type of Risk?  
(Legal, Moral, 

Financial) 

Can this be addressed at 
a later date? (e.g. next 

financial year/through a 
business case) 

Where flagged? (e.g. 
business plan/strategic 

plan/steering group/DMT) 
Lead Manager 

Date resolved (if 
applicable) 

                                    

                                    

                                    

                                    

                                    

 

P
age 70



Press Release        

 
For Immediate Release 10 June 2015 
 

Proposal for £1m plus school transport savings 

PARENTS are being asked for their views on proposed changes to school transport that 

could save more than a million pounds. 

East Sussex County Council is consulting on the proposals, which would affect travel 

support for post-16 students from low income families and pre-school and post-16 students 

with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND). 

The council has a statutory duty to provide some transport services to pupils in the county, 

but spends £1.67 million on services it does not have a legal responsibility to deliver.  

 

It says changes to the way these services are delivered will enable it to support those with 

the greatest need. 

As the authority works towards a three-year savings target of up to £90million, it is reviewing 

every service it delivers to ensure it is achieving value for money and delivering cost-

effective services. 

The proposed changes, which would be phased in, could save an estimated £1,160,616 

over the three years from 2016. The council would continue to invest more than £9million 

into statutory transport services. 

People are being asked to comment on: 

 The removal of travel passes and grants available to post-16 students from low income 

families and the creation of a hardship fund to ensure those in need can still access 

support 

 Ensuring the council prioritises support to SEND students with the highest level of need 

by introducing tighter criteria and, where appropriate, encouraging parents to transport 

their child to pre-school, school sixth form or college 

 Increasing the current post-16 SEND transport contribution from £370 to £608, with a 50 

per cent reduction for low income families, and introducing the same contribution for 

families with pre-school children receiving travel support 

Page 71

Appendix 11



Stuart Gallimore, county council director of children’s services, said: “Historically, the county 

council has offered school transport services it does not have a statutory duty to provide. 

“However, with significant savings to be found in the three years from 2016, this needs to be 

reviewed. Changes to the policy would bring East Sussex more in line with other authorities 

where charges are already in place. 

“We are setting out the proposed changes so people are aware of the proposals, can take 

these into account when choosing a college or sixth form place for September 2016, and can 

comment on the potential impact. 

“Any changes approved will not come into effect until September 2016. Students already 

receiving support will continue to do so.” 

The consultation, which will include discussions with affected schools and colleges, is now 

open and people can comment online at www.eastsussex.gov.uk/haveyoursay 

NOTES FOR EDITORS  
 
The decision to consult on the proposed changes was taken by Cllr Nick Bennett, lead 
member for learning and school effectiveness, at his latest lead member meeting on 
Monday, June 8  
 
Home to School Transport expenditure in 2014/15 was £10.76 million, with around £9.13 
million being used to fulfil statutory requirements.  
 
In 2016/17 it is estimated that 204 post-16 students from low income families would be 
impacted by the proposals, while 94 pre-school and post-16 SEND students would be 
affected.  
 
Savings have already been made to the home to school transport budget with a number of 
changes and initiatives including the decision to offer free transport only to the nearest 
school, the introduction of personal transport budgets for SEND children and young people.  
 
The county council already offers support to SEND students to encourage them to travel to 
school or college on public transport and help them live a more independent life. 

 

This release resulted in the consultation being featured in the following: 
 
11June  TV news report BBC South East Today 
11 June  article   Eastbourne Herald 
12 June article   The Argus 
12 June article   Hailsham Herald 
21 June TV discussion BBC The Sunday Politics Show (with Cllr St Pierre) 
 

Page 72

http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5lYXN0c3Vzc2V4Lmdvdi51ay9oYXZleW91cnNheQ%3d%3d&r=5108613839&d=1204149&p=1&t=h&h=acd980498c065369439e4809eec42d02


 
Report to:  Lead Member for Learning and School Effectiveness 
 
Date:   12 November 2015 
 
By:   Director of Children’s Services  
 
Title of report: Proposed changes to discretionary Low Income Families (LIF) 

and Further Education Link transport provision from the 2016/17 
academic year   

 
Purpose of report: To ask the Lead Member to make a decision on whether to 

approve the proposed reduction in financial support for 16-19 
year old students from low income families and ceasing FE Link 
transport 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Lead Member is asked to approve the implementation of the proposals set out in 1.2 
of this report in order to reduce spend on the discretionary home to school transport 
(HTST) budget from the start of the 2016/17 academic year. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

1  Background 

1.1 It is anticipated that East Sussex County Council (ESCC) will need to reduce 
expenditure by £70-90 million between 2016/17 and 2018/19 and all areas will need to be 
considered.   Despite the raising of the participation age, transport support to get 16-19 year 
olds to post-16 provision remains discretionary.  It is recommended therefore that the ESCC 
policy is changed in order to make significant reductions in our discretionary HTST spend. 

1.2 The proposed changes, which will apply to  new starters from September 2016, are: 

a) to withdraw the current offer of free or subsidised travel (travel passes, travel grants, free 
places on school coaches) for 16-19 year old sixth form or college students from low income 
families ; 

b) to cease provision for a small number of 16-19 year old students who live in rural locations 
and who receive free ‘link transport’ to the nearest suitable bus stop or train station ; and 

c)  to retain 25% of the former budget (£60k) to provide a hardship fund, for access by the 
most disadvantaged young people, in order to ensure that they can still get some support to 
help them get to sixth form or college. 
 
1.3 Potential savings and the numbers of students impacted (post-16 LIF) are 
summarised in Appendix 1. It is estimated that additional year on year savings against the 
2014/15 forecast, if all elements were to be approved and maximised are potentially: £55k in 
2016/17, £164k in 2017/18, and £182k in 2018/19. These totals accumulate to reach £401k 
of total savings over 2016/17 - 2018/19. Further to this, FE Link transport is currently offered 
to only three non-means-tested young people and will result in a saving of approximately £4-
5k per year (full year effect, from the second year of implementation). 
 
2  Supporting information 

2.1 The public consultation on the changes was open from 10 June until 11 September 
2015 following the Lead Member decision to consult on 8 June 2015. 

2.2 A working group was established to discuss the potential risks and mitigations prior to 
the consultation launch, and consulted with post-16 providers. 

2.3 Schools and colleges were informed of the consultation and asked to circulate a 
summary letter to parents. The Youth Cabinet also held two workshops to discuss the 
proposals and potential impact of removal of LIF/FE Link support. A press release on 11 
June 2015 resulted in wide coverage of the story to increase the response rate (Appendix 
15). 

Page 73

Agenda Item 5



2.4 There were 26 responses to the LIF / FE Link survey. A summary is shown in 
Appendix 2. The most predominant concern was that, as a result of the proposed changes, 
young people may not continue in post-16 education, especially regarding vocational 
courses.  

2.5 A further summary paper from the Youth Cabinet is included as Appendix 3. Their 
key concern was how young people could access the Hardship Fund.  They also highlighted 
the mismatch between removing this support following the raising of the participation age. 

2.6 Meetings with school sixth forms and colleges occurred on 19 May and 8 July to raise 
awareness and discuss potential impact and mitigation as part of ongoing consultation. The 
proposal to retain 25% of the budget as a Hardship Fund was welcomed by the colleges. It is 
now proposed that the fund is shared between the 5 providers with the highest numbers and 
costs in 2014/15, giving a higher share to Plumpton College and DV8 to reflect their 
particular cohorts and issues. A full summary of the consultation process and rationale in 
reaching this recommendation in partnership with post-16 providers is included in Appendix 
4; with draft guidance for the Hardship Fund as Appendix 5. The guidance advises that the 
Hardship Fund may be reduced if further cuts necessitate this. The response from Plumpton 
College which influenced this decision to recommend the weighting of the Hardship Fund is 
included in Appendix 6. 

2.7 Appendix 7 sets out the comments of the Scrutiny Review Board which met on 15 
October 2015, with a response from the Children’s Services Department.  

2.8 Information on the level of EFA Bursary funding and other financial support  available 
for school sixth form students from low income families is provided in Appendix 8, ,. 

2.9 Appendix 9 summarises the level of transport support for post-16 LIF students by 
county councils set against their level of 16-19 year olds who are Not in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET). This does not show a correlation between free transport 
and NEET figures. 

2.10 Some concerns have been expressed in Appendix 10 regarding the viability of 
specific bus services due to reduced passenger numbers.  

2.11 A letter from Wealden MP Nusrat Ghani to Councillors Bennett and Tidy, and   a 
response from ESCC are attached at Appendix 11. 

3  Key risks and mitigation 

3.1 Reducing discretionary transport support carries a number of risks, which are outlined 
in Appendix 12 with details of the potential impact and mitigation.  

3.2 Full Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) have been undertaken which summarise 
potential impact on disadvantaged groups, and suggest mitigation; these are included as 
Appendix 13 (LIF) and Appendix 14 (FE Link). 

3.3 The key mitigations should the proposed changes be implemented are summarised 
on page 14 and 15 of the LIF EIA (Appendix 13). 

4   Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

4.1 As part of the Children’s Services Department’s response to the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Plan the recommendation is that the Lead Member agrees to all the changes 
listed in item 1.2. Potential impact will be mitigated as detailed in the EIA (Appendix 13). 

 

STUART GALLIMORE 
Director of Children’s Services  

Contact Officer: Lou Carter 
Tel. No. 01273 482809 
Email: louise.carter@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 Page 74



LOCAL MEMBERS 

All 

APPENDICES 

 
Appendix 1 Summary of cohort numbers and savings 
Appendix 2  Response to the online survey 
Appendix 3 Summary response from the Youth Cabinet 
Appendix 4 Consultation with post-16 providers 
Appendix 5 Guidance for the Hardship Fund 
Appendix 6 Response from Plumpton College 
Appendix 7 Scrutiny Board minutes and response 
Appendix 8 EFA bursaries and other support 
Appendix 9 Other LAs NEET comparison 
Appendix 10 Potential impact on bus services 
Appendix 11 Letter from MP Nusrat Ghani 
Appendix 12 Risks 
Appendix 13 Equality impact assessment (LIF) 
Appendix 14 Equality impact assessment (FE Link) 
Appendix 15  Press releases 
 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Finance tables and summary cohort information               

(post-16 LIF students) 

 

1. Breakdown of total savings estimates– summary including cohort numbers 

1.1 Potential total savings per year based on 2014/15 annual cost estimates are summarised below: 

 

Financial Year 2016/17* 2017/18 2018/19 
Total        

(3 year 
period) 

Estimated total savings resulting from 
removal of post-16 travel support for 
students from low income families, whilst 
retaining 25% hardship fund)                 

£54,879 £164,224 £182,047 £401,149 

Estimated number of young people 
aged 16-19 years old from low income 
families impacted (new starters) 

212 212 more 45 more  

 

 

2. Breakdown of total savings estimates – higher detail 

Financial Year 2016/17* 2017/18 2018/19 
Total       

(3 year 
period) 

Estimated total savings resulting from 
removal of travel passes and coach seats 

£39,063 £117,147 £130,729 £286,939 

Estimated total savings resulting from 
removal of Travel Grants  

£34,109 £101,818 £112,000 £247,927 

Retention of 25% hardship fund  -£18,293 -£54,741 -£60,682 -£133,716 

Estimated total savings £54,879 £164,224 £182,047 £401,149 

* adjusted for part-financial year with changes for new starters from September 2016 (68% of full year) 

 

2.1 The estimated totals for each financial year relate to the potential savings against an estimate for 
total 2015/16 costs if no changes were made. 

2.2 In the 2014/15 academic year, 241 mainstream post-16 students from low income families (LIF) 
are supported with free travel passes at a cost of £131k, with another 233 supported with travel 
grants carrying an annual cost of £112k via a separate Admissions & Transport (A&T) budget. 

 

3. Notes and assumptions for savings estimates 

3.1 It should be noted that these figures are estimated from a December 2014 snapshot which was 
used to generate total annual costs for the 2014/15 academic year, and then adjusted for the 
2015/16 financial year (during which the changes will be implemented with approximately 70% of 
the school travel days remaining). 

3.2 If policy changes were introduced from September 2016, it is proposed that only those pupils 
starting a post-16 course in September 2016 should be affected, based on fairness and the 
legitimate expectations of young people and parents who would have chosen a school or college 

Page 77

Appendix 1



 

 

based on the Council’s admission criteria and transport policy at the time of entry to the school or 
college.  

3.3 In addition, changes would be introduced at the start of September (and savings would result from 
around 130 school travel days from a total of 190 within the 2015/16 financial year). Therefore 
changes to discretional provision would not result in full expected savings until the 2018/19 
financial year. 

 

4. Post-16 students from a Low Income Family – hardship fund 

4.1 Proposal (a) is to cease transport for post-16 students from low income families (LIF) who are 
between 16 and 19 years old. This option is mitigated by the proposal to retain up to 25% of the 
forecast 2015/16 budget spend of £240k to act as a targeted hardship fund. 

4.2 If post-16 transport as it now stands were to be ‘ceased’ for this group, this will be imposed on 
new starters only in September 2016. As travel support is offered for a maximum of 2 years per 
application, and the financial year straddles two academic years, savings will not be maximised 
until the third year following implementation (2018/19). 

4.3 For the 2016/17 academic year, the identified hardship fund allocation would be half of the figure 
for the entire cohort, as roughly half of applicants for support from September 2016 will be 
expected to be starting new courses. The figures resulting from an accurate calculation using 
proportions of savings for each academic year are shown in Table 4: 

 

 2016/17* 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Hardship fund available for academic year £30,341 £60,682 £60,682 £60,682 

 

5. Third Year savings and numbers impacted (based on 2014/15 cohorts) 

Table 2: Percentage savings per year due to reduction in support for post-16 students from LIF 

 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Percentage of the total HTST budget plus Travel budgets 
(£10.9m) 0.5% 1.5% 1.7% 

Percentage of the discretionary element of the budgets 
(1.74m) 3.2% 9.4% 10.5% 

 

So we anticipate 1.7% saving against total budget by third year if proposed changes to support for 

post-16 students from low income families were to be implemented from September 2016. 

Table 3: Approximate numbers impacted by reduction in support by third year (2018/19) 

Number of CYP 
impacted by third 
year of the 
changes* 
 

Number of post-16 
from LIF currently 
supported  
 
 

Number impacted 
as % of post-16 
LIF cohort 
 
 

Number of ALL 
non-SEND CYP 
(stat + disc) 
currently given 
travel support 

Number impacted 
as % of total non-
SEND CYP with 
travel support  
 

473 473 100% 4,782 9.9% 
* estimated using 2014/15 figures 

None of the post-16 students from low income families will continue to receive travel support from the 

Authority under the proposal, but the neediest cases will be able to access the 25% hardship fund. 

Page 78



Survey on changes to discretionary post-16 transport       

 

The Proposals 

1. Our proposals regarding provision for 16-19 year old students from low income families 

are that: 

 We withdraw the current offer of free or subsidised travel (travel passes, travel grants, 

free places on school coaches) for 16-19 year old sixth form or college students from 

low income families for new starters from September 2016 

 We retain 25% of the budget to provide a hardship fund, for access by the most 

disadvantaged young people, in order to ensure that they can still get some support to 

help them get to sixth form or college 

 

Further info: The proposal is to withdraw the current offer of free or subsidised travel to sixth form or 

college, for 16-19 year old students from low income families who live more than 3 miles from their 

nearest suitable college or sixth form. This change would be for new starters from September 2016. 

The Council would delegate 25% of the budget to provide a hardship fund, for access by the most 

disadvantaged young people, in order to assist them in getting to sixth form or college.  

 

The average cost to the Council per 16-19 year old student with eligibility due to low family income 

and distance from college is currently £510 per academic year. Around 470 young people receive 

this financial help, with the type depending on their circumstances. Support ranges from travel 

grants of £300, £450 or £600, to a free bus pass at £608 (Freedom Pass) or £290 (Brighton Bus 

ID card), to a free seat on a school coach (normal vacant seat price £744). 

  

2. Our proposal regarding provision for a small number of 16-19 year old students who live in 

rural locations and who receive free ‘link transport’ to the nearest suitable bus stop or 

train station is: 

 We cease this provision for new starters from September 2016 (this provision is 

currently for three young people and will result in a saving of approximately £4-5k per 

year) 

 

Further info: ‘FE Link’ or link transport is offered to 16-19 year olds who live in remote rural areas in 

the county which have no public transport, and takes the form of a free taxi service to the start of the 

nearest suitable public transport journey to college. The Council has made this provision to 

compensate for the lack of good public transport in a very small number of remote residences in the 

county. Students receiving link transport have to pay for their ongoing journey. 

As of April 2015, there are only 3 travellers using 2 taxis with an actual annual cost to the HTST 

budget of £4.4k, each being transported between 3 and 5 miles from their homes to either a train 

station or a bus stop. The offer is outlined in the 2015/16 post-16 Transport Statement as:  ‘Link 

transport: Some students (those living in the most rural locations) may be assisted to get to their 

nearest bus pick up point or railway station provided they attend the nearest appropriate provision. 

Contact the Admissions and Transport Team within the Children’s Services Department at County 

Hall for more details.’ 

These college students cannot share minibuses with younger school age students as they have to 

leave earlier, return later and are usually travelling in a different direction to the local secondary 

school – therefore per head this provision is relatively costly. It is recognised that a very small number 

of future potential recipients may also be impacted by a reduction in their post-16 transport support. 

Page 79

Appendix 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Response to the survey 

The survey was introduced with a summary of the proposed changes, with the full Lead Member 

report available to respondents as one of the supporting documents. 

Respondents were provided with a list of anticipated Frequently Asked Questions to help them to 

further understand the proposals (included at the end of this appendix). 

Respondents were asked whether they understood the proposal, and a question about potential 

impact was then asked, with an opportunity to respond with any further comments. A number of key 

themes emerged, and the themes and corresponding numbers for each have been summarised. 

Some respondents made more than one point in their response; others made no response to some 

questions. 

 

1. Withdrawal of travel support for 16-19 year old students from low income families 

A. Do you understand this proposal? - The changes that are proposed have been clearly 

explained 

 

 

84% of respondents 

agreed or strongly 

agreed that the changes 

had been clearly 

explained. 

 

B. In your opinion, how might the withdrawal of travel support for 16-19 year old students 

from low income families impact on your own family / other families with low incomes? 

HEADLINES 

There were 26 responses to the online survey relating to the removal of travel support for post-

16 students from low income families and for FE link transport. Of these, one respondent was in 

support of the changes. 

The most predominant concern (81% of respondents) was that young people may not continue 

in post-16 education, especially regarding vocational courses. There was also concern about 

unemployment and reduced social mobility, as well as the fact that those living in rural areas 

were being penalised. There was less interest shown in the proposal to cease FE Link provision, 

with the majority of respondents assuming that recipients are also low income (whereas there is 

no means-test). 

Page 80



Comment or concern Number % 

Young people may not continue post-16, especially if vocational 21 81  

May increase unemployment / decrease social mobility 9 35  

Unfair to low income families living in rural areas 5 19  

Hardship fund will not cover all those in need /may be complex to access 5 19  

It will not impact on my own family 4 15  

Concern regarding risks of young people walking or cycling to college 2 8  

Concern that low income families already hit by other cuts 1 4  
 

Examples of statements 

1) Young people may not continue post-16, especially if vocational 

‘My son wants to be an electrician and the closest place is Eastbourne so he would simply not be 

able to do this anywhere nearer and would end up taking an academic course that would be of no 

use to him and therefore a waste of taxpayers’ money’ 

‘The savings are tiny yet will have a disproportionate effect on those affected, who are also those 

with the least political voice and influence (the age group mostly comprises those without a vote)’ 

‘The cutting of this service - in my opinion - conflicts with the government's intention to keep all 

students in education until the end of the 16-19 age bracket’ 

2) May increase unemployment / decrease social mobility 

‘reduce likelihood of attendance and impact on social mobility due to poor educational attainment’ 

‘The knock on effects will cost more in the future’ 

3) Unfair to low income families living in rural areas 

‘It helps to create "no go areas" in rural communities for families on a low wage’ 

4) Hardship fund will not cover all those in need /may be complex to access 

‘There are likely to be families that would struggle to pay for transport to colleges, but might not 

be the most extreme cases and so wouldn't qualify for the hardship fund - borderline cases that 

would suddenly find themselves struggling’ 

‘Make sure you promote the hardship fund & have easy access to the fund’ 

5) It will not impact on my own family 

‘They will have to find the money same as us’ 

‘It won't impact my family as it's not low income, however other families may struggle to be able to 

send their children to school’ 

6) Concern regarding risks of young people walking or cycling to college 

‘Young people from low income families, especially in rural areas may not be able to continue in 

FE or may be put seriously at risk by being forced to walk or cycle on dark unsafe roads’ 

Page 81



7) Concern that low income families already hit by other cuts 

‘Families on low incomes are already struggling because of cuts imposed by central government.  

Many will simply not be able to find the money (around £500/year for each child) for bus fare’ 

‘The withdrawal of travel support will disproportionately impact on young people and families who 

are already severely disadvantaged, placing further barriers to that young person's ability to 

achieve their potential’ 

‘The current urge to penalise those people least able to afford the cost is dangerous’ 

There was one response on behalf of a parish council: 

‘Bodiam Parish Council are concerned that this would pose a financial burden on low income 

families.  Students have to attend between the ages of 16 and 18 and parents may find the 

situation difficult to finance.  Children in Bodiam have to travel to Hastings/Bexhill/Tonbridge for 

6th form education.  There is no choice within walking distance.  Public transport costs at least 

£20 per week for 16-19 year olds. In the Defra paper published August 15.  The Government 

argues for a highly skilled rural workforce.  Therefore access to Education and training is 

essential.’ 

It should be noted however, that in the 2014/15 cohort, there was only 1 student (of the 470) residing 

in Bodiam who received a medium size travel grant. 

Solutions offered 

‘If the means test for free travel under the age of 16 encompasses a wide range of students, 

would it make more sense to cut this slightly to provide more for 18-19 year olds?’  

ESCC Response: the means test for pre-16 children is set at the level of eligibility for Free School 

Meals and cannot be lowered. 

 

2.  Withdrawal of FE link transport for 16-19 year old students 

A. Do you understand this proposal? - The changes that are proposed have been clearly 

explained 

 

 

92% of respondents 

agreed or strongly 

agreed that the changes 

had been clearly 

explained. 

 

Page 82



Q2 In your opinion, how might the ceasing of FE link transport for 16-19 year old students 

impact on your own family / other families? 

Comment or concern Number % 

Young people may not continue in education post-16 8 31  

Penalises those who live in a rural area  5 19  

It will not impact on my own family 5 19  

Is there a more cost-effective solution for these few YP? 2 8  

Agree that post-16s could travel to nearest bus stop 1 4  
 

Examples of statements 

1) Young people may not continue in education post-16 

‘They may well be forced to drop out of FE’ 

2) Penalises those who live in a rural area  

‘once again you are hitting poor families in very rural areas. You are making the assumption that 

just because we live in a nice area, we all have loads of money. This is far from the case’ 

‘After the bus routes in rural areas were taken away the council promised community transport for 

vulnerable people. I don't think you can cut both’ 

3) It will not impact on my own family 

‘This would not affect me and whilst a can see that it would have an impact on families in rural 

areas, when you choose to live in a rural area you must presumably take this into consideration? 

Is there a more cost-effective solution for these few YP?’ 

4) Agree that post-16s could travel to nearest bus stop 

‘I think that most 16+ years old could safely make their own way to the nearest bus stop from 

home and agree that this is where the savings could be made. I think that they should still be 

offered free travel from the bus stop to the college’ 

Solutions offered 

‘I wonder if Senior Citizens like me could be persuaded to make a modest financial contribution 

towards their currently free bus pass, (off the top of my head, say 50p per journey)?’ 

ESCC Response: this would not be possible due to the administration required versus the benefits. 

 

 

 

 

 

2. Respondent equalities information 

Page 83



 27% (7) stated that they were the parent, carer or family member of a child or young person 

who may be impacted by these changes 

 15% (4) stated that their family would qualify as low income, i.e. would meet the free school 

meals criteria 

 20% (6) identified themselves as a child or young person who may be impacted by these 

changes – all of these were also Youth Cabinet responses 

 12% (3) were practitioners who work with families which may be impacted by the changes 

 46% female, 35% male, 19% preferred not to say 

 Ages ranged from 13 to 84, with 23% not providing their age 

 85% white British, with the remainder not answering or preferring not to say 

 Only 4% (1 person) identified as disabled as set out in the Equality Act 2010 

 Responses matched the areas of high population in the south of the county, with fewer than 

expected responses from the mid-county and the north of East Sussex. Some of the cluster in 

Lewes is likely to be attributable to the Youth Cabinet responses. 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 84



The following FAQs were provided to respondents as part of the information with the consultation: 

Consultation on Discretionary Transport Consultation  

Frequently Asked Questions 
 

 

Q. Why is the Council proposing these cuts, which may cause some young people to struggle to get 

to sixth form or college? 

 

A. The Council is facing continuing reductions in budgets from central government, and all services 

which are not statutory are now being reluctantly considered for reductions in provision. 

 

 

Q. Is school attendance now compulsory until a child / young person reaches 18 years (with Raising 

of the Participation Age or RPA)? If that’s the case shouldn’t help with transport between 16 and 18 

years a statutory requirement for the Council? 

 

A. There has been no change to the statutory school age, so although there is an expectation that 

young people will remain in education or training after the age of 16, there is no legislation requiring 

them to do so.  

 

 

Q. How is ‘Low Income Family’ defined? 

 

A. We use the same criteria as for free school meals for younger students – currently this receipt by 

the parent/ carer or young person of any of the following benefits: 

 Income Support  

 Income-based Jobseekers Allowance  

 Income-related Employment and Support Allowance  

 Support under Part VI of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999  

 The Guaranteed element of State Pension Credit  

 Child Tax Credit only, provided your annual household income (as assessed by HM Revenue 

& Customs) does not exceed £16,190. 

 During the initial roll out of the benefit, Universal Credit 

 

 

Q. My child currently receives a free travel pass (or grant) to get to college. Will this continue next 

year? 

 

A. The changes to support for students from low income families will be for new starters only from 

September 2016.  If your child is eligible for travel help for the 2015/16 academic year, you may still 

apply in the usual way. 

 

 

 

Page 85



 

Q. What other support is available to families on low income or vulnerable post-16 students? 

 

A. The Council will continue to fund subsidies for transport (including a subsidy to Southern Rail so 

that they can offer a discount to post-16 learners) and the most vulnerable can also access the 

Education Funding Agency (EFA) 16-19 bursaries. These national bursaries are managed by sixth 

forms and colleges, and are intended to provide the necessary financial support to those students 

from the lowest income households. Where transport costs have been identified as a specific barrier 

to participation, the bursary can be used to help meet these costs. The 16 to 19 Bursary fund, has 

two parts, a discretionary bursary and a vulnerable bursary. 

In order to be eligible for the vulnerable element of the 16 to 19 Bursary Fund, the student would 

have to fall into one of the defined categories, which are:  

 in or recently left local authority care 

 getting Income Support or Universal Credit in their own name  

 disabled and getting both Employment and Support Allowance (ESA), and either Disability 

Living Allowance (DLA) or Personal Independence Payment (PIP) in their own name 

If they do not fall into one of the above categories they could apply for a discretionary bursary.  

Institutions set their own criteria for discretionary bursaries. Student services can tell potential 

students about their criteria and any evidence needed. 

 
 

Q. A ‘hardship fund’ held by the colleges is mentioned, to help the most needy students and families. 

How would we gain access to this? 

 

A. As part of the consultation, the Council is in discussion with the colleges and sixth forms, 

particularly those with the greatest numbers of young people who will be impacted by the changes. 

It is likely that these post-16 providers will add the management of this fund to the other range of 

support available to 16-19 year olds, for example the EFA 16-19 Discretionary and Vulnerable 

Student bursaries. This is likely to be accessible via their Student Services department. 

 

 

 

Page 86

https://www.gov.uk/16-to-19-education-financial-support-for-students#to-19-bursary-fund


Comments made by six members of the East Sussex Youth Cabinet on the LIF 

transport consultation 

Background 

On 24th August 2015 six member of the East Sussex Youth Cabinet met to discuss the LIF post 16 

transport proposals and also completed the online LIF survey to express their opinions. 

As ‘Transport’ is one of the current Youth Cabinet members’ key campaigns they wanted to have a 

voice in these proposals,  but when they met they also expressed the view that all Youth Cabinet 

members should be informed and involved if they want to be, as it is a bigger issue of ‘access to 

education’.   

In addition to the individual questionnaires members responded to, the Youth Cabinet had a group 

discussion to explore their views and ideas in more details and these have been summarised below. 

They would like the following to be considered alongside their individual questionnaire responses. 

1. Having a voice on the proposals and impact to young people. 

The Youth Cabinet members proposed the idea of having a meeting with senior 

managers/Members/decision makers so that they could express their opinions and ideas as a group, 

face to face; to help influence decisions on ‘how’ the proposals would be implemented, with a specific 

focus on awareness raising and communication with young people/families eligible to apply for the 

hardship fund. Senior management have agreed to a meeting as the Council will need to 

communicate with young people and families and this would therefore be beneficial. The Youth 

Cabinet was also concerned about young people in rural areas and is aware of further reductions to 

public bus services. 

Youth Cabinet members also highlighted that these decisions seem to go against the new ESCC 

Children and Young People’s Plan and its priorities, many of which are the opposite of cutting 

vulnerable young people’s chances to attain and stay in education. One Youth Cabinet member 

commented ‘Seems strange that one part of the county council asks for us as the Youth Cabinet to 

come up with priorities that include making sure low income families and young people have an equal 

chance and right to education and then another part of the county council ask us to help them work 

out how to do the opposite with more travel cuts to low income families’.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 87

Appendix 3



2. General additional comments discussed as a group, including an ESCC response are 

included in the table below:  

YC comment or question ESCC Response 

a) Youth Cabinet felt the overall principle of 

making the mandatory participation age in 

education or training to 18 and then not helping 

those get to their place of education, wrong. 

They felt there would be those that would fall 

between the gaps. ESCC needs to look more 

carefully at the impact. ‘Should be hand in 

hand’. Youth Cabinet felt that you can’t make it 

against the law to not attend and then not offer 

support to those that are most in need. 

 

Although the government raised the 

participation age for young people to be 

engaged in education, employment or training 

to the age of 18 years, there is no requirement 

for the Council to provide transport from home 

to the place of education, employment or 

training beyond Year 11. Parents have overall 

responsibility for getting their child to post-16 

provision, as there is no statutory duty for the 

Council to do so, and the majority of young 

people get themselves to sixth form or college 

without any support. ESCC agree that there is 

likely to be some negative impact from this 

change, however the Council is faced with 

reducing budgets and therefore need to reduce 

spend on discretionary areas of support. 

b) If there isn’t a college or sixth form in the area, 

this will mean students will need to travel and 

go out of their town, so how will they get there 

if on low income? Especially if it is out of 

county and there is no other financial support. 

Colleges and sixth forms have access to other 

funding, which whilst limited, should be able to 

be used with the Hardship Fund to help the 

most disadvantaged students. 

c) With further cuts to sixth form funding for 

schools how will this impact the hardship fund? 

Are there enough places for all the potential 

students, especially if it is mandatory to stay in 

education in the future? 

 

The Hardship Fund is not linked to direct 

funding for sixth forms, although the Council is 

stating that if there are further cuts, the amount 

of the Hardship Fund may be reviewed and 

reduced in the future. 

d) If you are a child in care, will they be eligible for 

hardship grants/who will pay and how will 

students access it and be given the necessary 

support from their workers/fosters carers etc? 

Young people age 16-19 in care or care leavers 

are eligible for a full EFA bursary of up to 

£1,200 per year, which is claimed via the sixth 

form or college. 

e) As the participation age has increased and the 

number of young people in post 16 education 

has increased, will this not stretch this budget 

even further meaning that vulnerable young 

people will be overlooked, more people going 

for even more limited funds? 

This is quite possible and is acknowledged. 

f) Is there another way for those YP to be 

transported that wouldn’t affect the fund? i.e. 

Community transport, discounted travel? 

The Council’s Passenger Transport Team 

regularly review the public transport offer for 

young people with the aim of delivering best 

value and targeted provision within the limited 

financial envelope available. 

 

 

 

 Page 88



3. Responses to questionnaire – proposal to remove support for students from LIF 

YC comment or question ESCC Response 

a) Increases chances of hardest to reach young 

people dropping out of college/sixth 

form/training 

This has been acknowledged, whilst the 

Council will make every effort to ensure least 

negative impact via mitigation, such as the 

allocation of the Hardship Fund to colleges. 

b) The hardship fund may not be taken up if you 

can only access it once you at your college 

campus. Needs to be accessible before term 

starts and raise awareness in year 11. How will 

students know about hardship fund? Idea to 

also make clear on college applications and 

open days? How will vulnerable families 

access this and be given any necessary 

support? 

It is proposed that the Fund will be 

administered via the colleges and they will be 

advised to make sure that students are aware 

of financial support and how to access this as 

soon as possible. 

c) People will fall between the gaps especially 

those who are low income, but not eligible, but 

not the most vulnerable. 

If they are not eligible for the Hardship Fund, 

they would not be eligible for free transport 

support currently; therefore these changes will 

not affect this group? 

d) When would the cut-off date be to apply, what 

is the threshold? What if family circumstances 

change through the year? Can they apply on 

an on-going basis, not just at the start of term? 

 

These details will be finalised via consultation 

with colleges; they will then need to publicise 

their own arrangements to students. They know 

their students and can respond to changes. 

e) Will the hardship fund be available to all who 

are eligible or just through certain colleges and 

sixth forms? How will access and equality in 

decision making be ensured? Who will make 

the decision? College level or county level? 

Fairness is key! 

f) If grants are being made to colleges only in low 

income area eg. Hastings, sounds difficult to 

administer and also unfair to other parts of the 

county. 

g) What about crossing district and county 

boundaries for college?  Due to course i.e. 

Lewes YP going to Eastbourne or Brighton? 

What about those going out of county? Some 

transport costs will be higher.  

The current favoured model (to reach the most 

vulnerable) is for the Fund to be allocated to the 

‘Top 5’ providers only (which had significantly 

higher numbers of free transport claimants in 

2014/15 compared with other providers). These 

5 providers are: 

 Sussex Downs College 

 Plumpton College 

 Sussex Coast College 

 Bexhill College 

 DV8 Bexhill 

 

This is likely to be further weighted towards 

Plumpton College as they have a higher 

proportion of low income students and the 

viability of some of their courses may otherwise 

be threatened. 

Colleges will continue to promote the support 

available to new students and on their 

websites.  

ESCC welcomes support from the YC in 

discussing the details of the Hardship Fund 

administration. 

h) How will this impact on young people who have 

been awarded a ‘scholarship’ to a sixth form or 

college? If they can’t afford to travel, will they 

have to turn down their scholarship? Youth 

Cabinet felt this cohort should be considered if 

As there is limited support, it will be restricted to 

those who can demonstrate the low income 

criteria. 

Page 89



YC comment or question ESCC Response 

borderline, but not eligible for the hardship 

fund. 

i) Apprentices get travel support. Seems there 

would be disparity between those taking up 

apprenticeships and those taking up a college 

course? Will this push more young people into 

apprenticeships from lower income families 

who would have preferred an A level course? 

There will be pros and cons on this for 

apprenticeship pathways. 

Yes – all of these suppositions are possible. 

j) Easier to pick up ‘knock on’ effect issues that 

affect vulnerable young people if they are at 

college. Surely this has a better impact 

financially for ESCC services if problems are 

found out at college, rather than when it’s too 

late, ie sexual health, mental health, housing 

etc especially for vulnerable and low income 

students.  

It is hoped that the most vulnerable students 

will still be supported to attend college via the 

Hardship Fund. A number of services work with 

the most vulnerable young people so it is hoped 

that issues would still be identified. 

k) Have they reviewed statutory U16’s travel 

budget to see if any waste or underspend that 

could be put to over 16’s budget?  

This is being reviewed and scrutinised 

continuously in order to make savings – so that 

more is left available for discretionary age 

groups, however the Council has little flexibility 

in terms of statutory provision. 

l) -Is it worth it!?  Communicating with us if 

decision is already made. 

It has been very helpful to hear views from 

young people on the potential impact and ideas 

for mitigation. ESCC will also meet with YC to 

discuss administration of the Hardship Fund. 

m) Loads of other costs already for new students? 

Books, clothes lunches? How is ESCC making 

sure it understands the full financial impact of a 

student starting post 16 education/training 

ESCC will be monitoring the impact on figures 

for young people continuing in post-16 

education and consulting with colleges to 

understand the support they are providing and 

where there may be gaps. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 90



4. Responses to questionnaire – proposal to cease FE Link transport 

YC comment or question ESCC Response 

a) Will low income families in rural areas been 

seen as a priority? Already cutting bus routes 

last year, so even more impact going forward. 

This is a very small number (3 in 2014/15) of 

16-19 year olds living in rural locations, and this 

free transport to a train or bus stop is not 

means-tested. ESCC will be monitoring impact 

and open to communication from colleges 

regarding any exceptional cases for which lack 

of public transport is making it impossible for a 

young person to attend post-16 education. 

b) Can Low income Families access community 

transport schemes already in place for 

challenging locations? - Community transport 

options, is there any other transport options. 

The free FE Link transport has been offered as 

all other options have been exhausted, and the 

YP is over 3 miles from the nearest station or 

bus stop. 

c) If participation age is raised but there’s no one 

being prosecuted, what would happen if 

parents refused to allow them to attend? Is it a 

form of child abuse/neglect, again this could be 

another reason parents keep young people 

away from education. 

Responsibility for continuing with education lies 

with the young person. If their parent is unable 

or refuses to support them, they should contact 

their college or sixth form’s student services 

and ask for support. 

 

 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Consultation with post-16 colleges and providers               

 

Meetings with school sixth forms and colleges occurred on 19 May and 8 July to raise 

awareness and discuss potential impact and mitigation. They were also invited to individual 

meetings and to respond via email. The following table captures the main issues and 

responses. 

 

1. Post-16 transport support for 16-19 year old from low income families 

ESCC proposal / possible mitigation Response / findings 

1. Withdrawal of all direct ESCC support for 16-

19 year old students from low income 

families, in tandem with mitigating impact on 

the most vulnerable low income students via 

the allocation of a Hardship Fund, to the 

value of 25% of the total amount of support 

given to all East Sussex students in 2014/15. 

 

There was some concern from small sixth forms 

with very small numbers of students supported in 

2014/15. A number of the larger FE colleges 

suggested that they should be able to support 

their students in other ways, but would also find 

the Hardship Fund helpful in meeting demand. 

2. ESCC have assumed increased use of 16-19 

bursaries from the Education Funding 

Agency (EFA) Student Bursary Support 

Service, which are claimed via the provider. 

The bursaries offer support to young people 

in one of the defined vulnerable groups 

(those who do not have access to parental 

support and those receiving certain benefits 

in their own right). It also enables institutions 

to make discretionary awards to those young 

people they assess as facing the greatest 

financial barriers to participation. 

A yearly bursary of up to £1,200 is available 

to young people in one of the four defined 

vulnerable groups, which includes: young 

people in care, care leavers, those on 

Income Support or receiving Universal Credit 

in place of Income Support, disabled young 

people (in receipt of both ESA and DLA or 

PIP.  

 

 

 

The Discretionary element of the bursary is 

minimal and will not usually cover all costs as the 

standard funding rate is £298. Guidance states 

that for most institutions, the discretionary 

bursary allocation for 2015 / 2016 has been 

calculated on:  

 the number of students that received £30 a 

week EMA in the 2009 / 2010, as a 

percentage of the 2010 / 2011 funded 

student numbers  

 this percentage has been applied to each 

institution’s 2015 / 2016 allocated student 

numbers and multiplied by the 2015 / 2016 

standard funding rate of £298 

 

For example: if the percentage is 40%, and there 

are 500 allocated student numbers in an 

institution, that would mean an allocation of 200 x 

£298.The discretionary bursary is paid in 2 parts; 

e.g. two-thirds in August 2015 and a third in April 

2016. 

Page 93

Appendix 4



2 

 

ESCC proposal / possible mitigation Response / findings 

3. The full list of providers and allocations is 

shown for information in Table 1.                 

(Of the 31 organisations with students 

receiving ESCC LIF travel support in 

2014/15, 22 had 3 or fewer of these students. 

£27k of free support was given to 71 students 

at 9 providers located outside East Sussex. 

The ‘top 5’ had a share of 80% of the 

beneficiary students and 83% of the total 

budget).  

The 5 providers which had significantly 

higher numbers and costs for eligible 

students in 2014/15 are (in order): 

 Sussex Downs College 

 Plumpton College 

 Sussex Coast College 

 Bexhill College 

 DV8 Bexhill / Brighton 

ESCC proposed that the Hardship Fund be 

shared between these 5 providers based on 

a share proportionate to previous demand. 

Table 2 contains a summary of the number 

of students at each of the 5 providers 

receiving ESCC travel support as a 

percentage of the 16-19 student population. 

Table 3 shows the most recently available 

comparison of the number of 16-19 year olds 

eligible for FSM in the previous 6 years as a 

percentage of the 16-19 student population. 

 

Response from the FE Colleges was reasonably 

positive, with initial concerns regarding Plumpton, 

and with the small vocational provider DV8 

stating that ‘institutions such as ours, where the 

proportion of vulnerable students is high, should 

receive a higher percentage of the overall fund’. 

The initial model with the available amount for the 

Hardship Fund (£30k in 2016/17 and £60k in 

2017/18) allocated to the ‘top 5’ East Sussex 

providers, based on a share proportionate to 

previous demand is shown in Table 4. 

 

4. The Authority was aware that Plumpton 

College was likely to be disproportionately 

impacted by the changes due to their location 

and transport infrastructure, compounded by 

the nature of their cohort and the proportion 

of their students receiving ESCC travel 

support. 14.5% of their students aged 16-19 

were receiving travel support in 2014/15, 

compared with 9.9% for Sussex Coast and 

2.3% for Sussex Downs College. Tables 2 

and 3 demonstrate that although Sussex 

Coast and Sussex Downs have large 

numbers of young people from low income 

families, the majority of these live in the local 

community.The College responded in mid-

September with the concerns included in 

Appendix 6. 

The information available regarding the unique 

circumstances of Plumpton College and DV8 and 

their student intake, together with the detailed 

response from Plumpton, have prompted the 

promotion of a revised model. This model 

provides weighting to compensate for a higher 

level of risk as a result of the changes, by 

doubling the original Hardship Fund allocation for 

both Plumpton College and DV8.  

This would result in the share for each provider 

shown in Table 5, with Plumpton receiving £27k 

(against 2014/15 funding of £46k in 2014/15). 

The allocations for the remaining 3 FE colleges 

would be reduced as needed in proportion with 

their original share of the fund available. 

Page 94



3 

 

ESCC proposal / possible mitigation Response / findings 

5. Although a very small number of individuals 

(5, with an average cost of £1,015 per year) 

we also need to consider if or how we will 

support those currently being offered 

organised transport rather than bus or train 

passes or travel grants. 

CSD to monitor potential impact on low income 

students with exceptionally difficult journeys to 

college. 

6. CET suggested that some colleges may wish 

to consider pairing up to look into the 

potential of sharing some of their transport 

provision, as there may be some economy in 

doing so. 

The following pairs have been contacted with the 

suggestion:  

 Plumpton / Sussex Downs (Lewes), 

 Bexhill and Sussex Coast College (and 

possibly DV8) 

 

ESCC proposal / possible mitigation Response / findings 

FE Link Transport 

Proposed cessation of FE Link transport for a 

very small number of 16-19 year olds (non-

means tested) 

No comment was made by colleges on this 

proposal. 

 

Table 1: List of all providers with 16-19 year old students receiving ESCC transport support 

(LIF) in 2014/15 academic year - presented on next page as landscape format 

 

 

Table 2: ‘Top 5’ providers and proportion of their cohort receiving LIF travel support 

Provider  

Number of 16-19 
year old students 
receiving ESCC 
travel support 
2014/15 

Total number of  
16-19 year old 
students on roll 

Number 
receiving support 
as a percentage 

Sussex Downs College 81 3586 2.3% 

Plumpton College 81 557 14.5% 

Sussex Coast College 145 1465 9.9% 

Bexhill College 50 1723 2.9% 

DV8 Bexhill / Brighton  13 41 31.7% 
 

Table 3: ‘Top 5’ providers and proportion of their cohort eligible for FSM in previous 6 years 

Provider  

Number of 16-19 
year old students 
eligible for 
FSMever6* 
2012/13 

Total number of  
16-19 year old 
students on roll 

Number eligible 
for FSM as a 
percentage 

Sussex Downs College 653 3658 17.9% 

Plumpton College 77 423 18.2% 

Sussex Coast College 486 1568 31.0% 

Bexhill College 263 1723 15.3% 

DV8 Bexhill / Brighton  15 33 45.5% 

Page 95



4 

 

Table 4: ‘Top 5’ providers and proportionate share of the Hardship Fund 

Provider  

Total 
number 
of 
students 

Total 
cost 
2014/15 

Proportion 
of total 
share 

Year 1 HF 
allocation 

Year 2 HF 
allocation 

Sussex Downs College 149 £81,840 40.2% £12,069 £24,138 

Plumpton College 81 £46,058 22.6% £6,792 £13,584 

Sussex Coast College 77 £38,814 19.1% £5,724 £11,448 

Bexhill College 50 £30,400 14.9% £4,483 £8,966 

DV8 Bexhill / Brighton  13 £6,322 3.1% £932 £1,865 

Grand Total 370 £203,434 100.0% £30,000 £60,000 
 

Table 5: ‘Top 5’ providers and weighted share of the Hardship Fund 

Provider  

Total 
number 
of 
students 

Total 
cost 
2014/15 

Weighted 
Proportion 
of total 
share 

Year 1 HF 
allocation 

Year 2 HF 
allocation 

Sussex Downs College 149 £81,840 26.3% £7,884 £15,768 

Plumpton College 81 £46,058 45.3% £13,584 £27,168 

Sussex Coast College 77 £38,814 12.5% £3,739 £7,478 

Bexhill College 50 £30,400 9.8% £2,928 £5,857 

DV8 Bexhill / Brighton  13 £6,322 6.2% £1,865 £3,729 

Grand Total 370 £203,434 100.0% £30,000 £60,000 

 

 

Page 96



5 

 

Table 1: List of all providers with 16-19 year old students receiving ESCC transport support (LIF) in 2014/15 academic year 

 
Bus tickets Travel grants Totals 

 

Provider  

Freedom 
Pass 
(£608) 

B&H 
Bus ID    
(£290) 

Band 1 
(£300) 

Band 2 
(£450) 

Band 3 
(£600) 

Total 
no.of 
students 

Total 
cost 
2014/15 

As % of 
total 
budget 

25% 
hardship 
fund Y2 

ARK 6th Form at The Ridge 1 0 0 0 0 1 £608 0.25% £152 
Bennett Memorial Diocesan Sch 1 0 0 1 0 2 £1,058 0.43% £265 
Bexhill College 50 0 0 0 0 50 £30,400 12.47% £7,600 
BHASVIC 0 5 0 0 0 5 £1,450 0.60% £363 
BIMM 0 1 0 0 2 3 £1,490 0.61% £373 
Brighton Academy 0 0 0 0 1 1 £600 0.25% £150 
Cardinal Newman 0 3 0 0 0 3 £870 0.36% £218 
City College 0 36 1 1 0 38 £11,190 4.59% £2,798 
CSC H Heath 0 0 1 0 0 1 £300 0.12% £75 
DV8 Bexhill / Brighton  4 1 3 2 3 13 £6,322 2.59% £1,581 
EBNE Borough FC  0 0 0 0 1 1 £600 0.25% £150 
Hailsham Community College AT 1 0 0 0 0 1 £608 0.25% £152 
Heathfield Community College 3 0 0 0 0 3 £1,824 0.75% £456 
Homewood Sixth Form 1 0 0 0 0 1 £608 0.25% £152 
Northbrook College 0 0 0 0 2 2 £1,200 0.49% £300 
Norton Knatchbull 0 0 0 1 0 1 £450 0.18% £113 
Plumpton College 1 0 7 3 70 81 £46,058 18.90% £11,515 
Ringmer Community College 2 0 0 0 1 3 £1,816 0.75% £454 
Rye Studio School 2 0 0 0 1 3 £1,816 0.75% £454 
Sackville 0 0 1 0 0 1 £300 0.12% £75 
Shoreham Academy 0 0 0 0 1 1 £600 0.25% £150 
St Pauls 0 0 1 0 0 1 £300 0.12% £75 
Sussex Coast College 33 0 24 3 17 77 £38,814 15.93% £9,704 
Sussex Downs College 75 6 11 20 37 149 £81,840 33.58% £20,460 
The Judd 0 0 0 1 0 1 £450 0.18% £113 
Tonbridge Grammar 0 0 1 0 0 1 £300 0.12% £75 
Uckfield Community College 3 0 0 0 0 3 £1,824 0.75% £456 
Uplands Community College 1 0 0 0 0 1 £608 0.25% £152 
Varndean College 0 6 1 0 0 7 £2,040 0.84% £510 
West Kent College 0 0 0 1 10 11 £6,450 2.65% £1,613 
Not recorded 0 0 0 2 1 3 £1,500 0.62% £375 
Grand Total 178 58 51 35 147 469 £244,294 100.25% £61,074 

P
age 97



6 

 

 

P
age 98



 

ESCC 16-19 year old students transport Hardship Fund 

 

For new starters from 2016/17, East Sussex County Council has ceased direct travel support 

for 16-19 year old students from low income families as a result of diminishing resources. A 

similar Hardship Fund has been retained, and colleges with a significant number of these 

students will be allocated a proportion (approximately 25% of the original fund). 

In order to ensure equality and fairness, the Council proposes the eligibility criteria set out in 

Section A. There is also a requirement for monitoring and reporting on the recipients on an 

annual basis in order to continue to receive the Hardship Fund allocation.  

Post-16 providers are asked to note that, as we move forward, the Council may need to 

make further savings and this funding may be withdrawn, reduced further or otherwise 

altered. If this occurs appropriate notice will be given. 

 

Section A: Eligibility criteria 

Recipients should satisfy all five of the following criteria: 

 Age 16-18 at the start of the academic year. 

 The student is from a family which meets the low income criteria, or is independently 
in receipt of one of the following: 

 Income Support (IS) 

 income-based Jobseekers Allowance (JSA) 

 income-related Employment and Support Allowance (ESA) 

 support under Part VI of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999 

 the guaranteed element of State Pension Credit 

 Child Tax Credit assessed on an Income of £16,190 or less (but not Working Tax 
Credit unless there is no reduction due to level of earnings) 

 Universal Credit (UC) 
 

 The student’s main residence is over 3 miles away measured by the shortest walking 

distance (as a young person should be able to walk this distance without the need for 

financial support for public or other transport). This can be calculated using Google 

maps and the walking option. 

 The college or sixth form is the closest provider offering a suitable course which 

allows the student to follow their chosen career, or to go on to university.  

 The course runs for a minimum of one academic year on a full time basis (a minimum 

of 12 hours per week).  

 

Section B: Other factors for consideration 

Students may be eligible for alternative sources of financial support, and in this instance they 

may not require assistance from the Hardship Bursary fund. 

Page 99

Appendix 5



 

1. Students may qualify for 16-19 Bursaries funded by the Education Funding Agency 

(EFA) which has introduced a new online application process. Payments can be cash or 

in-kind. There are 2 types of bursary: 

 a vulnerable bursary of up to £1,200 a year for young people in one of the 

defined vulnerable groups; young people in or leaving care, those receiving 

benefits including IS, US in place of IS, and young people with SEND receiving 

ESA and DLA or PIP in their own right 

 a discretionary bursary which should be targeted at students who cannot stay in 

education without financial help for things, including travel to their placement 

2. Some students with SEND will be entitled to a disabled Person’s Bus Pass. This gives 

free travel, although it can only be used after 9:30am so may not always be suitable for 

morning journeys. 

3. Students with SEND may be able to claim benefits in their own right about which they 

may be unaware, including DLA (which at the higher rate includes an element to assist 

with transport costs) and ESA; which in turn provide eligibility for the EFA bursaries. 

 
 

Section C: Monitoring allocation of the Hardship Fund 

In order to continue to receive an allocated share of the transport Hardship Fund, providers 

should report to ESCC on the following for each recipient at the end of the academic year: 

a) Name 

b) Date of birth 

c) Postcode 

d) College site 

e) Course name 

f) Amount allocated 

g) Reason for approval* 

*suggested information includes confirmation of family / independent student income, the 

nature of travel being funded or subsidised, any other relevant circumstances 

 

 

ESCC contact details: xxx.xxx@eastsussex.gov.uk   01273 XXXXXX 

Page 100

mailto:xxx.xxx@eastsussex.gov.uk


Consultation response from Plumpton College               

 

We are very concerned about the proposed reduction in support for post-16 travel and feel 

that it will ultimately lead to problems in student recruitment and retention.  

1. Last year 81 Plumpton students benefitted from a travel grant and most of these 

were in band 3 (£600 award). We have a far larger catchment area than most 

Colleges due to the specialist nature of our provision and our recruitment data for this 

academic year would indicate that we have a very similar geographic spread of 

students to last year. This means that we are continuing to attract students from 

further afield who rely on the post 16 travel grant. Without the grant these students 

would not be able to meet the cost of transport and therefore not be able to access 

College.  

2. We do have access to the EFA discretionary bursary. Since its introduction we have 

over-committed funds each year to provide support to students.  It does not come 

close to the amount needed to provide adequate financial support to students and 

last year we had to over commit by £94,155 to provide a minimum level of support. In 

the same year we also subsidised our transport network by £170,000 (in addition to 

any bursaries awarded) which is greater than any differential in funding that our 

students may attract. The cost of transport is a recurring issue raised by our students 

in cross-college consultations. 

3. Our students do not benefit from Freedom tickets or rail cards. Whilst they are 

eligible the routes to/from College as so infrequent and poorly timed that they are not 

able to use them to access College. I raised this point earlier in the year in the 

consultation programme for the reduction in public routes within the area. 

4. We run a private bus service for our students which is a good step towards 

encouraging independence. I know that there is a push to reduce the reliance on 

individual taxis in favour of independent travel. We must maintain our routes to allow 

this transition to take place but without the right funding support systems in place for 

students we will not be able to do so. Our current routes run at capacity. 

5. In assessing future support I’d ask that you ensure that you’re aware of the difference 

in demography between Plumpton and other Colleges. The distance travelled by our 

students is perhaps the greatest difference and we are increasingly recruiting 

vulnerable learners from disadvantaged backgrounds. Transport is a greater issue to 

Plumpton that any other College in the county. Even the current level of support and 

its delivery mechanism is not enough for many learners. 

6. We would prefer that support for our students comes directly to us so that we can 

assess each student and provide immediate support from the first day of term. At 

present some families wait around 5 weeks from enrolment before they receive their 

first payment and struggle to meet the cost of transport in the interim. We would also 

use this situation to limit the impact of cuts on band 3 students. 

Page 101

Appendix 6



I understand the difficulties that you face in being served with Government cuts. The above 

is potentially one of many concerns that we face over the coming months with regards to 

student funding. I would ask that you recognise our unique position and the heightened 

importance that the funding of transport has on our core business. We are not in the same 

boat as other Colleges. 

Page 102



Scrutiny Board comments and response              

Discretionary Transport Scrutiny Review Board – 15 October 2015 

1. SCRUTINY REVIEW BOARD MEETING  

1.1 At its meeting on 21 September 2015, the Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee appointed 
a Review Board to consider proposed savings on the following two areas of discretionary 
spend on Home To School Transport: 

 Travel support for post-16 students from Low Income Families (LIF) and FE link 
transport; and 

 Travel support for students with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) 

1.2 A summary of the key points made by the Board at its meeting on 15 October 2015 are set 
out below.    

 

2. REVIEW BOARD COMMENTS WITH RESPONSE 

No. Comment Response 

1 The Board felt more consideration should be 

given by the Department to the operation of 

the hardship fund it is proposing to set up to 

mitigate the impact of the proposed savings 

for 16-19 year olds from Low Income Families.   

Given the fund would be administered by the 5 

colleges identified in the proposals, the Board 

in particular asked the Department to give 

more consideration to monitoring how the fund 

would be spent.  The Board also felt that 

consideration should be given as to how each 

application could be looked at on a case by 

case basis. 

Guidance for eligibility, allocation and 

monitoring of the ESCC Hardship Fund 

(Appendix 5 of this report) has been 

circulated to the five post-16 providers which 

will receive a proportion of the fund, together 

with the proposed weighted allocations for 

each institution. 

2 The Board were presented with a table setting 

out a number of potential risks, impacts and 

mitigations.   One potential risk which the 

Board discussed in detail was the outcome 

that the proposed savings may deter students 

from low income families from continuing in 

Post-16 education.   The Board felt that the 

mitigation to this risk did not produce a 

significant reduction and therefore asked 

whether further consideration could be given 

to how this risk might be reduced further (and 

if not whether the risk was worth taking). 

The Board were considering the original risk 

table presented as an Appendix for the report 

to Lead Member on 8 June. Since that time 

and over the consultation period, the level of 

perceived risk following mitigation has been 

reduced from 4 x 4 (impact x likelihood) to 4 x 

3 in Appendix 12 to reflect the fact that the 

mitigations are now considered to be more 

effective, particularly as: 

 Post-16 providers will have access to EFA 

bursary funding which can be used to 

support LIF students. The five East 

Sussex providers with the highest need 

will also receive a Hardship Fund 

allocation to supplement this existing 

support and specifically target their low 

income students’ transport needs. 

 As set out in Appendix 9 there appears to 

Page 103

Appendix 7



No. Comment Response 

be no correlation between provision of 

free post-16 transport and the levels of 16-

19 year olds who are NEET (not in 

education, employment or training). 

It should also be noted that the risk measure 

methodology is not a scientific measure and is 

not for example take into account the numbers 

of young people likely to be impacted. There is 

still a risk that some CYP may be affected, 

however we hope that these numbers will be 

low. 

3 The Board understood the reasoning behind 

the proposed targeting of the hardship fund at 

the 5 colleges identified in the papers before 

them.  However, it was noted that no 6th form 

colleges would have access to the hardship 

funding and therefore the Board asked that 

further consideration be given to this point.   

The Board also asked for clarification as to 

what funding 6th Forms may already have in 

place to support students from low income 

families. 

All providers offering education for 16-19 year 

olds receive an allocation from the Education 

Funding Agency (EFA) which is proportionate 

to their LIF student cohorts. This is explained 

in Appendix 8. 

 

Page 104



EFA bursaries and other sources of financial support            

1. Education Funding Agency (EFA) Student Bursaries 

Students between the ages of 16 and 19 years may be eligible to receive a 16-19 bursary from the 

EFA Student Bursary Support Service. The bursaries offer support to young people in one of the 

defined vulnerable groups (those who do not have access to parental support and those receiving 

certain benefits in their own right). It also enables institutions to make discretionary awards to those 

young people they assess as facing the greatest financial barriers to participation. Education 

institutions are responsible for managing both types of bursary. 

There are 2 types of 16 to 19 bursaries:  

 a vulnerable bursary of up to £1,200 a year for young people in one of the defined vulnerable 

groups; young people in care, care leavers, those on Income Support or receiving Universal 

Credit in place of Income Support, disabled young people (in receipt of both Employment 

Support Allowance and Disability Living Allowance or Personal Independence Payment) 

 discretionary bursaries that institutions award to meet individual needs. For example, 

transport, meals, books and equipment 

Young people in the defined vulnerable groups are usually living apart from their parents/carers, 

so they can get social security benefits in their own right. Total household income must not exceed 

£25,000 per annum, and they must have been resident in the UK for at least 3 years. 

 

Institutions are responsible for verifying that young people meet the criteria for vulnerable student 

bursaries and they are applied for after enrolment (whereas ESCC transport is applied for up to 5 

months in advance). Discretionary bursaries may be awarded if a student needs financial help but 

does not qualify for a vulnerable student bursary. The education or training provider decides how 

much is awarded and what it is used for. 

Bursary payments are made directly into student bank accounts only. 

2. Allocation of EFA bursary fund to ESCC colleges and sixth forms 

To be eligible for an allocation of the 16 to 19 discretionary Bursary Fund, an institution must be 

publicly funded and subject to inspection by a public body that assures quality, such as Ofsted. 

The institution must also be either: 

 funded by Education Funding Agency directly or via a local authority  

 funded or co-financed by the European Social Fund, or  

 publicly funded and lead to a qualification (up to level 3) that is accredited by Ofqual or is 

pursuant to Section 96 of the Learning and Skills Act 2000 

As a result, 100% of East Sussex pupils attending an academy, maintained school sixth form or FE 

college would if eligible be able to apply to both the vulnerable student and discretionary part of the 

EFA bursary funding. 

Also, students placed at independent and charitable schools by their local authorities, who meet the 

vulnerable student criteria are able to apply for an EFA vulnerable student bursary through the young 

person’s home authority. 

Page 105

Appendix 8



For institutions that already have a contract or funding agreement with the EFA, a bursary allocation 

will be made annually as detailed below. These institutions must use the claim form to draw down 

vulnerable bursaries. Institutions should manage the discretionary bursary to keep payments within 

budget. 

For most institutions, the bursary allocation for the 2015/2016 academic year was calculated on:  

 the number of students that received £30 a week EMA in the 2009/2010 academic year, as a 

percentage of the 2010/2011 funded student numbers  

 this percentage has been applied to institutions’  2015 to 2016 allocated student numbers and 

multiplied by the 2015 to 2016 standard funding rate of £298 

For example: if the percentage is 40%, and there are 500 allocated student numbers in an institution, 

that would mean an allocation of 200 x £298. 

Institutions that are new to the EFA (and had no EMA students in 2009/10), or where the provision 

was new in 2011/12 or later, the EFA applies a flat rate of 36% of the allocated student numbers.  As 

an example, DV8 normally work with about 40 learner a year, therefore their allocation will be:         

36% x 40 x £298 = £4,291. 

Children’s Services do not have access to the figures for EFA bursary allocation to FE colleges, 

academies with sixth forms and other vocational providers, but distribute the fund to East Sussex 

school sixth forms and special schools, whose 2015/16 allocations are shown below. The following 

schools receive the indicated amounts into their budgets and are then responsible for making 

decisions on which students will be supported, and by how much: 

Name of establishment 16 - 19 Bursary Fund 

Uckfield CTC £25,083 

Heathfield CC £27,327 

Uplands CC £11,669 

Grove Park £4,638 

The Lindfield £500 

Hazel Court £3,623 

Total £72,840 
 

3. Other sources of financial support for disadvantaged students include: 

 The national charity Turn2Us which has extensive information on benefits and grants for full-

time students 

 Grants for Individuals – many of which are targeted at young people with disabilities 

Grants for 

Individuals.doc
 

 the Directory of Social Change (available in libraries) 

 Other benefits claimed by the young person themselves, eg Employment Support Allowance 

(ESA) and Disability Living Allowance (DLA) 

 There is also extra help for young parents 

Page 106

http://www.turn2us.org.uk/Your-Situation/Studying-(age-16-)
https://e-library.eastsussex.gov.uk/cgi-bin/spydus.exe/ENQ/OPAC/BIBENQ/5859357?QRY=CTIBIB%3c%20IRN(1641900)&QRYTEXT=The%20guide%20to%20grants%20for%20individuals%20in%20need


 

 

Other local authorities – NEET level against transport offer           

 

A web survey has been conducted to determine the transport support offered by the other county 

councils to 16-19 year old students from low income families. The offer ranged from no support at all, 

to some reductions on the usual cost of travel, to a significant subsidy, eg halved cost of a bus pass, 

to a range of ‘free’ transport options such as free bus passes and grants similar to that currently 

offered by East Sussex County Council. 

The Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET) figures for each county council for the two 

most recent academic years has been added to the table below.   

Web survey

 16-19 LIF 

support 

 

Estimated 

number 

NEET % NEET

 Estimated 

number 

NEET % NEET

Buckinghamshire None 16,812       590        3.5% 1.5% 17,190       550         3.2% 2.4%

Cambridgeshire Reductions 19,295       810        4.2% 2.1% 19,570       710         3.6% 2.8%

Cumbria Free 16,611       810        4.9% 2.2% 10,870       350         3.2% 5.2%

Derbyshire None 26,471       1,270     4.8% 5.5% 8,300         530         6.4% 3.9%

Devon 50% of £520 24,744       1,360     5.5% 2.1% 24,850       1,050      4.2% 2.4%

Dorset Some grants 12,822       500        3.9% 3.0% 13,210       540         4.1% 4.4%

East Sussex Free 15,970       1,260     7.9% 9.8% 16,330       870         5.3% 6.5%

Essex 50% of £900 49,579       2,430     4.9% 7.9% 49,890       2,300      4.6% 7.2%

Gloucestershire None 19,508       940        4.8% 11.6% 19,480       880         4.5% 13.0%

Hampshire None 41,134       2,260     5.5% 12.3% 41,730       1,780      4.3% 16.9%

Hertfordshire None 38,307       1,570     4.1% 4.0% 38,310       1,410      3.7% 3.8%

Kent 50% of £200 51,706       3,000     5.8% 8.4% 52,670       2,470      4.7% 15.1%

Lancashire  None 41,558       2,200     5.3% 10.8% 5,890         470         8.0% 9.9%

Leicestershire  Free 21,820       740        3.4% 3.1% 12,510       790         6.3% 3.5%

Lincolnshire None 25,689       1,130     4.4% 14.6% 21,260       660         3.1% 3.1%

North Yorkshire 50% of £480 18,747       810        4.3% 14.8% 5,900         300         5.1% 7.8%

Norfolk 75% of £495* 26,711       1,550     5.8% 8.1% - - - -

Northamptonshire 50% of £600 23,690       1,350     5.7% 4.7% 25,360       1,340      5.3% 7.0%

Nottinghamshire Reductions 27,015       840        3.1% 6.7% 9,840         610         6.2% 2.4%

Oxfordshire None 18,199       870        4.8% 18.8% 18,500       690         3.7% 10.0%

Somerset None 17,405       870        5.0% 4.8% 4,780         290         6.1% 3.4%

Staffordshire Reductions 27,910       1,420     5.1% 8.4% 7,560         370         4.9% 8.1%

Suffolk None 23,892       1,480     6.2% 8.2% 23,430       1,310      5.6% 9.3%

Surrey None 29,226       530        1.8% 15.7% 30,090       500         1.7% 14.8%

Warwickshire None 18,452       1,010     5.5% 11.3% 10,120       470         4.6% 7.3%

West Sussex None 24,834       1,220     4.9% 10.8% 26,130       1,160      4.4% 20.2%

Worcestershire None 18,026       960        5.3% 39.3% 9,130         380         4.1% 11.3%

SOUTH EAST N/A 267,149     13,620   5.1% 10.2%  273,570     11,530    4.2% 12.5%

2013/14 2014/15

 

Notes 

1. Shaded rows: The proportion of 16-18 year olds whose current activity is not known is more than 

50% above the England average of 9.2%.  As a result, it is possible that the number and 

proportion NEET will be inaccurate. 

2. 2013/14 data are an average at the end of November 2013, December 2013 and January 2014; 

same method for 2014. 

       

The data appears to show that there is no correlation between the transport offer for LIF students and 

a county council’s NEET figures; although there could be a range of contextual differences such as 

the costs of public transport systems. 

Page 107

Appendix 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Potential impact on bus services and the Passenger Transport Budget      
 
 
This response is from the perspective of the CET Passenger Transport Team’s role of 
managing the Council’s Public Transport Strategic Commissioning Strategy and 
understanding of the commercial and supported bus service provision in the county. 
 
From the consultation commentary it is noted that Children’s Services currently give travel 
assistance to around 470 young people from low income families at a cost of approximately 
£240,000 per year. These young people would have been provided with either a travel grant, 
free place on a school coach, or travel pass.  
 
The Passenger Transport Team has identified two key risks if the changes were made: 
 
1. Risk to viability of bus services 
There is a risk to the viability of some bus services in East Sussex if fewer young people 
travel by bus as a result of a change to travel support to students. If use of services were to 
reduce, there would be a consequential reduction in income for commercial bus operators.  
The level of reduction would only be known once the new post-16 travel support 
arrangements are implemented, as a proportion of students are likely to continue to travel. 
Other students may instead travel by car or bike, or choose a more local educational 
establishment due to the burden of travel costs.  
 
The ESCC Freedom pass is provided to young people from low income families to travel on 
ESCC supported bus routes (funded through the CET revenue budget) and routes run on a 
commercial basis by bus operators. Use of these Freedom passes is distributed across a 
large number of bus routes serving 15 post-16 education establishments. ESCC pays the 
commercial operator on a per pass basis for accepting Freedom passes. A further 
approximately 50 young people receive a Saver bus pass for use on Brighton & Hove Bus 
Company routes. 
 
The risk to individual bus routes is likely to be greater for those where there are more 
students with low income travel support. The table overleaf illustrates those bus routes on 
which more than three post-16 low income students received an East Sussex Freedom pass 
in November 2014 (an average month in the academic year). 
 
2. Risk to CET’s Passenger Transport Budget 
Unlike commercial operators, ESCC does not pay the operators of the supported bus routes 
it contracts for accepting Freedom passes issued by ESCC. In 2014/15 CET’s passenger 
transport budget was credited with £37,200 for the full cost of Freedom passes issued to 45 
post-16 students from low income families travelling on ESCC supported routes, thereby 
reducing the net cost to ESCC of providing the service. Due to a number of contracted bus 
routes being taken on by bus operators on a commercial basis from April 2015, the amount 
credited to the CET budget is anticipated to be less, at £27,400 in 2015/16. 
 
The direct effect to the CET budget of implementing this post-16 travel support proposal 
would be a loss of income. Whilst CET will try to recover as much of this income as possible 
by negotiating lower contract prices with the contracted operators, the difficulty will be in 
establishing how many of the post-16 students affected have reverted to paying bus fares.  
Therefore the total saving to ESCC in removing travel support for low income post 16 
students would be less than £240,000, to a maximum reduction of £27,400.  
 
However, as 24 of these were Bexhill College students on 3 routes, it appears that these 
students (or similar ones) will continue to buy Freedom Passes, as the large FE colleges 
have indicated that they will assist their most needy students with the EFA bursary scheme 

Page 109

Appendix 10



or the new Hardship Fund. This should allow CET to negotiate revised contract prices with 
those routes and reduce the forecast loss of income. 
 
Bus routes with a higher number of Freedom passes issued to young people from low 
income families as at November 2014  
 

Education Establishment  
Route 
No Operator as at September 2015 

Freedom 
Passes 

Bexhill College 70 ESCC CET funded service 6 

  95 Renown commercial service 15 

  98 Stagecoach commercial service 4 

  99 Stagecoach commercial service 10 

  360 ESCC CET funded service 9 

  361 ESCC CET funded service 9 

Sussex Coast Col@Station 
Plaza 
  
  

99 Stagecoach commercial service 4 

100 Stagecoach commercial service 9 

101 Stagecoach commercial service 6 

Sussex Downs 
Col@Eastbourne 
  
  
  

51 Stagecoach commercial service 32 

54 Stagecoach commercial service 5 

98 Stagecoach commercial service 6 

12A Brighton & Hove commercial service 7 

  LOOP Stagecoach commercial service 6 

 Sussex Downs Col@Lewes 28/29 Brighton & Hove commercial service 7 

 
 
 
Note regarding fare levels 
ESCC is in the relatively fortunate position of having the agreement of nearly all bus 
operators to participate in the East Sussex Freedom ticket scheme. This long-standing 
scheme, coordinated by CET’s passenger transport team, provides unlimited travel in the 
county on nearly any bus for a weekly rate of £16. Unlike other authorities, this scheme is 
not subsidized by ESCC. With a significant reduction in post-16 travel assistance, increasing 
concerns are likely to be expressed about the level of bus fares charged to young people as 
being a barrier to education access. Discounted fares are generally only available to under 
16s in East Sussex. By withdrawing travel support for post-16 students, ESCC should expect 
to receive more public demands for a discounted bus fares scheme for young people aged 
under 19 in education, similar to the local authority subsidized arrangements in West 
Sussex, Surrey and Kent.  
 
 
 
Neil Maguire 
Team Manager, Public Transport Services 
Tel:  01273 482147 

 

Page 110



Page 111

Appendix 11



Page 112



ESCC Response to Letter from MP Nusrat Ghani    

 

Children’s Services recognise that young people living in rural areas often have more 
challenging and sometimes potentially dangerous journeys to college. As mentioned, the 
Hardship Fund would be available to help those on low incomes who were deemed to be 
most in need of the additional support. 

The number of students receiving the non-means tested free ‘FE Link transport’ is very 
small; in the 2014/15 academic year, there were only 3 travellers on 2 taxis with an actual 
annual cost to the HTST budget of £4.4k, each being transported between 3 and 5 miles 
from their homes to either a train station or a bus stop. We do not know the level of family 
income as this is not a requirement of access to this support. 

At the time of drawing up these proposals, it was felt that all areas of discretionary support 
should be considered, and therefore FE Link was included despite the small savings 
involved.  

In terms of reserving some of the Hardship Fund for young people who live in a rural area 
but who do not meet the low income criteria, this would mean that there would be less 
support available to those from households with a household income below the free school 
meals threshold (currently £16,190). We recommend therefore that awards from the Fund 
should be reserved for students who can meet low income criteria only. 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Risks for post-16 LIF and FE Link students combined                   

Risk Impact 

Initial risk score (5 is 

high, 1 is low) 
Proposed mitigation 

Score following action    

to mitigate 

Impact 
Likeli- 

hood 
Result Impact 

Likeli- 

hood 
Result 

1. Withdrawal of free 

transport for students 

from low income families 

and FE Link transport, 

may deter or prevent 

young people from 

continuing in post-16 

education. 

Negative impact on driving 

economic growth, in particular 

increasing the numbers of 

NEETs, and lowering 

educational aspirations for 

young people. Economic gains 

may not be worthwhile in a 

context of increased costs 

elsewhere. 

5 4 20 

Hardship fund to support the most 

needy LIF students in continuing 

in education, as well as 

highlighting other support, eg EFA 

bursaries. Rolling 

communications plan to reach 

young people approaching the 

transition in good time to allow 

sensible post-16 choices without 

the assumption that transport will 

be provided.  

Also encouraging colleges to 

improve transport for their own 

students through working in 

partnership to share transport 

provision or routes, e.g. Plumpton 

and Sussex Downs Lewes, 

Bexhill and Sussex Coast 

College. 

4 3 12 

2. Colleges with the most 

LIF students are 

adversely affected 

regarding the demand for 

bursary support 

Demand for financial support 

outstrips resources. 

3 3 6 

5 East Sussex post-16 providers 

with high numbers of LIF students 

receive an appropriate share of 

the hardship fund and provision of 

guidance for administration. 

2 2 4 

P
age 115

A
ppendix 12



 

 

Risk Impact 
Initial risk score (5 is 

high, 1 is low) 
Proposed mitigation 

Score following action    

to mitigate 

3. Reduction in enrolment 

numbers on certain 

courses. 

Impact on the viability of some 

colleges and sixth form courses.  

Likely to be greater impact on 

Plumpton College given their 

cohort and their rural location. 

3 3 9 

We will monitor the impact of any 

changes in provision over time, 

with close monitoring of impact on 

Plumpton College in particular. 

3 2 6 

 

P
age 116



 

Page 1 of 18 

 

Equality Impact Assessment     

Strategy or Policy Template 

 

Name of the strategy or policy 

Proposal to remove all travel support for post-16 students from low income 
families and allocate 25% (approximately £60k) of the forecast annual saving 
as a hardship fund. 

 

 

File ref:       Issue No:       

Date of Issue: May 2015 Review date: October 2015 

 

Contents 

 

Part 1  The Public Sector Equality Duty and Equality Impact Assessments  (EIA) ..... 2 

Part 2 – Aims and implementation of the proposal, strategy or policy ........................... 5 

Part 3 – Methodology, consultation, data and research used to determine impact on 
protected characteristics. .............................................................................................. 7 

Part 4 – Assessment of impact...................................................................................... 9 

Part 5 – Conclusions and recommendations for decision makers ............................... 14 

Part 6 – Equality impact assessment action plan ........................................................ 16 

(a) 6.1 Accepted Risk ......................................................................................... 18 

 

 

 

Summer 2009 

 

Page 117

Appendix 13



 

Page 2 of 18 

Part 1  The Public Sector Equality Duty and Equality Impact   
  Assessments  (EIA) 

 
1.1 The Council must have due regard to its Public Sector Equality Duty when making 
all decisions at member and officer level. An EIA is the best method by which the Council 
can determine the impact of  a proposal on equalities, particularly for major decisions. 
However, the level of analysis should be proportionate to the relevance of the duty to the 
service or decision. 
 
1.2 This is one of two forms that the County Council uses for Equality Impact 
Assessments, both of which are available on the intranet. This form is designed for 
any proposal, strategy or policy. The other form looks at services or projects. 
 
1.3 The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) 
The public sector duty is set out at Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. It  requires the 

Council, when exercising its functions, to have “due regard‟ to the need to 

 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited under the Act.  

 

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

 

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. (see below for “protected 
characteristics” 

 
These are sometimes called equality aims. 
 

1.4 A “protected characteristic‟ is defined in the Act as:  

 age;  

 disability;  

 gender reassignment;  

 pregnancy and maternity;  

 race (including ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality)  

 religion or belief;  

 sex;  

 sexual orientation.  
 
Marriage and civil partnership are also a protected characteristic for the purposes of the 
duty to eliminate discrimination.  
 
The previous public sector equalities duties only covered race, disability and gender. 
 
1.5 East Sussex County Council also considers the following additional 
 groups/factors when carry out analysis: 

 Carers – A carer spends a significant proportion of their life providing unpaid 
support to family or potentially friends. This could be caring for a relative, partner or 
friend who is ill, frail, disabled or has mental health or substance misuse problems. 
[Carers at the Heart of 21stCentury Families and Communities, 2008] 

 Literacy/Numeracy Skills 

Page 118



 

Page 3 of 18 

 Part time workers 

 Rurality  
 
1.6 Advancing equality (the second of the equality aims) involves: 
 

 Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected 
characteristic 

 

 Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are 
different from the needs of other people including steps to take account of disabled 
people’s disabilities 

 

 Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other 
activities where their participation in disproportionately low  

 
NB Please note that, for disabled persons, the Council must have regard to the  

 possible need for steps that amount to positive discrimination, to “level the  
 playing field” with non-disabled persons, e.g. in accessing services through  
 dedicated car parking spaces.   
 
1.6 Guidance on Compliance with The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) for 
officers and decision makers: 
 
1.6.1 To comply with the duty, the Council must have “due regard” to the three equality 
aims set out above.  This means the PSED must be considered as a factor to consider 
alongside other relevant factors such as budgetary, economic and practical factors.   
 
1.6.2 What regard is “due” in any given case will depend on the circumstances.  A 
proposal which, if implemented, would have particularly negative or widespread effects on 
(say) women, or the elderly, or people of a particular ethnic group would require officers 
and members to give considerable regard to the equalities aims.  A proposal which had 
limited differential or discriminatory effect will probably require less  regard. 
 
1.6.3 Some key points to note : 
 

 The duty is regarded by the Courts as being very important. 

 Officers and members must be aware of the duty and give it conscious 
consideration: e.g. by considering open-mindedly the EIA and its findings when 
making a decision. When members are taking a decision,this duty can’t be 
delegated by the members, e.g. to an officer. 

 EIAs must be evidence based. 

 There must be an assessment of the practical impact of decisions on equalities, 
measures to avoid or mitigate negative impact and their effectiveness.  

 There must be compliance with the duty when proposals are being formulated by 
officers and by members in taking decisions: the Council can’t rely on an EIA 
produced after the decision is made. 

 The duty is ongoing: EIA’s should be developed over time and there should be 
evidence of monitoring impact after the decision. 

 The duty is not, however, to achieve the three equality aims but to consider them – 
the duty does not stop tough decisions sometimes being made. 

 The decision maker may take into account other countervailing (i.e. opposing) 
factors that may objectively justify taking a decision which has negative impact on 
equalities (for instance, cost factors) 

Page 119



 

Page 4 of 18 

 
1.6.4 In addition to the Act, the Council is required to comply with any statutory Code of 
Practice issued by the Equality and Human Rights Commission. New Codes of Practice 
under the new Act have yet to be published. However, Codes of Practice issued under the 
previous legislation remain relevant and the Equality and Human Rights Commission has 
also published guidance on the new public sector equality duty.  
 

Page 120



 

Page 5 of 18 

 

Part 2 – Aims and implementation of the proposal, strategy or policy 

2.1 What is being assessed?  

a) Proposal or name of the strategy or policy.   

Removal of post-16 travel support for students from low income families (LIF), 
whilst retaining a 25% hardship fund. 

b) What is the main purpose or aims of proposal, strategy or policy?  

To remove all travel support for post-16 LIF students and allocate 25% 
(approximately £60k) of the forecast 2015/16 saving as a hardship fund allocated to 
colleges. 

Proposed changes would be phased in with new starters only being subject to 
revisions from September 2016. Students awarded transport help in the preceding 
academic years will continue to receive the same support for the agreed duration of 
their course; usually up to a maximum of 2 years.  

 

c) Manager(s) and section or service responsible for completing the 
assessment 

 Sara Candler, Project Manager (SEND travel) 

2.2 Who is affected by the proposal, strategy or policy? Who is it intended to 
benefit and how?  

Students who are between 16 to 19 years old from low income families, who start 
college in September 2016. This is the Year 10 cohort (as of June 2015) and 
younger students. Based on current numbers it is estimated that the supported 
cohort constitutes 3.7% of the total number of East Sussex 16-19 year olds in 
education. 

2.3 How is, or will, the proposal, strategy or policy be put into practice and 
who is, or will be, responsible for it?  

All current support will cease. It is proposed that 25% of the forecast 2015/16 
budget spend of £240k would act as a targeted hardship fund to support those who 
most need it in order to continue their education. Options are still being considered 
regarding how to administer the hardship fund. Partnership work is ongoing with 
sixth forms and colleges.  

Lou Carter, Assistant Director, Communication, Planning and Performance 
(Children’s Services) 

 

2.4 Are there any partners involved? E.g. NHS Trust, voluntary/community 
 organisations, the private sector? If yes, how are partners involved? 

 Schools and colleges. East Sussex County Council will work with student support 
services at schools and colleges so that they are able to provide information on 

Page 121



 

Page 6 of 18 

other sources of funding for young people, and ensure that the hardship fund is 
appropriately used to support the most vulnerable students.  

2.5 Is this project or procedure affected by legislation, legislative change, service 
review or strategic planning activity? 

Local authorities do not have a statutory duty to provide free transport to school or 
college for students who are above compulsory school age. 

 
It is anticipated that East Sussex County Council will need to reduce expenditure by 
£70-90 million between 2016/17 and 2018/19. This level of financial pressure 
means that all areas of expenditure need to be considered for potential savings. 
During the 2012/13 to 2014/15 Medium Term Financial Plan there has been a 
systematic review of the HTST budget to reduce costs. These further savings 
against the home to school transport budget therefore must come from 
discretionary areas of spend. 

Page 122



 

Page 7 of 18 

Part 3 – Methodology, consultation, data and research used to 
determine impact on protected characteristics.  

3.1 List all examples of quantitative and qualitative data or any consultation 
information available that will enable the impact assessment to be undertaken. 

 Types of evidence identified as relevant have X marked against them 

 Employee Monitoring Data  Staff Surveys 

X Service User Data  Contract/Supplier Monitoring Data 

X Recent Local Consultations  Data from other agencies, e.g. Police, 
Health, Fire and Rescue Services, third 
sector 

 Complaints X Risk Assessments 

X Service User Surveys X Research Findings 

X Census Data X East Sussex Demographics 

 Previous Equality Impact 
Assessments 

X National Reports 

 Other organisations Equality 
Impact Assessments 

 Any other evidence? 

 

3.2 Evidence of complaints against the strategy or policy on grounds of 
 discrimination.  

None prior to the consultation survey. 

 

3.3     If you carried out any consultation or research on the strategy or policy 
 explain what consultation has been carried out.  

Detailed research has been carried out to establish a realistic projection of the 
number of young people who may be affected by this policy change. A study 
looking at savings per year and numbers impacted by 2019/20 has been carried out 
in order to forecast the potential savings of the proposed change and calculate the 
amount of hardship fund available.  

Research has also looked at where current LIF are living, studying and what type of 
travel support they are receiving. 

Web-based and networking research on post-16 transport offered by other County 
Councils gathered information from other authorities.  

An online survey (also available in printed format) was open to the public from 10 
June until 11 September 2015 to gather feedback on the proposed change. Schools 
and colleges were informed about the consultation and invited to respond. 

The Council consulted closely with post-16 providers, focussing on those who have 
the biggest numbers of students who were in receipt of LIF travel support in 
2014/15. 

Page 123



 

Page 8 of 18 

The Youth Cabinet were also asked for their response. 

 

3.4 What does the consultation, research and/or data indicate about the positive 
or negative impact of the strategy or policy?  

Reducing Post 16 transport assistance carries with it a number of risks. The 
research provides a snapshot of who will be affected and how other local authorities 
have implemented similar policy positions regarding post 16 travel support, 
including neighbouring county councils West Sussex and Kent which both ceased 
post-16 LIF student support several years ago. The impacts appear likely to be 
negative, however West Sussex and Kent counterparts have indicated that they 
believe the impact has been neutral, although they have not shared a formal report. 

There were 26 responses to the survey. The most predominant concern (81% of 
respondents) was that young people may not continue in post-16 education, 
especially regarding vocational courses. There was also concern about 
unemployment and reduced social mobility, as well as the fact that those living in 
rural areas were being penalised. 

Given the pressures on HTST budgets and the savings required research suggests 
that the focus should be on considering different ways to support LIF  young people 
to attend sixth form or college; encouraging post-16 providers to support their own 
students in offering or signposting available support as appropriate.  

The Council continue to work in partnership with colleges to ensure best use of the 
hardship fund. The special nature of Plumpton College: the transport infrastructure 
and costs, the higher percentage of young people from low income families who 
have to travel more than 3 miles, and the potential serious impact on course 
viability, has led to a recommendation to award the college a larger share of the 
Hardship Fund. The vocational provider DV8 also has a larger than average 
proportion of young people from disadvantaged low income backgrounds who are 
travelling significant distances; therefore they are also being recommended to 
receive an enhanced share. 

The key concern of the Youth Cabinet was how young people could access the 
Hardship Fund, and they also highlighted the misalignment between removing this 
support following the raising of the participation age 

This research has provided teams and stakeholders with the information to better 
understand the impacts and risks. This will enable mitigations to be put in place to 
ensure these groups continue to be supported. 

 

Page 124



 

Page 9 of 18 

Part 4 – Assessment of impact 

4.1 Age: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive impact.  

a) How is this protected characteristic reflected in the County 
/District/Borough? 

There are approximately 12,500 young people between the ages of 16-19 
remaining in education in East Sussex. 

b) How is this protected characteristic reflected in the population of those 
impacted by the proposal, strategy or policy? 

Currently a total of 473 post-16 students meet the criteria for low income.  

Low income families are those in receipt of one, or more, of the following: 

• Income support 

• Income based Job Seekers Allowance 

• Child Tax Credit based on income of up to £16,190  

• Employment and Support Allowance (income related) 

• Guarantee element of State Pension Credit 

It is impossible to project accurately the number who will be affected by these 
changes as the young people have not yet made their decisions regarding further 
education choices.  

c) Will people with the protected characteristic be more affected by the 
proposal, policy or strategy than those in the general population who 
do not share that protected characteristic?   

Yes.  

d) What is the proposal, strategy or policy’s impact on different ages/age 
groups?  

The policy is likely to have a negative impact on young people between the ages of 
16-19 remaining in education who come from low income families. The policy 
change may deter or prevent this cohort from continuing in post-16 education. 

e) What actions are to/ or will be taken to avoid any negative impact or to 
better advance equality?  

1. Rolling communications plan to reach young people and their families 
approaching the transition in good time to allow sensible post-16 choices 
without the assumption that transport will be provided. The timing of the Lead 
Member decision on the changes on 12th November will be followed by clear 
communication with schools, young people, parents, sixth forms and colleges 
in good time for transition in order to allow post-16 choices to be made with 
the changes in mind. Schools and colleges were informed at the start of the 
consultation in June that they should ensure that young people making post-
16 choices should not make the assumption that transport costs would be 
provided from September 2016. The Youth Council will be asked to advise 
on getting the messages across to young people and families. The Council 

Page 125



 

Page 10 of 18 

will also ensure that professionals and stakeholders are aware of the 
changes in support. 

2. Approximately 25% (£60K) of the current annual budget spend will be 
allocated to act as a targeted hardship fund. ESCC has recommended that 
the £60k be shared amongst the 5 East Sussex providers with the highest 
level of need according to 2014/15 figures, with a further weighting in favour 
of Plumpton College and DV8 (a small vocational provider). ESCC has drawn 
up a guidance document for the Hardship Fund which also directs colleges in 
targeting the most vulnerable, low income students and colleges will be 
asked to provide an annual report on the details of supported students. 

3. ESCC will continue to work closely with colleges to explore how potential 
impact can be reduced. Post-16 providers will be further encouraged to offer 
appropriate, timely financial advice and support to their new and existing 
students, making full use of available sources of funding such as the EFA 
bursaries.  

4. Also encouraging specific colleges to improve provision and efficiency of 
transport for their own students through working in partnership when it may 
be possible to share transport provision or routes, e.g. Plumpton and Sussex 
Downs Lewes, Bexhill and Sussex Coast College. 

5. The continuation of a £15k subsidy with Brighton and Hove and West Sussex 
made to Southern Rail so that they can offer a discount to post-16 learners. 

6. Close monitoring over time. 

 

f) How will any mitigation measures be monitored?  

Communication, Planning and Performance teams will regularly review the 
mitigation measures put in place as part of this policy change. Action plan measures 
will show clear lines of responsibility for implementation. 

 

Page 126



 

Page 11 of 18 

4.2 Disability: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive 
impact.  

  Not applicable 
 
4.3  Ethnicity: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive     
 impact.  
 
  Not applicable 
 
4.4 Gender/Transgender: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or 
 positive impact  

  Not applicable 
 
4.5 Marital Status/Civil Partnership: Testing of disproportionate, negative, 
neutral or positive impact.  

  Not applicable 
 
4.6 Pregnancy and maternity: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral 
or positive impact.  

  Not applicable 
 

4.7 Religion, Belief: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or 
positive impact.  

  Not applicable 
 
4.8 Sexual Orientation - Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual and Heterosexual: Testing of 
disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive impact.  
 

  Not applicable 
 

4.9 Other: Additional groups/factors that may experience impacts - testing 
of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive impact.  

16-19 year olds from low income families who live in rural areas. ‘FE Link’ 
or link transport was offered to a handful of 16-19 year olds who live in 
remote rural areas in the county which have no public transport, and takes 
the form of a free taxi service to the start of the nearest suitable public 
transport journey to college. This offer will be removed under the new 
proposal. 

a) How are these groups/factors reflected in the County/District/ 
Borough? 

It is impossible to forecast who this cohort might be at the moment as the 
cohort affect have not yet made their post 16 choices and their low income 
status may change, but some of the students affected might live in rural 
areas where there is less access to public transport. Options for the use of 

Page 127



 

Page 12 of 18 

the hardship fund are still being discussed with the possibility for targeted 
support. The impact of the hardship fund and how it is utilised will be 
monitored. 

b) How is this group/factor reflected in the population of those impacted 
by the proposal, strategy or policy? 

Data not available because the affected cohort have not yet made their post 
16 choices. 

c) Will people within these groups or affected by these factors be more 
affected by the proposal, policy or strategy than those in the general 
population who are not in those groups or affected by these factors?  

Yes 

d) What is the proposal, strategy or policy’s impact on the factor or 
identified group?  

16-19 year olds from low income families who live in rural areas will no longer 
receive the same offer of travel support. 

e) What actions are to/ or will be taken to avoid any negative impact or to 
better advance equality?  

Details of the availability of the hardship fund will be communicated widely. 

f) How will any mitigation measures be monitored? 

Communication, Planning and Performance teams will regularly review the 
mitigation measures put in place as part of this policy change. Action plan 
measures will show clear lines of responsibility for implementation. 

Page 128



 

Page 13 of 18 

4.10 Human rights- Human rights place all public authorities – under an 
obligation to treat you with fairness, equality, dignity, respect and autonomy. 
Please look at the table below to consider if your proposal, policy or strategy 
may potentially interfere with a human right.  

 

Articles  

A2 Right to life (e.g. pain relief, suicide prevention) 

A3 Prohibition of torture, inhuman or degrading treatment (service 
users unable to consent, dignity of living circumstances) 

A4 Prohibition of slavery and forced labour (e.g. safeguarding 
vulnerable adults) 

A5 Right to liberty and security (financial abuse) 

A6 &7 Rights to a fair trial; and no punishment without law (e.g. staff 
tribunals) 

A8 Right to respect for private and family life, home and 
correspondence (e.g. confidentiality, access to family) 

A9 Freedom of thought, conscience and religion (e.g. sacred space, 
culturally appropriate approaches) 

A10 Freedom of expression (whistle-blowing policies) 

A11 Freedom of assembly and association (e.g. recognition of trade 
unions) 

A12 Right to marry and found a family (e.g. fertility, pregnancy) 

Protocols  

P1.A1 Protection of property (service users property/belongings) 

P1.A2 Right to education (e.g. access to learning, accessible information) 

P1.A3 Right to free elections (Elected Members) 

 

 

Page 129



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 14 of 18 

Part 5 – Conclusions and recommendations for decision makers 

5.1 Summarise how this proposal/policy/strategy will show due regard for 
the three aims of the general duty across all the protected 

characteristics and ESCC additional groups.    

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010; 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people from different groups 

 Foster good relations between people from different groups 

      

5.2 Impact assessment outcome Based on the analysis of the impact in part 
four please mark below ('X') with a summary of your recommendation.  

  X Outcome of impact assessment Please explain your answer fully. 

 A No major change – Your analysis 
demonstrates that the policy/strategy is robust 
and the evidence shows no potential for 
discrimination and that you have taken all 
appropriate opportunities to advance equality 
and foster good relations between groups. 

As stated from the start of the 
consultation, the Council 
acknowledges that cutting this 
provision is likely to have an impact 
on the number of young people who 
would have been eligible for this 
support. 

It is important that consideration is 
given to what mitigations can be put 
in place and that impacts are 
monitored. The Communication, 
Planning and Performance teams 
will provide additional monitoring of 
mitigation measures to track impact 
on the affected groups. 

The key mitigations, as set out fully 
in 4.e  are: 

 A timely communications plan 
for families, young people 
and  stakeholders 

 Provision of an appropriately 
weighted Hardship Fund and 
guidance for its use by 
colleges, to ensure that the 
most needy students are 
reached with consideration of 
fairness and equity. 

 ESCC to work closely with 
post-16 providers to 
encourage them to offer or 
signpost other sources of 
support,eg. ESA bursaries; 
as they will know the 

X B Adjust the policy/strategy – This involves 
taking steps to remove barriers or to better 
advance equality. It can mean introducing 
measures to mitigate the potential effect. 

 C Continue the policy/strategy - This means 
adopting your proposals, despite any adverse 
effect or missed opportunities to advance 
equality, provided you have satisfied yourself 
that it does not unlawfully discriminate 

 D Stop and remove the policy/strategy – If 
there are adverse effects that are not justified 
and cannot be mitigated, you will want to 
consider stopping the policy/strategy altogether. 
If a policy/strategy shows unlawful discrimination 
it must be removed or changed. 

Page 130



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 15 of 18 

circumstances of their 
students better than the LA 
and will be well placed to 
target the funding at the most 
vulnerable. 

 Also offer of support to 
facilitate meetings between 
colleges to improve provision 
and efficiency of transport for 
their own students, through 
working in partnership when it 
may be possible to share 
transport provision or routes, 
e.g. Plumpton and Sussex 
Downs Lewes, Bexhill and 
Sussex Coast College 

 The continuation of a £15k 
subsidy with Brighton and 
Hove and West Sussex made 
to Southern Rail so that they 
can offer a discount to post-
16 learners. 

 

The Communication, Planning and 
Performance teams will provide 
additional monitoring of mitigation 
measures to track impact on the 
affected groups. 

 

5.3 What equality monitoring, evaluation, review systems have been set up 
to carry out regular checks on the effects of the proposal, strategy or 
policy?  

 (Give details) 

An action plan will be developed with the Planning and Performance team so 
monitoring is carried out.  

 

5.4 When will the amended proposal, strategy or policy be reviewed?       

Date completed: 24/09/15 Signed by 
(person completing) 

Sara Candler 

 Role of person 
completing 

Project Manager, 
SEND Travel 

Date: 24/09/15 Signed by 
(Manager) 

Lou Carter 

 

Page 131



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 16 of 18 

Part 6 – Equality impact assessment action plan   

If this will be filled in at a later date when proposals have been decided please tick here and fill in the summary report.  

The table below should be completed using the information from the equality impact assessment to produce an action plan for the 
implementation of the proposals to: 

1. Lower the negative impact, and/or 
2. Ensure that the negative impact is legal under anti-discriminatory law, and/or 
3. Provide an opportunity to promote equality, equal opportunity and improve relations within equality target groups, i.e. increase the 

positive impact 
4. If no actions fill in separate summary sheet.  

Please ensure that you update your service/business plan within the equality objectives/targets and actions identified below: 

Area for improvement Changes proposed Lead Manager Timescale 
Resource 

implications 

Where 
incorporated/flagged? 

(e.g. business 
plan/strategic 

plan/steering group/DMT) 

Administration of the 
hardship fund 

Approximately 25% 
(£60K) of the current 
annual budget spend 
will be allocated to act 
as a targeted hardship 
fund. ESCC will 
continue to work closely 
with schools and 
colleges to explore how 
potential impact can be 
reduced by using this 
fund, 16-19 bursaries 
and other support. 

Lou Carter November 2015 none Equality and Participation 
along with Planning and 
Performance team will 
monitor action plan 
deliverables 

 

P
age 132



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 17 of 18 

Decisions regarding 
which options to adopt 
will have to be carefully 
considered 

Communications Clear communication 
with schools, young 
people, parents, sixth 
forms and colleges in 
good time for transition 
in order to allow post-16 
choices to be made 
without the assumption 
that transport costs will 
be provided.  

Ensure professionals 
and stakeholders are 
aware of the policy 

 

Lou Carter November 2015 Communications 
resources 

Equality and Participation 
along with Planning and 
Performance team will 
monitor action plan 
deliverables 

P
age 133



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 18 of 18 

(a) 6.1 Accepted Risk 

From your analysis please identify any risks not addressed giving reasons and how this has been highlighted within your Directorate: 

 

Area of Risk 
Type of Risk?  
(Legal, Moral, 

Financial) 

Can this be addressed at 
a later date? (e.g. next 

financial year/through a 
business case) 

Where flagged? (e.g. 
business plan/strategic 

plan/steering group/DMT) 
Lead Manager 

Date resolved (if 
applicable) 

                                    

                                    

                                    

                                    

                                    

 

P
age 134



 

Page 1 of 17 

 

Equality Impact Assessment     

Strategy or Policy Template 

 

Name of the strategy or policy 

Proposal to remove the FE Link Travel Support Offer 

 

 

File ref:       Issue No:       

Date of Issue: August 2015 Review date: October 2015 

 

Contents 

 

Part 1  The Public Sector Equality Duty and Equality Impact Assessments  (EIA) ..... 2 

Part 2 – Aims and implementation of the proposal, strategy or policy ........................... 5 

Part 3 – Methodology, consultation, data and research used to determine impact on 
protected characteristics. .............................................................................................. 7 

Part 4 – Assessment of impact...................................................................................... 9 

Part 5 – Conclusions and recommendations for decision makers ............................... 14 

Part 6 – Equality impact assessment action plan ........................................................ 16 

(a) 6.1 Accepted Risk ......................................................................................... 17 

 

 

 

Summer 2009 

 

Page 135

Appendix 14



 

Page 2 of 17 

Part 1  The Public Sector Equality Duty and Equality Impact   
  Assessments  (EIA) 

 
1.1 The Council must have due regard to its Public Sector Equality Duty when making 
all decisions at member and officer level. An EIA is the best method by which the Council 
can determine the impact of  a proposal on equalities, particularly for major decisions. 
However, the level of analysis should be proportionate to the relevance of the duty to the 
service or decision. 
 
1.2 This is one of two forms that the County Council uses for Equality Impact 
Assessments, both of which are available on the intranet. This form is designed for 
any proposal, strategy or policy. The other form looks at services or projects. 
 
1.3 The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) 
The public sector duty is set out at Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. It  requires the 

Council, when exercising its functions, to have “due regard‟ to the need to 

 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited under the Act.  

 

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

 

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. (see below for “protected 
characteristics” 

 
These are sometimes called equality aims. 
 

1.4 A “protected characteristic‟ is defined in the Act as:  

 age;  

 disability;  

 gender reassignment;  

 pregnancy and maternity;  

 race (including ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality)  

 religion or belief;  

 sex;  

 sexual orientation.  
 
Marriage and civil partnership are also a protected characteristic for the purposes of the 
duty to eliminate discrimination.  
 
The previous public sector equalities duties only covered race, disability and gender. 
 
1.5 East Sussex County Council also considers the following additional 
 groups/factors when carry out analysis: 

 Carers – A carer spends a significant proportion of their life providing unpaid 
support to family or potentially friends. This could be caring for a relative, partner or 
friend who is ill, frail, disabled or has mental health or substance misuse problems. 
[Carers at the Heart of 21stCentury Families and Communities, 2008] 

 Literacy/Numeracy Skills 

Page 136



 

Page 3 of 17 

 Part time workers 

 Rurality  
 
1.6 Advancing equality (the second of the equality aims) involves: 
 

 Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected 
characteristic 

 

 Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are 
different from the needs of other people including steps to take account of disabled 
people’s disabilities 

 

 Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other 
activities where their participation in disproportionately low  

 
NB Please note that, for disabled persons, the Council must have regard to the  

 possible need for steps that amount to positive discrimination, to “level the  
 playing field” with non-disabled persons, e.g. in accessing services through  
 dedicated car parking spaces.   
 
1.6 Guidance on Compliance with The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) for 
officers and decision makers: 
 
1.6.1 To comply with the duty, the Council must have “due regard” to the three equality 
aims set out above.  This means the PSED must be considered as a factor to consider 
alongside other relevant factors such as budgetary, economic and practical factors.   
 
1.6.2 What regard is “due” in any given case will depend on the circumstances.  A 
proposal which, if implemented, would have particularly negative or widespread effects on 
(say) women, or the elderly, or people of a particular ethnic group would require officers 
and members to give considerable regard to the equalities aims.  A proposal which had 
limited differential or discriminatory effect will probably require less  regard. 
 
1.6.3 Some key points to note : 
 

 The duty is regarded by the Courts as being very important. 

 Officers and members must be aware of the duty and give it conscious 
consideration: e.g. by considering open-mindedly the EIA and its findings when 
making a decision. When members are taking a decision,this duty can’t be 
delegated by the members, e.g. to an officer. 

 EIAs must be evidence based. 

 There must be an assessment of the practical impact of decisions on equalities, 
measures to avoid or mitigate negative impact and their effectiveness.  

 There must be compliance with the duty when proposals are being formulated by 
officers and by members in taking decisions: the Council can’t rely on an EIA 
produced after the decision is made. 

 The duty is ongoing: EIA’s should be developed over time and there should be 
evidence of monitoring impact after the decision. 

 The duty is not, however, to achieve the three equality aims but to consider them – 
the duty does not stop tough decisions sometimes being made. 

 The decision maker may take into account other countervailing (i.e. opposing) 
factors that may objectively justify taking a decision which has negative impact on 
equalities (for instance, cost factors) 

Page 137



 

Page 4 of 17 

 
1.6.4 In addition to the Act, the Council is required to comply with any statutory Code of 
Practice issued by the Equality and Human Rights Commission. New Codes of Practice 
under the new Act have yet to be published. However, Codes of Practice issued under the 
previous legislation remain relevant and the Equality and Human Rights Commission has 
also published guidance on the new public sector equality duty.  
 

Page 138



 

Page 5 of 17 

 

Part 2 – Aims and implementation of the proposal, strategy or policy 

2.1 What is being assessed?  

a) Proposal or name of the strategy or policy.   

‘FE Link’ or link transport is offered to 16-19 year olds who live in remote rural areas 
in the county which have no public transport, and takes the form of a free taxi 
service to the start of the nearest suitable public transport journey to college. The 
provision is not means-tested. 

The offer is outlined in the 2015/16 post-16 Transport Statement as:  ‘Link transport: 
Some students (those living in the most rural locations) may be assisted to get to 
their nearest bus pick up point or railway station provided they attend the nearest 
appropriate provision.’ The provision is for a maximum of two years. 

The proposal is to remove this travel support offer. 

b) What is the main purpose or aims of proposal, strategy or policy?  

The proposal is to remove this travel support offer. 

Proposed changes would be phased in with new starters only being subject to 
revisions from September 2016. Students awarded transport help in the preceding 
academic year will continue to receive the same support for 2016/17. 

 

c) Manager(s) and section or service responsible for completing the 
assessment 

 Sara Candler, Project Manager (SEND travel) 

2.2 Who is affected by the proposal, strategy or policy? Who is it intended to 
benefit and how?  

Students between 16 to 19 years old living in the most rural areas with no bus 
services who plan to start college from September 2016.  

2.3 How is, or will, the proposal, strategy or policy be put into practice and 
who is, or will be, responsible for it?  

All current support will cease. Partnership work is ongoing with sixth forms and 
colleges.  

Lou Carter, Assistant Director, Communication, Planning and Performance 
(Children’s Services) 

2.4 Are there any partners involved? E.g. NHS Trust, voluntary/community 
 organisations, the private sector? If yes, how are partners involved? 

 Schools and colleges. East Sussex County Council will work with student support 
services at schools and colleges so that they are able to provide information on 
other sources of funding for these young people. 

Page 139



 

Page 6 of 17 

 

2.5 Is this project or procedure affected by legislation, legislative change, service 
review or strategic planning activity? 

Local authorities do not have a statutory duty to provide students who are above 
compulsory school age and living in the most rural locations with assistance to get 
to their nearest bus pick up point or railway station. 

 
It is anticipated that East Sussex County Council will need to reduce expenditure by 
£70-90 million between 2016/17 and 2018/19. This level of financial pressure 
means that all areas of expenditure need to be considered for potential savings. 
During the 2012/13 to 2014/15 Medium Term Financial Plan there has been a 
systematic review of the HTST budget to reduce costs. These further savings 
against the home to school transport budget therefore must come from 
discretionary areas of spend. 

Page 140



 

Page 7 of 17 

Part 3 – Methodology, consultation, data and research used to 
determine impact on protected characteristics.  

3.1 List all examples of quantitative and qualitative data or any consultation 
information available that will enable the impact assessment to be undertaken. 

 Types of evidence identified as relevant have X marked against them 

 Employee Monitoring Data  Staff Surveys 

X Service User Data  Contract/Supplier Monitoring Data 

X Recent Local Consultations  Data from other agencies, e.g. Police, 
Health, Fire and Rescue Services, third 
sector 

 Complaints X Risk Assessments 

X Service User Surveys X Research Findings 

X Census Data X East Sussex Demographics 

 Previous Equality Impact 
Assessments 

X National Reports 

 Other organisations Equality 
Impact Assessments 

 Any other evidence? 

 

3.2 Evidence of complaints against the strategy or policy on grounds of 
discrimination.  

None prior to the consultation survey. 

 

3.3 If you carried out any consultation or research on the strategy or policy  explain 
what consultation has been carried out.  

As of April 2015, there are only 3 travellers on 2 taxis with an actual annual cost 
to the HTST budget of £4.4k, each being transported between 3 and 5 miles from 
their homes to either a train station or a bus stop. 

Web-based and networking research on post-16 transport offered by other 
County Councils gathered information from 13 other authorities.  

An online survey (also available in printed format) was open to the public from 
10 June until 11 September 2015 to gather feedback on the proposed change. 
Schools and colleges were informed about the consultation and invited to 
respond. 

The Youth Cabinet were also asked for their response. 

 

3.4 What does the consultation, research and/or data indicate about the positive or 
negative impact of the strategy or policy?  

Page 141



 

Page 8 of 17 

The policy is likely to have a negative impact on children and young people living in 
the most rural locations.  

Removing this transport assistance carries with it a number of risks. Young people 
living in the most rural parts of the county will find it more difficult to access public 
transport links in order to attend sixth form or college; although it is not known if any 
of the current recipients are from low income families and therefore whether they 
may have access to other means to get to college. 

There were 26 responses to the survey, which asked about both FE Link and ESCC 
travel support for 16-19 year old students from low income families, which would 
impact a far greater number of children. Respondents were generally more 
concerned about the effect of removing support for low income students, also there 
was some concern about how students currently entitled to FE Link support would 
cope, given that they may also be low income and have poor access to public 
transport networks. 

 

Page 142



 

Page 9 of 17 

Part 4 – Assessment of impact 

4.1 Age: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive impact.  

a) How is this protected characteristic reflected in the County 
/District/Borough? 

There are approximately 12,500 young people between the ages of 16-19 
remaining in education in East Sussex. 

b) How is this protected characteristic reflected in the population of those 
impacted by the proposal, strategy or policy? 

Currently a total of 3 post-16 students meet the criteria FE Link support.  

It is impossible to project accurately the number who will be affected by these 
changes as the young people have not yet made their decisions regarding further 
education choices.  

c) Will people with the protected characteristic be more affected by the 
proposal, policy or strategy than those in the general population who 
do not share that protected characteristic?   

Yes.  

d) What is the proposal, strategy or policy’s impact on different ages/age 
groups?  

The policy is likely to have a negative impact on young people between the ages of 
16-19 remaining in education who live in rural areas without bus services. The 
policy change may deter or prevent this cohort from continuing in post-16 
education. 

e) What actions are to/ or will be taken to avoid any negative impact or to 
better advance equality?  

1. Rolling communications plan to reach young people and their families 
approaching the transition in good time to allow sensible post-16 choices 
without the assumption that transport will be provided. The timing of the Lead 
Member decision on the changes on 12th November will be followed by clear 
communication with schools, young people, parents, sixth forms and 
colleges in good time for transition in order to allow post-16 choices to be 
made with the changes in mind. Schools and colleges were informed at the 
start of the consultation in June that they should ensure that young people 
making post-16 choices should not make the assumption that transport costs 
would be provided from September 2016. The Youth Council will be asked to 
advise on getting the messages across to young people and families. The 
Council will also ensure that professionals and stakeholders are aware of the 
changes in support. 

2. If eligible as from a low income family, students previously given FE Link 
provision will be eligible to access the Hardship Fund and other targeted 
support. 

Page 143



 

Page 10 of 17 

3. ESCC will continue to work closely with colleges to explore how potential 
impact can be reduced. Post-16 providers will be further encouraged to offer 
appropriate, timely financial advice and support to their new and existing 
students, making full use of available sources of funding such as the EFA 
bursaries. 

4. Also encouraging specific colleges to improve provision and efficiency of 
transport for their own students through working in partnership when it may 
be possible to share transport provision or routes, e.g. Plumpton and Sussex 
Downs Lewes, Bexhill and Sussex Coast College. 

5. Close monitoring over time. 

f) How will any mitigation measures be monitored?  

Communication, Planning and Performance teams will regularly review the 
mitigation measures put in place as part of this policy change. Action plan 
measures will show clear lines of responsibility for implementation. 

 

Page 144



 

Page 11 of 17 

4.2 Disability: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive 
impact.  

  Not applicable 
 
4.3  Ethnicity: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive     
 impact.  
 
  Not applicable 
 
4.4 Gender/Transgender: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or 
 positive impact  

  Not applicable 
 
4.5 Marital Status/Civil Partnership: Testing of disproportionate, negative, 
neutral or positive impact.  

  Not applicable 
 
4.6 Pregnancy and maternity: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral 
or positive impact.  

  Not applicable 
 

4.7 Religion, Belief: Testing of disproportionate, negative, neutral or 
positive impact.  

  Not applicable 
 
4.8 Sexual Orientation - Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual and Heterosexual: Testing of 
disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive impact.  
 

  Not applicable 
 

4.9 Other: Additional groups/factors that may experience impacts - testing 
of disproportionate, negative, neutral or positive impact.  

a) Not applicable  

b) How are these groups/factors reflected in the County/District/ 
Borough? 

c) Not applicable  

d) How is this group/factor reflected in the population of those impacted 
by the proposal, strategy or policy? 

Data not available. 

Page 145



 

Page 12 of 17 

e) Will people within these groups or affected by these factors be more 
affected by the proposal, policy or strategy than those in the general 
population who are not in those groups or affected by these factors?  

f) Not applicable  

g) What is the proposal, strategy or policy’s impact on the factor or 
identified group?  

h) Not applicable  

i) What actions are to/ or will be taken to avoid any negative impact or to 
better advance equality?  

j) How will any mitigation measures be monitored? 

Page 146



 

Page 13 of 17 

4.10 Human rights- Human rights place all public authorities – under an 
obligation to treat you with fairness, equality, dignity, respect and autonomy. 
Please look at the table below to consider if your proposal, policy or strategy 
may potentially interfere with a human right.  

 

Articles  

A2 Right to life (e.g. pain relief, suicide prevention) 

A3 Prohibition of torture, inhuman or degrading treatment (service 
users unable to consent, dignity of living circumstances) 

A4 Prohibition of slavery and forced labour (e.g. safeguarding 
vulnerable adults) 

A5 Right to liberty and security (financial abuse) 

A6 &7 Rights to a fair trial; and no punishment without law (e.g. staff 
tribunals) 

A8 Right to respect for private and family life, home and 
correspondence (e.g. confidentiality, access to family) 

A9 Freedom of thought, conscience and religion (e.g. sacred space, 
culturally appropriate approaches) 

A10 Freedom of expression (whistle-blowing policies) 

A11 Freedom of assembly and association (e.g. recognition of trade 
unions) 

A12 Right to marry and found a family (e.g. fertility, pregnancy) 

Protocols  

P1.A1 Protection of property (service users property/belongings) 

P1.A2 Right to education (e.g. access to learning, accessible information) 

P1.A3 Right to free elections (Elected Members) 

 

 

Page 147



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 14 of 17 

Part 5 – Conclusions and recommendations for decision makers 

5.1 Summarise how this proposal/policy/strategy will show due regard for 
the three aims of the general duty across all the protected 

characteristics and ESCC additional groups.    

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010; 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people from different groups 

 Foster good relations between people from different groups 

      

5.2 Impact assessment outcome Based on the analysis of the impact in part 
four please mark below ('X') with a summary of your recommendation.  

  X Outcome of impact assessment Please explain your answer fully. 

 A No major change – Your analysis 
demonstrates that the policy/strategy is robust 
and the evidence shows no potential for 
discrimination and that you have taken all 
appropriate opportunities to advance equality 
and foster good relations between groups. 

As stated from the start of the 
consultation, the Council 
acknowledges that cutting this 
provision is likely to have an impact 
on the number of young people who 
would have been eligible for this 
support.  

It is important that consideration is 
given to what mitigations can be put 
in place and that impacts are 
monitored. Former FE Link eligible 
students may have access to the 
Hardship Fund or other college 
support if low income, and the 
Communication, Planning and 
Performance teams will provide 
monitoring of mitigation measures to 
track impact on the affected groups. 

The key mitigations, as set out fully 
in 4.e  are: 

 A timely communications plan for 
families, young people and  
stakeholders 

 If low income, students in very 
rural locations may be eligible to 
apply for some financial support 
through their college 

 ESCC to work closely with post-
16 providers to encourage them 
to offer or signposting of other 
sources of support, e.g. ESA 
bursaries; as they will know the 
circumstances of their students 

X B Adjust the policy/strategy – This involves 
taking steps to remove barriers or to better 
advance equality. It can mean introducing 
measures to mitigate the potential effect. 

 C Continue the policy/strategy - This means 
adopting your proposals, despite any adverse 
effect or missed opportunities to advance 
equality, provided you have satisfied yourself 
that it does not unlawfully discriminate 

 D Stop and remove the policy/strategy – If 
there are adverse effects that are not justified 
and cannot be mitigated, you will want to 
consider stopping the policy/strategy altogether. 
If a policy/strategy shows unlawful discrimination 
it must be removed or changed. 

Page 148



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 15 of 17 

better than the LA and will be 
well placed to target the funding 
at the most vulnerable. 

The Communication, Planning and 
Performance teams will provide 
additional monitoring of mitigation 
measures to track impact on the 
affected groups. 

 

5.3 What equality monitoring, evaluation, review systems have been set up 
to carry out regular checks on the effects of the proposal, strategy or 
policy?  

 (Give details) 

An action plan will be developed with the Planning and Performance team so 
monitoring is carried out.  

 

5.4 When will the amended proposal, strategy or policy be reviewed?       

Date completed: 24/09/15 Signed by 
(person completing) 

Sara Candler 

 Role of person 
completing 

Project Manager, 
SEND travel 

Date: 24/09/15 Signed by 
(Manager) 

Lou Carter 

 

Page 149



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 16 of 17 

Part 6 – Equality impact assessment action plan   

If this will be filled in at a later date when proposals have been decided please tick here and fill in the summary report.  

The table below should be completed using the information from the equality impact assessment to produce an action plan for the 
implementation of the proposals to: 

1. Lower the negative impact, and/or 
2. Ensure that the negative impact is legal under anti-discriminatory law, and/or 
3. Provide an opportunity to promote equality, equal opportunity and improve relations within equality target groups, i.e. increase the 

positive impact 
4. If no actions fill in separate summary sheet.  

Please ensure that you update your service/business plan within the equality objectives/targets and actions identified below: 

Area for improvement Changes proposed Lead Manager Timescale 
Resource 

implications 

Where 
incorporated/flagged? 

(e.g. business 
plan/strategic 

plan/steering group/DMT) 

Communications Clear communication with 
schools, young people, 
parents, sixth forms and 
colleges in good time for 
transition in order to allow 
post-16 choices to be 
made without the 
assumption that transport 
costs will be provided. 
Ensure professionals and 
stakeholders are aware of 
the policy 

 

Lou Carter November 2015 Communications 
resources 

Equality and Participation 
along with Planning and 
Performance team will 
monitor action plan 
deliverables 

 

P
age 150



Equality Impact Assessment  

Page 17 of 17 

(a) 6.1 Accepted Risk 

From your analysis please identify any risks not addressed giving reasons and how this has been highlighted within your Directorate: 

 

Area of Risk 
Type of Risk?  
(Legal, Moral, 

Financial) 

Can this be addressed at 
a later date? (e.g. next 

financial year/through a 
business case) 

Where flagged? (e.g. 
business plan/strategic 

plan/steering group/DMT) 
Lead Manager 

Date resolved (if 
applicable) 

                                    

                                    

                                    

                                    

                                    

 

P
age 151



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Press Release        

 
For Immediate Release 10 June 2015 
 

Proposal for £1m plus school transport savings 

PARENTS are being asked for their views on proposed changes to school transport that 

could save more than a million pounds. 

East Sussex County Council is consulting on the proposals, which would affect travel 

support for post-16 students from low income families and pre-school and post-16 students 

with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND). 

The council has a statutory duty to provide some transport services to pupils in the county, 

but spends £1.67 million on services it does not have a legal responsibility to deliver.  

 

It says changes to the way these services are delivered will enable it to support those with 

the greatest need. 

As the authority works towards a three-year savings target of up to £90million, it is reviewing 

every service it delivers to ensure it is achieving value for money and delivering cost-

effective services. 

The proposed changes, which would be phased in, could save an estimated £1,160,616 

over the three years from 2016. The council would continue to invest more than £9million 

into statutory transport services. 

People are being asked to comment on: 

 The removal of travel passes and grants available to post-16 students from low income 

families and the creation of a hardship fund to ensure those in need can still access 

support 

 Ensuring the council prioritises support to SEND students with the highest level of need 

by introducing tighter criteria and, where appropriate, encouraging parents to transport 

their child to pre-school, school sixth form or college 

 Increasing the current post-16 SEND transport contribution from £370 to £608, with a 50 

per cent reduction for low income families, and introducing the same contribution for 

families with pre-school children receiving travel support 

Page 153

Appendix 15



Stuart Gallimore, county council director of children’s services, said: “Historically, the county 

council has offered school transport services it does not have a statutory duty to provide. 

“However, with significant savings to be found in the three years from 2016, this needs to be 

reviewed. Changes to the policy would bring East Sussex more in line with other authorities 

where charges are already in place. 

“We are setting out the proposed changes so people are aware of the proposals, can take 

these into account when choosing a college or sixth form place for September 2016, and can 

comment on the potential impact. 

“Any changes approved will not come into effect until September 2016. Students already 

receiving support will continue to do so.” 

The consultation, which will include discussions with affected schools and colleges, is now 

open and people can comment online at www.eastsussex.gov.uk/haveyoursay 

NOTES FOR EDITORS  
 
The decision to consult on the proposed changes was taken by Cllr Nick Bennett, lead 
member for learning and school effectiveness, at his latest lead member meeting on 
Monday, June 8  
 
Home to School Transport expenditure in 2014/15 was £10.76 million, with around £9.13 
million being used to fulfil statutory requirements.  
 
In 2016/17 it is estimated that 204 post-16 students from low income families would be 
impacted by the proposals, while 94 pre-school and post-16 SEND students would be 
affected.  
 
Savings have already been made to the home to school transport budget with a number of 
changes and initiatives including the decision to offer free transport only to the nearest 
school, the introduction of personal transport budgets for SEND children and young people.  
 
The county council already offers support to SEND students to encourage them to travel to 
school or college on public transport and help them live a more independent life. 

 

This release resulted in the consultation being featured in the following: 
 
11June  TV news report BBC South East Today 
11 June  article   Eastbourne Herald 
12 June article   The Argus 
12 June article   Hailsham Herald 
21 June TV discussion BBC The Sunday Politics Show (with Cllr St Pierre) 
 

Page 154

http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5lYXN0c3Vzc2V4Lmdvdi51ay9oYXZleW91cnNheQ%3d%3d&r=5108613839&d=1204149&p=1&t=h&h=acd980498c065369439e4809eec42d02


 
Report to:  Lead Member for Learning and School Effectiveness  
 
Date:   12 November 2015 
 
By:   Director of Children’s Services  
 
Title of report:  East Sussex County Council Schools Funding Formula 
 
Purpose of report: To seek approval for a change to the schools funding formula 

2016/17 
___________________________________________________________________        
 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Lead Member is recommended to approve the changes to the schools funding 
formula for 2016/17 financial year as set out in paragraph 2.1 of the report. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

 
1 Background 
 
1.1 The Funding Formula is the mechanism by which the Devolved Schools Grant is 
allocated to the maintained schools and academies in East Sussex.  The Local Authority 
(LA) engages with schools annually to review the elements of the Schools Funding 
Formula for East Sussex schools. This review is facilitated by LA representatives and a 
Formula Funding Working Group (FFWG) whose members include Headteachers and 
Governors from a range of Primaries, Secondaries and Academies.   
 
1.2 The process of the formula review began when the FFWG met during the 
summer term 2015. The group then submitted proposals to the Schools Forum on 10 
July 2015.Following this, the forum then agreed to issue the proposals to all Primary, 
Secondary and Academies for consultation.  The consultation period ran from 17 July to 
11 September 2015. 
 
1.3 The result of the consultation was presented to Schools Forum on 25 September 
2015.  The Children’s Services Senior Management Team (SMT) subsequently agreed 
on 7 October 2015 to seek approval by the Lead Member for Learning and School 
Effectiveness for the proposed changes.   
 
2 Proposed changes to Funding Formula and Rationale 
 
2.1 The proposed changes to the formula that would apply to the 2016-17 budget 
allocation are: 
 

 The Lump Sum (see paragraph 2.2.1 below for further information) is 

reduced across all phases by £5,000 with the arising pot to be put back into the per 

pupil rate for each phase, after the allocation of any Sparsity Funding (see next 

proposal); 

 

 Sparsity is introduced as a new factor to the East Sussex Formula, with a 

£5,000 allocation for each qualifying school (see paragraph 2.3 below for further 

information); and 

 

 To decrease from 3% to 1.5% the Capping percentage applied to the 

permitted increase in per pupil funding.  

 

 

 Page 155

Agenda Item 6



 

 
Lump Sum 
 
2.2 The rationale behind the proposal to reduce the Lump Sum was driven by the 
following factors:  
 
Comparison with statistical neighbours 
 
2.2.1  The lump sum allocation to schools is a common factor to all Local Authorities. 
There is a maximum value of £175,000 per school, and the actual level can be set by 
each authority.  The figures for East Sussex schools are £147,000 for Primary schools 
and £150,000 for Secondary Schools.  East Sussex is one of the highest in our statistical 
neighbours’ comparator group, as shown in the following tables.   
 

£0

£20,000

£40,000

£60,000

£80,000

£100,000

£120,000

£140,000

£160,000

Lump Sum - Primary

 

£0

£20,000

£40,000

£60,000

£80,000

£100,000

£120,000

£140,000

£160,000

£180,000

Lump Sum - Secondary

 
 
 
 
 Page 156



The move towards a National Funding Formula 
 
2.2.2 The Department for Education (DfE) have not confirmed a timescale for the 
introduction of a National Funding Formula.  In preparation for this, it is the view of the LA 
and the members of the FFWG that a gradual step change in the level of the lump sum 
now will help schools adjust to the changes a National Funding Formula could introduce.  
 
The disparity of the per pupil funding across the LA 
 
2.2.3 The FFWG reviewed the estimations of the budget share per pupil arising from 
the formula both before and after the proposed changes.  Examples of the schools with 
the highest and lowest budget share per pupil are shown below. 
 
 

 
 
 
Introduction of the Sparsity factor 
 
2.3 The FFWG reviewed a list of those schools that would qualify for additional 
funding under the current DfE qualification criteria: 
 
 ‘For the pupils for whom the school is their closest compatible school, the factor 
measures the distance (as the crow flies) to their second nearest compatible school and 
the mean distance for all pupils is then calculated.: Schools can only qualify if this 
distance is greater than 2 miles for primary, middle or all through and 3 miles for the 
Secondary phase, AND, fewer than 150 pupils for primary or 600 pupils for Secondary, 
middle or all through.’ 
 
Whilst it was noted that whilst many of these schools were not necessarily considered to 
be amongst the smallest rural village schools, the FFWG felt that these schools were 
fulfilling a need for educational provision that merited support. 
 
Reduction of Capping percentage 
 
2.4 The intention of the Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) (set at -1.5%), in 
combination with the Capping percentage, is to reduce fluctuations in funding for 
individual schools from one year to the next.   
 
The current level of capping applied to the funding formula is 3%. That is to say that any 
year on year increase to the per pupil allocation in each school is limited to an increase 
of 3% on the previous year value. This percentage can vary in each LA.  The FFWG 
proposed that this 3% capping limit be reduced to 1.5%, equal to the MFG.  
The year on year fluctuation in per pupil allocations over East Sussex schools is already 
not as volatile as it is in some other Authorities. This indicates a stability which may be 
supported further if the allowable percentage for capping increases in per pupil 
allocations is set at the same level as the MFG. 
 
 
3 Outcome of Consultation  
 
3.1 The consultation questions were sent to the 144 maintained and 36 Academy 
schools on 17th July and the consultation closed on 11th September.  
 

Name of Primary School NOR

No Change to 

Formula

With Proposed 

Formula Changes

Estimated overall increase 

/ decrease in funding

Ocklynge 845 £3,156 £3,170 £11,830

Rodmell 53 £5,984 £5,909 -£3,975

Five Ashes 55 £5,788 £5,717 -£3,905

Estimated Budget Per Pupil                            

(excl MFG / Capping)

Page 157



Out of the 180 schools that were sent the consultation documents 34 (19%) replied. 
 
A summary of the results from the 34 schools is shown in the table below, with none of 
the 3 elements of the proposed changes detailed in paragraph 2.1 receiving more 
negative comment than positive. 
 

Number of establishments that said ‘Agree’                     61%   

Number of establishments that said ‘Disagree’                     39% 

 
3.2 Some schools did express very strong views (see Appendix 1 for two examples) 
and others raised points which will be presented to the next FFWG when it convenes in 
summer 2016 to discuss the 2017-18 funding formula.   
 
 
4 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations. 
 
4.1 The Schools Forum and schools have been consulted on the proposed formula 
change. The majority of the respondents agreed with the proposed change,  and, for the 
reasons set out in paragraphs 2.2 to 2.4 the Lead Member for Learning and School 
Effectiveness is recommended to approve the proposed changes to the Schools Funding 
Formula 2016-17 (as set out in paragraph 2.1).  
 

 

STUART GALLIMORE 
Director of Children’s Services  

Contact Officer: Jill Fisher, Finance Manager 
Tel. No. 01273 482542 
Email: Jill.Fisher@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 158



Sample responses to the Consultation questions for financial year 2016/17 
ESCC Funding Formula 
 
 

School  CHAILEY SCHOOL  
 

Date 02/09/2015 
 

 
 

1 Do you agree that the lump sum in East Sussex should be 
reduced from £147,000 to £142,000 for the Primary phase 
and from £150,000 to £145,000 for the Secondary phase for 
financial year 2016/17?  

No 

 Any further comments- 
 
We are hit both by the reduction in lump sum and the 
fact that we are too large for the sparsity factor. 
 
 

 

2 Do you agree that the Sparsity funding factor be introduced 
with an allocation of £5,000 for each qualifying school / 
academy for financial year 2016/17?  

Yes  

 Any further comments- 
 
600 is too small for secondary phase. Move to 700. 
 

 

3 Do you agree to reduce the capping percentage applied to 
the permitted increase in per pupil funding from 3% to 1.5% 
for financial year 2016/17? 

Yes  

 Any further comments- 
 
But, if the formula allows for 3% where is the other 1.5% 
going? 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 159

Appendix 1



 

School  Etchingham C E School 

Date 03/09/2015 

 
 

1 Do you agree that the lump sum in East Sussex should be 
reduced from £147,000 to £142,000 for the Primary phase 
and from £150,000 to £145,000 for the Secondary phase for 
financial year 2016/17?  

Yes / No 

 Any further comments- 
 
I am fundamentally against this proposal. 
 
East Sussex states very clearly in many documents that it is 
committed to Small Schools and Supporting them. 
 
This proposal hits the smallest schools the hardest 
(except the few that benefit from proposal 2).  A typical 
school with 100 pupils will lose around £ 3,000 of funding or 
around 0.7% of total funding – or around £ 30 per pupil.  
Yet the gainers, for instance a typical 2 form entry Primary 
with 420 pupils will only gain around £1,500 (0.1%).    That 
is 0.1% or £4 per pupil.  
 
What is the School Forum hoping to gain from this?   Small 
Schools will experience enough of a drop in funding to have 
to make a painful cut somewhere (potentially detrimental 
to the educational outcomes and standards of the 
pupils in the school) whereas the typical larger school will 
gain such a small percentage or per pupil amount, it will 
make little discernable difference or impact on 
standards of teaching and learning. 
 
The Schools Forum needs to remember that the typical rural 
small primary school generally has lower levels of 
deprivation (FSM and Pupil Premium) and Prior Attainment 
Funding than most larger urban primary schools.   Smaller 
Schools are already at a disadvantage in terms of funding.   
Yes, the can have a greater per pupil cost to run, because 
each School still has to run a building and grounds, pay 
finance, office, caretaking and cleaning support staff etc.  
They do not benefit from such an economy of scale as larger 
schools – and that is the purpose of the lump sum – to 
enable schools to meet these necessary costs. 
 
I urge the Lead Member for Schools and Learning 
Effectiveness not to approve this proposal.   It is 
detrimental to the Educational Outcomes to our rural 
pupils in East Sussex, without any potential for 
significant outcome improvement in larger schools.   In 
short, it is rather pointless. 
 
In the fullness of time (maybe another 3-5 years), when 
most small rural primary schools are in Federations of 3 or 4 
schools under one Executive Headteacher and one 
Business Manager, (such as the Woodlands Federation) 

 

Page 160



and have had time to set up the most efficient staffing and 
procurement patterns to save money,  this could be 
revisited.  At present it does not make any practical 
sense or positive impact on any learning outcomes for 
pupils in any size school. 
 

2 Do you agree that the Sparsity funding factor be introduced 
with an allocation of £5,000 for each qualifying school / 
academy for financial year 2016/17?  

Yes /  No 

 Any further comments- 
The DfE “Fairer Funding for Schools 2015-16” document 
states: 
“In June last year, we introduced a new sparsity factor for 
local authorities to use in their local formulae for school 
funding in 2014-15. The purpose of this factor is to 
enable local authorities to provide an additional sum to 
small schools serving sparsely populated areas where 
those schools may not be able to operate on the basis 
of per pupil funding alone.” 
 
Taking the last part of this quotation “where these schools 
may not be able to operate on the basis of per pupil 
funding alone”, I am not convinced that many of these 
Schools require this extra funding.   Has the School’s 
Forum investigated the need for it?   
 
Do Small Schools such as Alfriston, Brede, Ditchling,  East 
Hoathly, Firle,  Laughton, Netherfield, Nutley,  Little Horsted, 
Peasmarsh & Ticehurst really next an additional £5,000 just 
because they are over 2 miles away from another School?  
 Looking at School Balances data from 2013-14: 
 
Alfriston £ 65,774    14.7% 
Brede £ 6,636   1.6% 
Catsfield £ 49,463   10.7% 
East Hoathly £ 38,184  8.4% 
Firle £ 73,123    15.5% 
Laughton £ 27,943    4.7% 
Little Horsted £ 22,826 4.2% 
Netherfield £ 33,836   5.9% 
Nutley £ 42,681    9.4% 
Peasmarsh £ 17,223   3.4% 
Ticehurst £ 53,250   7.4% 
 
Only Brede had a low balance of 1.6%.   Most of these 
Schools are well into surplus and 5 of them held balances in 
excess of 8%.  Whatever the purpose of the balance, it does 
prove these Schools were not in dire financial straits. 
 
What evidence is there that these Schools need additional 
funding?   What extra costs do they face?   
 
I challenge the Schools Forum to prove the need for 
this.  You need to show that these schools “cannot 
operate on the basis of per pupil funding alone”.  
Otherwise you have just created “winners and losers” 

 

Page 161



amongst small schools which is not in the spirit of the 
“fairer funding” for Schools the DfE is trying to achieve.   
 
I can see that in remote areas in Cumbria, Devon, Durham 
and so on, that this factor is necessary due to lack of pupil 
numbers and significant distances between settlements let 
alone schools.  East Sussex does not have that demography 
– it is not a County with truly remote schools.  
 
On that basis, I cannot agree with this proposal. 

3 Do you agree to reduce the capping percentage applied to 
the permitted increase in per pupil funding from 3% to 1.5% 
for financial year 2016/17? 

Yes / No 

 Any further comments- 
 
This makes sense as it aligns schools with funding 
increases with the 1.5% MFG Protection for Schools with 
decreasing funding. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 162



 

Recommendation:  
The Lead Member is recommended to: 

Agree to consult on the following proposed admission arrangements for the 2017/18 
school year: 

1. To adopt the admission priorities currently in use for Frant CE Primary school for 
all community and voluntary controlled schools in East Sussex as set out in 
Appendix 1; 

2. To change the measurement of home to school distance from shortest walking 
route to straight line;  

3. To allow applications received after the closing date due to verified house move 
or other material change of circumstances to be treated as on time if received 
before a second deadline;  

4. The proposed admissions numbers; and 

5. The proposed co-ordinated admissions schemes. 
 

1.  Background Information 

1.1 The School Admissions Code 2014 states that admissions authorities must determine 
their admissions arrangements annually. However, provided the relevant admissions authority   
is not proposing any changes to their admissions arrangements, there is a duty to consult every 
seven years.  

1.2 As part of the consultation process, and in accordance with current statutory 
requirements, consultation will include parents, schools, the relevant Dioceses and 
neighbouring local authorities and notification of proposed arrangements will be posted on 
the Council’s website.  
 
1.3 The Lead Member is advised that the new School Admissions Code 2014 came into 
force on 19 December 2014.  This is the reason for the earlier than usual consultation date 
and this is the time frame which will need to be followed in future. The new School 
Admissions Code has been circulated to all schools in East Sussex, and is available on the 
gov.uk website. 

 

2.  Supporting Information 

2.1 Proposals one and two should help ensure that children are able to attend their nearest 
local school.  This may result in a reduction to the Home to School transport budget as a 
number of children are transported at the authority’s expense because there are no places at 
their nearest local school.  It may also reduce the number of appeals as parents are more likely 
to accept an allocated school if it is local to them. 

2.2 The first two proposals should also reduce the likelihood of rural schools needing to 
call on contingency funds because they are unable to accommodate children moving into the 
area from their existing resources, even once KS1 top up money and growth funds have 
been allocated. 

2.3 The third proposal will result in operational efficiencies that will help mitigate against 
planned savings.  Currently walking routes need to be kept up to date and surveyed and 
some activity is spent each year in disputes with parents about whether a footpath exists 
and is relevant for admissions purposes. 

Committee: Lead Member for Learning and School Effectiveness 

Date: 12 November 2015 

Title of Report: Admission arrangements for the 2017/18 school year 

By: Director of Children’s Services 

Purpose of Report: 
To approve the annual statutory consultation exercise for the 
school admission arrangements for 2017/18 

Page 163

Agenda Item 7



 
3. The proposed Changes 
 
3.1  Oversubscription Criteria; 
Appendix 1 shows the proposed oversubscription criteria for community and voluntary 
controlled schools. The previous oversubscription criteria are attached as appendix 2. 
Appendix 3 explains why we are proposing the changes to admissions priorities for voluntary 
and controlled schools. 
 
3.2  Proposal to accept late applications as on time if there is clear justification; 
Appendix 4 details a proposal to accept applications received after the closing date as on 
time (if received before a second deadline) where there is clear evidence of a change of 
address, or other relevant change. 
 
3.3  Home to School Methodology for calculating distances; 
Appendix 5 explains the rationale for proposing changes to the way we calculate home to 
school distances. 
 
3.4 Appendix 6 shows the proposed admissions numbers for community and voluntary 
controlled schools for the 2017/18 school year. The Lead Member is asked to note that there 
are only four possible changes, and at the time of writing, the four schools were still in 
consultation with the Authority. The final numbers together with the other admissions 
arrangements will be included in a further report seeking approval from the Lead Member 
after the consultation closes in March 2015. 
 
3.5 Appendix 7 outlines the co-ordinated admission schemes for the ‘normal’ years of 
entry, i.e. reception classes, transfer between infant to junior schools and on transfer 
between primary and secondary school. There is a small change to the schemes, as it is 
proposed to add a sentence to each scheme to clarify that those families who apply after the 
deadline because they have moved house on or after the closing date will be treated as on 
time applicants if they are able to provide proof of their house move by 1 February 2017 (for 
secondary) and 1 March 2017 (for primary).  This is in line with the change proposed in 
Appendix 4 (see 2.5 above). 
 
3.6 The Lead Member is advised that an Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken as 
part of the consultation process. 

4. Conclusion and Reason for Recommendations 

4.1 The County Council is required by law to carry out consultation on admissions 
arrangements every seven years or sooner if any changes to those arrangements for the 
schools where the local authority is the admissions authority.  The Lead Member is 
recommended to agree to consult on the attached admissions arrangements for 2017/18 
with the minor proposed changes outlined in 2.4, 2.5 and 2.6 above.  

 

4.2 The results of the consultation will be reported back to the Lead Member after the 
consultation period closes in January 2016 with recommendations for amendments as 
necessary resulting from comments received. Final admission arrangements will be determined 
by 15 March 2016, and subsequently published. 

 

STUART GALLIMORE 

Director of Children’s Services 

 
Contact Officer: Jo Miles, Admissions and Transport Manager 
Tel:    01273 481911 

Local Members: All 
 
Background Documents:    
 School Standards and Framework Act 1998 

Page 164



 The School Admissions (Co-ordination of Admission Arrangements) (England) 
Regulations 2012 

 The School Admissions (Admission Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2014 
 The School Information (England) Regulations 2012 
 School Admissions Code 2014 

 

Appendices: 
Appendix 1 – Proposed Admissions criteria  
Appendix 2- previous years’ admissions criteria 
Appendix 3- information regarding proposed change to the sibling link 
Appendix 4- information regarding the proposed change in respect of late applications 
Appendix 5- information regarding the proposed change to distance measurement 
Appendix 6 - Admission numbers 
Appendix 7 - Co-ordination Admission Schemes – normal year of entry 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



Proposed Admissions criteria for community and voluntary controlled schools in East 

Sussex 

1.  Looked after children and children who were looked after, but ceased to be so  

because they were adopted (or subject to residence orders or special 

guardianship orders) immediately following being looked after. 

2.  Children who will have a brother or sister at the school at the time of 

admission  and who live at the same address, within the pre-defined community 

area* 

The definitions of ‘sibling’ and community areas are as shown above in the current criteria 

3.  Other children living within the pre-defined community area 

The definition of pre-defined community areas as shown above in the current criteria 

4.  Children who will have a brother or sister at the school (or linked infant or 

junior  school) at the time of admission who live at the same address, outside the pre-

 defined community area.* 

The definition of sibling is as shown above in the current criteria 

5.  Other children living outside the pre-defined community area.  

Tiebreaker 

 In the event of oversubscription within any category, place allocation will be decided 
by prioritising applications on the basis of home to school distance measured in a 
straight line (as the crow flies).  For split site schools, we will measure to the site 
where the child will attend for the majority of lessons. 

 In the event that applicants cannot be prioritised using the tie-breaker above because 
the distance measurements are the same, the Authority will use random allocation to 
decide which children will be offered the remaining places. This will be done 
electronically using the Authority’s admissions software. 

* Children who have a brother or sister who joined the school prior to 1 September 

2017 (1 September 2012 for Frant CE Primary School) and who is still on roll will be 

admitted under the previous criteria which gave priority to brothers and sisters 

regardless of whether they live in the pre-defined community area or not. 

 

Twins and children from multiple births (all community and voluntary controlled 

schools). 

 

Where the admission of both twins or all siblings from a multiple birth would cause the 

school to rise above its Planned Admission Number, both twins or all of the siblings will be 

admitted. Where the admission of the additional child or children from multiple births to an 

infant class would result in the PAN rising above 30 (or multiples of 30), the additional 

child/children would be exceptions to the Infant Class Size legislation throughout the infant 

phase or until the number in the year group reduced to the PAN. 

Page 167

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Current Admissions criteria used for community and voluntary controlled schools in 

East Sussex 

 

1. Looked After Children and children who were looked after, but ceased to be so 

because they were adopted (or subject to residence orders or special guardianship 

orders) immediately following being looked after. 

2.  Children who will have a brother or sister at the school (or a linked infant or junior 

 school) at the time of admission. 

Children are ‘siblings’ if they are full, half, adoptive foster or step brother or sister 

living in the same household. This criterion includes siblings attending school sixth 

forms.  

3.  Children wishing to transfer between a linked infant and junior school (as per schools 

listed in the admission booklet). 

4.  Children living within a pre-defined community area. 

5.  Children living outside the pre-defined area. 

 

Tiebreaker 

 

In the event of oversubscription within any category, place allocation will be decided by 

prioritising applications on the basis of the shortest route from home to school using 

surfaced, passable routes. Using our Geographical Information System (GIS) distances are 

measured from the child’s home to the nearest gate used by pupils at the school. The routes 

taken for admissions purposes do not include unmade footpaths and there must be a public 

right of way. For split site schools, we will measure to the site where the child will attend for 

the majority of lessons.  

 

In the event that applicants cannot be prioritised using the tie-breaker above because the 

distance measurements are the same, the Authority will use random allocation to decide 

which children will be offered the remaining places. This will be done electronically using the 

Authority’s admissions software. 

Page 169

Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Proposal to restrict the sibling link to children living within the community area: 

In recent years there has been pressure on places in rural schools in a number of parts of 

the county.  This has at least partly been as a result of families in urban areas choosing to 

send their children to rural schools rather than making use of schools in the town where they 

live.  This fills the rural schools in the initial allocation process, leaving it difficult for them to 

accommodate children moving into the community area at a later date.   

For September 2015 the situation in the rural schools surrounding Hastings and Bexhill is 

that, including siblings of existing pupils, over 40% of children allocated places lived outside 

the community area for the school in question.  Sedlescombe CE Primary School had twenty 

of its thirty places filled by children living outside the community area in the initial allocation 

process.  

This is just the most extreme example but a similar situation persists elsewhere in the 

county, notably at Herstmonceux (fourteen out of area children), and Pevensey & Westham 

(25 out of area children). 

Clearly we cannot refuse children places at out of area schools if there are spaces available 

(the School Admissions Code does not allow this), and nor would we wish to do so (this 

would have a potentially serious impact on school budgets). However, we do recognise that 

rural schools in particular serve a local community and that the needs of the local community 

should be prioritised ahead of those living outside the community area who choose to use 

the school as a result of preference rather than need. 

One proposal to alleviate this problem is to prioritise children living in the community area 

ahead of children with a sibling link who live outside the area.  This would not prevent out of 

area siblings from being offered a place, but they would only be offered a place if all children 

living in the area had been offered a place already.  This model is already in use at Frant CE 

Primary School, where it has had some impact on the number of places available to local 

children.  If we were to explain to parents that if their older child is offered a place at their 

preferred school, there is no guarantee that the younger one will be able to follow them, this 

could act as a disincentive for parents to send their child further afield, freeing up places for 

local children moving into the area. 

The introduction of this measure would not necessarily prevent families from outside the 

area from applying for rural schools, or obtaining places at them, but it would enable those 

schools to serve their local community as a priority in years when they are oversubscribed. 

This strategy is not without risk: parents of existing pupils living outside the area may feel 

aggrieved that the priorities have changed since their older child was offered a place and for 

this reason it is recommended that we phase the proposal in by limiting it to families whose 

older child was admitted after 1 September 2017 (although this would limit its effectiveness 

for seven years). Furthermore there are always families who will be insecurely housed and 

may find themselves obliged to move out of the rural area in question, thus compromising 

their younger child’s ability to attend the same school as the older one.  However this needs 

to be set against the hardship faced by rural families who are unable to access their local 

school as there are no spaces available in the child’s year group. 

Page 171

Appendix 3



Initial feedback from some schools indicates that this would be a popular move with those 

parents who are unhappy about rising class sizes and feel aggrieved that families living in 

the area often move out once they have secured a place for their eldest child, vacating a 

property which is then often occupied by another family requiring a place. 

 

 

Page 172



Another way to secure more places for children moving into a given area is to allow late 

applications to be processed as on time where there is proof of a change of address.  This 

would enable them to be considered as resident in the area, prioritising them ahead of other 

children who live further away than their new home address.   

The impact this would have had on Sedlescombe in the example given in Appendix 3 above 

would have been that two, or possibly three of the families who moved into the area would 

have been given places in the initial allocation process, reducing the number of out of area 

children offered places accordingly.  This would have meant that when a further three 

families moved in to the area, they would have been able to be accommodated within the 

class size limit (as there were three children who moved out), and the school would only 

have been obliged to accept two movers-in under the Fair Access Protocol (assuming 

everything else stayed the same). 

We would need to have a cut-off date for accepting these applications as on time as clearly 

there comes a point when decisions have to be made in order to meet the allocation date of 

1 March or 16 April (for secondary and primary respectively).  However we propose to allow 

these applications up until 1 February (secondary) and 15 March (primary) so as to allow as 

much time as possible for movers-in while at the same time being confident of being able to 

achieve the legal obligation to offer places on national offer day. 

Other authorities take this approach and have reported that it works well.  For example, this 

approach is used in Brighton & Hove, who outline it in their admissions literature so that 

parents are aware of the situation and can act accordingly.  In this way the authority is seen 

to be acting reasonably to respond to the needs of movers-in, as well as reducing the 

number of children placed long distances from home, which in turn has a positive impact on 

the number of appeals received and on the home to school transport budget.  

 

 

Page 173

Appendix 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Impact of moving to straight line distance: 

Currently we use home to school distance as a tie breaker for our admission arrangements, 

and this is measured by shortest walking route via surfaced, passable routes.  This does 

present some challenges, for example: 

 Parents dispute the distances as they cannot see how these are calculated, and 

there are websites available which will show different measurements 

 Parents find it difficult to estimate in advance their chances of securing a place at 

their preferred school, as they do not know their home to school distance 

measurement as measured by our system 

 As new building projects come on stream, the routing network needs to be kept up to 

date to ensure accurate measurements.  This means numerous site visits which are 

time consuming and costly 

The proposal therefore is to change the method of measurement to straight line ‘crow flies’, 

which would be easy for parents to understand (we could publish maps showing circles 

indicating previous years’ distances), and would not require maintenance of the routing 

network. 

Clearly using this method of measuring would result in different decisions to the existing 

method.  In some cases, where railway lines or rivers intervene, parents may find that they 

are denied a place at a school at the expense of children who have to walk past their home 

in order to get there, but these cases are likely to be few in number and limited to urban 

areas where there are alternative school places available, as the normal expectation is that 

rural schools will admit those children who live in their community area, and the county 

council negotiates with rural schools where necessary to try to ensure that this happens.  

Community areas (and in the case of Peacehaven Community School, the priority 

community area) would still apply, and the measurement is only used to differentiate 

between pupils within the same admission priority. 

Modelling the impact of this change using this year’s reception cohort shows that very few 

children (less than 5%) received a different allocation using this method of measurement, 

split roughly equally between children receiving a higher preference and children receiving a 

lower preference.   

 

 

Page 175

Appendix 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Admission numbers 

The tables below show the schools the proposed planned admission numbers (PANs) for 

secondary schools where the County Council is the admissions authority. (Proposed 

changes shown in bold) 

1.  Eastbourne area 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

The Causeway 189 

Willingdon Community School 200 

2. Hastings/St Leonards area 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

The Lead Member is advised that the County Council is no longer the admissions authority 

for any secondary schools in Hastings/St Leonards. 

3. Other areas of the County 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Chailey School 162 

Claverham Community College 230 

Heathfield Community College 240 

Peacehaven Community School 180 

Robertsbridge Community College 130* 

Uckfield Community Technology College 270 

Uplands Community College 168 

 

* Robertsbridge Community College have indicated that they may wish to increase their 

admission number to 160 as part of this process although this is likely to be for future 

years.  

Page 177

Appendix 6



Primary, Junior and Infant Schools - proposed admissions numbers for the 2017/18 

school year. 

1.  Bexhill area 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

All Saints Church of England Primary School 30 

Chantry Community Primary School 30 

Little Common School 90 

2.  Crowborough area 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Ashdown Primary School (formerly Whitehill Infant and Herne 

Junior) 

60 

Jarvis Brook School 30 

3.  Eastbourne area (including Polegate and Willingdon) 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Bourne Primary School 60 

Langney Primary School 60 

Motcombe Community School 120 

Ocklynge Junior School (for pupils aged 7-11) 210 

Parkland Infant School (for pupils aged 4-7) 60 

Parkland Junior School (for pupils aged 7-11) 60 

Pashley Down Infant School (for pupils aged 4-7) 90 

Polegate School 60 

Roselands Infant School (for pupils aged 4-7) 90 

Shinewater Primary School 60 

St Andrews Church of England Infant School (4-7) 90 

Stafford Junior School (for pupils aged 7-11) 90 

Tollgate Community Junior School (for pupils aged 7-11) 90 

West Rise Community Infant School (for pupils aged 4-7) 90 

West Rise Community Junior School (for pupils aged 7-11) 90 

Willingdon Primary School 60 

 

4. Hailsham  

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Hawkes Farm Primary School 60 

Hellingly Community Primary School 30 

Page 178



5. Hastings/St Leonards area 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Castledown Community Primary and Nursery School 60 

St Paul’s Church of England Primary School 90 

Sandown Primary School 60 

6. Heathfield  

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Cross-In-Hand Church of England Primary School 60 

Parkside Community Primary School 30 

7. Lewes area 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Pells Church of England Primary School 20 

South Malling Church of England Primary School 30 

Southover Church of England Primary School 60  

Wallands Community Primary School 60 

8. Newhaven area 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Denton Community School 30 

Harbour Primary and Nursery School 60 

Meeching Valley Primary School 30 

9. Peacehaven/Telscombe Cliffs area 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Meridian Primary School 90 

Peacehaven Heights Primary School 60 

Telscombe Cliffs Community Primary School 90 

10. Rye area 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

The Lead Member is advised that the County Council is no longer 

the admissions authority for Rye Primary School 

 

11. Seaford area 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Page 179



Chyngton School 60 

Cradle Hill Community Primary School 90 

Seaford Primary School 60 

12. Uckfield area  

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Harlands Primary School 30 

Manor Primary School 60 

Rocks Park Primary School 30 

 

 

13. Rural Primary Schools 

School 
Admission number 

2017/18 

Alfriston School 15 

Barcombe Church of England Primary School 20 

Battle and Langton Church of England Primary School 60 

Beckley Church of England Primary School 15 

Bodiam Church of England Primary School 15 

Bonners Church of England Primary School 15 

Brede Primary School 20 

Broad Oak Community Primary School 20 

Burwash Church of England Primary School 25 

Buxted Church of England Primary School 25 

Catsfield Church of England Primary School 15 

Chiddingly Primary School 15 

Crowhurst Church of England Primary School 15 

Dallington Church of England Primary School 15 

Danehill Church of England Primary School 12 

Ditchling (St Margaret’s) Church of England Primary School 20 

East Hoathly Church of England Primary School 15 

Etchingham Church of England Primary School 15 

Firle Church of England Primary School 15 

Five Ashes Church of England Primary School 10 

Fletching Church of England Primary School 15 

Forest Row Church of England Primary School 45 

Frant Church of England Primary School 15 

Hamsey Primary School 15 

Page 180



Hankham Primary School 20 

Herstmonceux Church of England Primary School 30 

High Hurstwood Church of England Primary School 15 

Hurst Green Church of England Primary School 20 

Icklesham Church of England Primary School 15 

Iford and Kingston Church of England Primary School 30  

Laughton Community Primary School 15 

Mayfield Church of England Primary School 30 

Maynards Green Community Primary School 30 

Netherfield Church of England Primary School 20 

Newick Church of England Primary School 30 

Ninfield Church of England Primary School 20 

Northiam Church of England Primary School 15 

Nutley Church of England Primary School 15 

Park Mead Primary School 15 

Peasmarsh Church of England Primary School 15 

Pevensey and Westham Church of England Primary School 60 

Plumpton Primary School 20 

Punnetts Town Community Primary School 15 

Ringmer Primary School 45 

Rotherfield Primary School 30 

St Michaels Church of England Primary School (Playden) 15 

St Michaels Primary School (Withyham) 15 

St Peter’s Church of England Primary School 20 

Salehurst Church of England Primary School 30 

Sedlescombe Church of England Primary School 30 

Staplecross Methodist Primary School 15 

Stone Cross School 60 

Stonegate Church of England Primary School 15 

Ticehurst and Flimwell CE Primary School 30 

Wadhurst Church of England Primary School 45 

Westfield School 30 

Wivelsfield Primary School 30 

 

The Lead Member is asked to note that at the time of writing, discussions were still 

taking place on the possibility of these schools changing their admission numbers as 

indicated. 

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



Co-ordination Admission Schemes for the normal year of entry 

Attached are the proposed co-ordinated schemes for primary and secondary admissions at 

the normal point of entry. The changes to both schemes are minimal. 

Introduction 

Local Authorities (LAs) are required each year to draw up a scheme for co-ordinating the 

normal admissions round to primary and secondary schools. The aim of the scheme is to 

ensure that all parents receive a single offer of a school place on the national allocation date. 

If the prescribed date falls on a weekend or bank holiday, offers are sent on the next working 

day. 

The scheme proposed by the County Council will be the subject of consultation with all 

maintained schools in the county and neighbouring local authorities.  

Secondary scheme 2017/18 

Key dates 

Admissions information made available  September 2016 

Closing date for applications   31 October 2016  

Exchange of preference data between local authorities  28 November 2016 

Admission authorities in East Sussex to advise LA of ranked order   6 January 2017 

Finalise allocations   6 February 2017 

Letters released to secondary schools   22 February 2017 

Letters posted first class by secondary schools   1 March 2017 

Closing date for appeals   14 April 2017 

‘On time’ appeals heard   April - June 2017 

 

Applications made in the main round 

1.  The co-ordinated scheme is based on all preferences expressed by parents being 

treated equally but where more than one school can be offered, the highest possible 

school named by the parent will be allocated. It will be for individual admission 

authorities to prioritise all preferences expressed for their schools against the published 

admissions criteria, which they have consulted on and determined. Individual academies 

can agree that the Authority ranks applicants on the academy’s behalf. This would be a 

traded service. The only valid preferences are those stated on the LA common 

application form which is available online or in hard copy. Other admission authorities in 

East Sussex must not use any other application form. A separate, supplementary 

information form can only be used where additional information is required to determine 

admission within their published criteria. This form will be obtainable from and returnable 

to that admissions authority (voluntary aided (VA) schools). A supplementary 

information form on its own is not a valid application. Applicants living outside East 

Sussex must use the common application form that is supplied by their home local 

authority. 

Page 183

Appendix 7



2.  The process will begin with the information on admission arrangements and methods of 

application being made available early in September 2016.  

3.  The LA application form enables parents to name up to any three maintained schools 

stated in order of preference. The form should be completed and submitted to the LA by 

the closing date of 31 October 2016. 

4.  By 28 November 2016, East Sussex will exchange preference data with any local 

authority where an application has been received. 

5.  By 6 January 2017, East Sussex schools that are their own admissions authorities will 

consider their applications, apply their published admissions criteria and provide the LA 

with a list of those applicants ranked accordingly. 

6.  By 20 January 2017, other local authorities will advise East Sussex of decisions reached 

on applications for their schools from East Sussex residents. East Sussex will apply its 

published admissions criteria to those schools where it is the admissions authority and 

determine the outcome of each preference expressed.   

7.  By 6 February 2017, the LA will match the ranked lists against the parental preferences 

to ensure only one place is allocated per child.  Qualifying late applications received up 

to 1 February will be included in this process. 

Where a child is – 

• Eligible for a place at only one school given on the application form, that school will 

be allocated 

• Eligible for two or three schools, a place will be allocated at the highest-ranking 

school 

• Not eligible for a place at any of the named schools and the child lives in East 

Sussex, a place will be allocated at the nearest school to the home with a space. 

8.  In the period 6 February to 17 February 2017, letters will be prepared. The LA where the 

child lives will be responsible for sending letters to parents.  

9.  In the week commencing 20 February 2017 letters for children being allocated places 

will be released to East Sussex secondary schools for the schools to post on the 

allocation date. Details of offers will also be made available to East Sussex primary 

schools. 

10.  Wednesday 1 March 2017 – allocation letters posted by first class mail by the allocated 

secondary school. Applicants who have applied online will receive email notification of 

the outcome of their applications. Where a preference is not being met, information will 

be enclosed with the letter explaining to parents how places have been allocated at their 

preferred school(s). The letter will also advise parents of the right of appeal.   

Applications received after 31 October 2016 but by 1 February 2017 

1.  If an application form is received after 31 October 2016, it will still be passed to the 

relevant admissions authority with a note that it has been received after the closing date. 

It will be for the admissions authority to decide how it wishes to respond to the 

application. This will continue up until 1 February 2017.   

Page 184



2.  If an application is received after 31 October 2016 but before 1 February 2017, together 

with proof of a change of address* since the closing date, or proof of another good 

reason why it was not possible for the family to apply on time, it will be treated as on 

time in respect of community and voluntary controlled schools.  If there is no proof, or 

the reason is not considered valid by the LA, the application will be treated as late.  

There is no right of appeal against the decision as to whether the application is treated 

as on time or late. 

3.  Applicants whose forms are received between these dates will be sent a letter on 1 

March 2017.  For applications received after 2 February 2017, we will aim to send a 

decision letter within 20 school days. 

Changes of preference  

1. Parents may change their preferences at any stage up to the closing date of 31 October 

2016. After 31 October 2016, we will not allow preferences to be changed without good 

reason. The LA will judge each case on its merits but will only usually accept a change 

of preference where there has been a significant change of circumstances (such as a 

house move*) thus making the original preferences no longer practical. Parents will be 

required to put their reasons for changing their preferences in writing, and in all cases, 

supporting evidence will be required.  If the change of preference is agreed, a decision 

will be sent on 1 March 2017 provided the request was received by 1 February 2017. 

Such applicants will be advised that they have the right of appeal if the revised 

preference cannot be met. 

*In the case of house moves, proof of ownership or tenancy on an East Sussex property 

(such as exchange of contracts or signed tenancy agreement of one year) is required if an 

address is to be used for the purpose of allocating a school place. If an applicant cannot 

provide evidence, the application cannot be accepted. 

2. There is no right of appeal where the LA does not accept the change of preference. 

No application form received by 1 February 2017 

No secondary transfer places will be allocated unless a completed application form has been 

received. 

Applications received on or after 1 March 2017 

1.  Only preferences stated on the LA application will be valid. If the preference is for an 

‘own authority’ school, the LA will pass details to the school for a decision. The school 

must then advise the LA within fourteen days as to whether a place can be allocated so 

the LA can formally advise the parent of the decision. Where the preference is for a 

community or voluntary controlled school, the LA will determine the outcome.  If there 

are no places available at one of the preferred schools a place will be allocated at the 

nearest school with a place available (if the identified school is its own admissions 

authority the LA will ask the school whether a place can be allocated). We will aim to 

process late applications within twenty school days. Any refused preference will carry 

the right of appeal.  

2.  Where the preference is for a school in a neighbouring authority, details will be passed 

to that authority for a decision to be made. Any authority refusing an application should 

advise the LA of the decision so the LA can consider allocating an alternative school.  

Page 185



3.  The Co-ordinated Scheme will end on 31st August each year. Applications received 

after this date will be processed by individual schools.  

Appeals 

1.  Parents must be allowed at least twenty school days from the date of notification that 

their application was unsuccessful to prepare and submit their written appeal. The 

appeal must be against any refused preference, thus if a parent puts on the appeal form 

a school which did not feature as a preference on the original application form an appeal 

will not be arranged. 

2.  Parents submitting an appeal will be entitled to at least ten school days notice of the 

date of the appeal. Papers relevant to the appeal will be sent seven working days before 

the hearing. Appeals must be heard within forty school days of the deadline for lodging 

appeals. Appeals for late applications will be included with those being heard for the 

same admission round wherever possible. If this is not possible, they must be heard 

within thirty school days of the appeal being lodged. 

3.  The LA must be advised of the outcome of all appeals. 

Waiting lists 

1.  The LA will operate waiting lists for community and voluntary controlled schools so that 

it is clear as to which child will be offered any place which becomes vacant. Such 

waiting lists will be operational after the closing date for appeals to be lodged. The 

waiting list must reflect the admissions criteria. The LA must be notified by admissions 

authorities of any places that are subsequently allocated from the waiting list. Until co-

ordination ends, it remains for the LA to offer places to parents when places become 

available and are allocated from the waiting list whether the admissions authority is the 

LA or not. 

2.  Waiting lists will operate until the end of Term 2, 2017 for Year 7 admissions. 

Page 186



Primary scheme 2017/18 

Key dates 

Admissions information made available  September 2016 

Closing date for applications  15 January 2017 

Preferences for each school established 27 January 2017 

Exchange of preference data between local authorities 10 February 2017 

Admission authorities in East Sussex advise LA of ranked order 17 March 2017 

Finalise allocations 31 March 2017 

Letters released to primary schools  10 April 2017 

Letters posted first class by primary schools  17 April 2017 

Closing date for appeals  19 May 2017 

Appeals heard  June/July 

Applications made in the main round 

1. The co-ordinated scheme is based on all preferences expressed by parents being 

treated equally but where more than one school can be offered, the highest possible 

school named by the parent will be allocated. It will be for individual admission 

authorities to prioritise all preferences expressed for their schools against the published 

admissions criteria, which they have consulted on and determined. Individual academies 

can agree that the Authority ranks applicants on the academy’s behalf. This would be a 

traded service. The only valid preferences are those stated on the LA common 

application form which is available online or in hard copy. Other admission authorities in 

East Sussex must not use any other application form. A separate, supplementary 

information form can only be used where additional information is required to determine 

admission within their published criteria. This form will be obtainable from and returnable 

to that admissions authority (voluntary aided (VA) schools). A supplementary 

information form on its own is not a valid application. Applicants living outside East 

Sussex must use the common application form that is supplied by their home local 

authority. 

2. The process will begin with the information on admission arrangements and methods of 

application being made available early in September 2016. 

3. The LA application form enables parents to name up to any three maintained schools 

stated in order of preference. It should be completed and submitted to the LA by the 

closing date of 15 January 2017. 

4. By 27 January 2017 East Sussex will exchange preference data with any local authority 

where an application has been received. 

5. By 10 February 2017 East Sussex schools that are their own admission authorities will 

consider all applications for their school, apply their published admissions criteria and 

provide the LA with a list of those applicants ranked accordingly.  

6. By 17 March 2017 other local authorities will advise East Sussex of decisions reached 

on applications for their schools from East Sussex residents. East Sussex will apply its 

Page 187



published admissions criteria to those schools where it is the admissions authority and 

determine the outcome of each preference expressed.   

7. By 31 March 2017, the LA will match the ranked lists against the parental preferences to 

ensure only one place is allocated per child.  Qualifying late applications received before 

17 March will be included in this process. 

Where a child is – 

• Eligible for a place at only one school given on the application form that school will be 

allocated 

• Eligible for two or three schools, a place will be allocated at the highest-ranking school 

• Not eligible for a place at any of the named schools and the child lives in East Sussex, 

a place will be allocated at the nearest school to the home with a space. 

8. In the period 1 April 2017 to 10 April 2017 letters will be prepared. The LA where the 

child lives will be responsible for sending letters to parents. 

9. On 10 April 2017 letters for children being allocated places will be released to East 

Sussex primary schools for the schools to post on the allocation date. 

10. 17 April 2017 – allocation letters posted by first class mail by the allocated primary 

school. Applicants who applied on line will receive email notification of the outcome of 

their applications. Where a preference is not being met, information will be enclosed 

with the letter explaining how places have been allocated at their preferred school(s). 

The letter will also advise parents of the right of appeal.  

Applications received after 15 January 2017 but by 31 March 2017 

1. If an application form is received after 15 January 2017, it will still be passed to the 

relevant admissions authority with a note that it has been received after that date. It will 

be for the admissions authority to decide how it wishes to respond to the application. 

This will continue up until 31 March 2017. 

2. If an application is received after 15 January 2017 but before 17 March 2017, together 

with proof of a change of address* since the closing date, or proof of another good 

reason why it was not possible for the family to apply on time, it will be treated as on 

time in respect of community and voluntary controlled schools.  If there is no proof, or 

the reason is not considered valid by the LA, the application will be treated as late.  

There is no right of appeal against the decision as to whether the application is treated 

as on time or late. 

3.  Applicants whose forms are received between these dates will be sent a letter on 17 

April 2017.  For applications received after 31 March 2017, we will aim to send a 

decision letter within 20 school days. 

Changes of preference  

1. Parents may change their preferences at any stage up to the closing date of 15 January 

2017. After 15 January 2017, we will not allow preferences to be changed without an 

exceptional reason. The LA will judge each case on its merits but will only usually 

accept a change of preference where there has been a significant change of 

circumstances (such as a house move*) thus making the original preferences no longer 

practical. Parents will be required to put their reasons for changing their preferences in 

Page 188



writing, and in all cases, supporting evidence will be required. . If the change of 

preference is agreed, a decision will be sent on 17 April 2017 provided the request was 

received by 31 March 2017. Such applicants will be advised that they have the right of 

appeal if the revised preference cannot be met. 

*In the case of house moves, proof of ownership or tenancy on an East Sussex property 

(such as exchange of contracts or signed tenancy agreement of one year) is required if an 

address is to be used for the purpose of allocating a school place. If an applicant cannot 

provide evidence, the application cannot be accepted. 

2. There is no right of appeal where the LA does not accept the change of preference. 

No application form received  

1.  No Reception or junior transfer places will be allocated unless a completed application 

form has been received. 

Applications received on or after 31 March 2017 

1. Only preferences stated on the LA application will be valid. If the preference is for an 

‘own authority’ school, the LA will pass details to the school for a decision. The school 

must then advise the LA within fourteen days as to whether a place can be allocated so 

the LA can formally advise the parent of the decision. Where the preference is for a 

community or voluntary controlled school, the LA will determine the outcome.  If there 

are no places available at one of the preferred schools a place will be allocated at the 

nearest school with a place available (if the identified school is its own admission 

authority the LA will ask the school whether a place can be allocated). We will aim to 

process late applications within twenty school days. Any refused preference will carry 

the right of appeal.  

2.  Where the preference is for a school in a neighbouring authority, the details will be 

passed to that authority for a decision to be made. Any authority refusing an application 

should advise the LA of the decision so the LA can consider allocating an alternative 

school.  

3.  The Co-ordinated Scheme will end on 31 August each year. Applications received after 

this date will be processed by individual schools.  

Appeals 

1.  Parents must be allowed at least twenty school days from the date of notification that 

their application was unsuccessful to prepare and submit their written appeal. The 

appeal must be against any refused preference, thus if a parent puts on the appeal form 

a school which did not feature as a preference on the original application form an appeal 

hearing will not be arranged. 

2.  Parents submitting an appeal will be entitled to at least ten school days notice of the 

date of the appeal. Papers relevant to the appeal will be sent seven working days before 

the hearing. Appeals must be heard within forty school days of the deadline for lodging 

appeals.  Appeals for late applications will be included with those being heard for the 

same admission round wherever possible. If this is not possible, they must be heard 

within thirty school days of the appeal being lodged. 

3.  The LA must be advised of the outcome of all appeals to other admission authorities. 

Page 189



Waiting lists 

1.  The LA will operate waiting lists for all community and voluntary controlled primary, 

infant and junior schools so that it is clear which child will be offered any place which 

becomes vacant. Such waiting lists will be operational after the closing date for appeals 

to be lodged. The waiting list must reflect the admissions criteria. The LA must be 

notified by admissions authorities of any places that are subsequently allocated from the 

waiting list. Until co-ordination ends, it remains for the LA to offer places to parents 

when places become available and are allocated from the waiting list whether the 

admissions authority is the LA or not. 

Waiting lists will operate until the end of Term 2, 2017. 

 

Admission of summer born children to Reception classes. 

Parents of summer born children who are due to start in reception can request that their 

child starts on a part-time basis or joins Reception later during the school year. 

However, parents can also request that their child starts in Reception in the September 

following their fifth birthday (i.e. when they would normally be starting Year 1). Parents 

making such a request should do so during the normal admission round.  

The Authority will consider these requests on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration 

the child’s academic, social and emotional development together with the Headteacher and 

parent’s views. If the request is refused but the child is offered a place in the school (but not 

the preferred year group) the parent would not have the right of appeal. 

If the request is agreed, parents will need to be clear that this does not mean the child will 

remain in the year below their chronological age group for all of their school career, 

particularly on transfer to secondary school  

 

 

Page 190


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 13 July 2015
	4 Discretionary Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) transport provision
	SEND Travel Appendix 1
	SEND Travel Appendix 2
	SEND Travel Appendix 3
	SEND Travel Appendix 4
	SEND Travel Appendix 5
	SEND Travel Appendix 6
	SEND Travel Appendix 7
	SEND Travel Appendix 8
	SEND Travel Appendix 9
	SEND Travel Appendix 10
	SEND Travel Appendix 11

	5 Discretionary post-16 support for low income families (LIF) and rural link provision
	LIF Travel Appendix 1
	LIF Travel Appendix 2
	LIF Travel Appendix 3
	LIF Travel Appendix 4
	LIF Travel Appendix 5
	LIF Travel Appendix 6
	LIF Travel Appendix 7
	LIF Travel Appendix 8
	LIF Travel Appendix 9
	LIF Travel Appendix 10
	LIF Travel Appendix 11 v1
	LIF Travel Appendix 12
	LIF Travel Appendix 13
	LIF Travel Appendix 14
	LIF Travel Appendix 15

	6 East Sussex County Council School Funding Formula 2016/17 proposal
	Schools Funding Formula - Appendix 1

	7 Admission arrangements for the 2017/18 school year
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7


